THIS PROSPECTUS (S IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION.

if you are in any doubt as to the action you should take, you should consult your stockbroker, bank manager, solicitor, accountant or other professional adviser
immediately.

If you have sold/transferred all your ordinary shares in I-Berhad, you should at once hand this Prospectus together with the Notice of Provisional Allotment (“NPA”), the Rights
Subscription Form (“RSF"), the Notice of Provisional Offer ("NPO”) and the Offer Acceptance Form ("OAF”) to the agent or broker through whom you effected the saleftransfer
for onward transmission to the purchaserfiransferee. All enquiries concerning the Rights Issue with Warrants (as defined herein) and the OFS (as defined herein) (collectively,
the “Corporate Exercises”) should be addressed to our Share Registrar for the Corporate Exercises, Tricor Investor Services Sdn Bnd (Company No. 118401-V), Level 17,
The Gardens North Tower, Mid Valley City, Lingkaran Syed Putra, 59200 Kuala Lumpur.

This Prospectus, together with the NPA, RSF, NPO and OAF (collectively, the “Documents”) are only despatched to our shareholders who have provided our Share Registrar
with a registered address in Malaysia and whose names appear in our Record of Depositors at 5.00 p.m. on 12 September 2014. The Documents are not intended to be (and
will not be) issued, circulated, or distributed and the Corporate Exercises will not be made or offered or deemed to be made or offered for purchase or subscription, in any
countries or jurisdictions other than Malaysia or to persons who are or may be subject to the laws of any countries or jurisdictions other than the laws of Malaysia. The
Corporate Exercises to which this Prospectus relates are only available to persons receiving the Documents within Malaysia. No action has been or will be taken to ensure that
the Corporate Exercises and the Documents comply with the laws of any countries or jurisdictions other than the laws of Malaysia. It shall be the sole responsibility of the Rights
Entitled Shareholders (as defined herein) and the OFS Entitled Shareholders (as defined herein) andfor their renouncee(s) and/or transferee(s) (if applicable) who are or may
be subject to the laws or jurisdictions of countries other than the laws of Malaysia to consult their legal advisers as to whether the acceptance or renunciation of all or any part
of the Rights Issue with Warrants and the acceptance or renunciation of all or any part (as the case may be) of their entitlements under the OFS, would result in the
contravention of any laws of such countries or jurisdictions. Neither |-Berhad, Sumurwang Sdn Bhd, CIMB Investment Bank Berhad (“CIMB”) nor any other advisers to the
Corporate Exercises shall accept any responsibility or liability and hereby disclaim any responsibifity or liability in the event any acceptance and/or renunciation andfor transfer
(as the case may be), application for excess or the subscription, offer, sale, resale, pledge or other transfer of the Rights Shares with Warrants made by any of the Rights
Entitled Shareholders or OFS ICULS made by any of the OFS Entitled Shareholder and/or their renouncee(s) and/or transferee(s) (if applicable) is or shall become illegal,
unenforceable, voidable or void in any countries or jurisdictions in which the Rights Entitled Shareholders or the OFS Entitled Shareholders and/or their renouncee(s) and/or
transferee(s) (if applicable) are residents.

The Securities Commission Malaysia (“SC”) had vide its letter dated 26 March 2014 granted its approval and authorisation for the issuance of the ICULS (as defined herein).
The approval from our shareholders for amongst others, the Rights Issue with Warrants and the allotment and issuance of the ICULS was obtained at our Extraordinary
General Meeting (‘EGM”) held on 22 July 2014 and the approval from the shareholders of Sumurwang Sdn Bhd for the OFS was obtained at an EGM held on 9 May 2014. The
approval from Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) for, amongst others, the admission, listing of and quotation for the Warranis and the ICULS fo the Official
List of Bursa Securities and the listing of and quotation for the Rights Shares (as defined herein) and the new Shares (as defined herein) to be issued arising from the exercise
of the Warrants and the conversion of the ICULS on the Main Market (as defined herein) was obtained on 26 June 2014. However, this is not an indication that Bursa Securities
recommends the Corporate Exercises or assumed any responsibility for the correctness of any statement made or opinion or report expressed in this Prospectus. Admission of
the Warrants and the ICULS to the Official List of Bursa Securities and the listing of and quotation for the Warrants, ICULS and Rights Shares on the Main Market are in no way
reflective of the merits of the Rights Issue with Warrants and the OFS.

The admission of the Warrants and ICULS to the Official List of the Bursa Securities and the listing of and quotation for the Rights Shares, Warrants, ICULS and the new
Shares to be issued upon the exercise of the Warrants and/or conversion of the ICULS will commence after, amongst others, receipt of confirmation from Bursa Malaysia
Depository Sdn Bhd that all CDS Accounts (as defined herein) of successful entitled shareholders and/or their renouncee(s) and/or their transferee(s) (if applicable) have been
duly credited and notices of allotment have been despatched to them.

A copy of this Prospectus has been registered with the SC. The registration of this Prospectus should not be taken to indicate that the SC recommends the Corporate Exercises
or assumes responsibility for the correctness of any statement made or opinion or report expressed in this Prospectus. The SC has not, in any way, considered the merits of the
securities being offered for investment. A copy of the Documents has also been lodged with the Registrar of Companies, who takes no responsibility for the contents of the
Documents.

Our Board and the Sumurwang Board (as defined herein) have seen and approved all the Documents and they collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the
accuracy of the information given and confirm that, after having made all reasonable inquiries and ta the best of their knowledge and belief, there are no false or misleading
statements or other facts which if omitted would make the statements in the Documents false or misleading. CIMB, being the Principal Adviser, acknowledges that, based on alf
available information, and to the best of its knowledge and belief, this Prospectus constitutes a full and true disclosure of all material facts concerning the Corporate Exercises.

All abbreviations used herein shall have the same meanings as those defined in the “Definitions” section of this Prospectus unless stated otherwise.

|-Berhad

(7029-H)
(Incorporated in Malaysia under the Companies Act, 1965)

RENOUNCEABLE RIGHTS ISSUE OF 286,215,890 SHARES TOGETHER WITH 57,243,178 WARRANTS ON THE BASIS OF FIVE (5)
RIGHTS SHARES FOR EVERY FOUR (4) EXISTING SHARES HELD AND ONE (1) WARRANT FOR EVERY FIVE (5) RIGHTS SHARES
SUBSCRIBED FOR, AT AN ISSUE PRICE OF RM0.69 PER RIGHTS SHARE; AND

il. RENOUNCEABLE RESTRICTED OFFER FOR SALE OF 289,132,870 ICULS BY SUMURWANG SDN BHD ON THE BASIS OF FIVE (5)
ICULS FOR EVERY ONE (1) SHARE HELD, AT AN OFFER PRICE OF RM0.50 PER ICULS.

Principal Adviser and Lead Arranger for the Corporate Exercises Trustee for the ICULS holders
Underwriter for the Rights Issue with Warrants

TMF Global reach
Grour Local knowledge

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad (18417-M)

(A Participating Organisation of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad) TMF Trustees Ma]ays'a Berhad (Company Number: §10812-W)

IMPORTANT RELEVANT DATES AND TIMES

Entitlement Date : Friday, 12 September 2014 at 5.00 p.m.
Last date and time for the sale of provisional allotments : Monday, 22 September 2014 at 5.00 p.m.
Last date and time for the transfer of provisional allotments . Thursday, 25 September 2014 at 4.00 p.m.
Last date and time for acceptance and payment : Tuesday, 30 September 2014 at 5.00 p.m.*
Last date and time for application and payment of excess 1 Tuesday, 30 September 2014 at 5.00 p.m.*

* or such later date and time as our Board, the Sumurwang Board (as the case may be) and Principal Adviser may mutually decide and
announce not less than two (2} Market Days before the stipulated date and time.

This Prospectus is dated 12 September 2014




THE SC 1S NOT LIABLE FOR ANY NON-DISCLOSURE ON OUR PART AND TAKES NO RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE CONTENTS OF THIS PROSPECTUS, MAKES NO REPRESENTATION AS TO ITS ACCURACY OR
COMPLETENESS, AND EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY LIABILITY FOR ANY LOSS YOU MAY SUFFER
ARISING FROM OR IN RELIANCE UPON THE WHOLE CR ANY PART OF THE CONTENTS OF THIS
PROSPECTUS.

YOU SHOULD CAREFULLY READ THIS PROSPECTUS IN ITS ENTIRETY ON THE MERITS AND RISKS
PERTAINING TO THE INVESTMENT IN THE RIGHTS SHARES, ICULS AND OUR COMPANY BEFORE
DECIDING WHETHER TO ACCEPT OR APPLY FOR THE RIGHTS SHARES AND/OR THE ICULS.

SHAREHOLDERS/INVESTORS SHOULD RELY ON THEIR OWN EVALUATION TO ASSESS THE MERITS
AND RISKS OF THE INVESTMENT IN OUR COMPANY. IN CONSIDERING THE INVESTMENT,
SHAREHOLDERS/INVESTORS WHO ARE IN ANY DOUBT AS TO THE ACTION TO BE TAKEN SHOULD
CONSULT THEIR STOCKBROKERS, BANK MANAGERS, SOLICITORS, ACCOUNTANTS OR OTHER
PROFESSIONAL ADVISERS IMMEDIATELY.

INVESTORS ARE ADVISED TO NOTE THAT RECOURSE FOR FALSE AND MISLEADING STATEMENTS OR
ACTS MADE IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROSPECTUS ARE DIRECTLY AVAILABLE THROUGH SECTIONS
248, 249 AND 357 OF THE CAPITAL MARKETS & SERVICES ACT 2007.

SECURITIES LISTED ON BURSA MALAYSIA SECURITIES BERHAD ARE OFFERED TO THE PUBLIC
PREMISED ON FULL AND ACCURATE DISCLOSURE OF ALL MATERIAL INFORMATION CONCERNING
THE ISSUE FOR WHICH ANY OF THE PERSONS SET OUT IN SECTION 236 OF THE CAPITAL MARKETS &
SERVICES ACT 2007, E.G. DIRECTORS AND ADVISERS, ARE RESPONSIBLE.

THE DISTRIBUTION OF THE DOCUMENTS (AS DEFINED HEREIN) IS SUBJECT TO MALAYSIAN LAWS. WE
AND THE PRINCIPAL ADVISER ARE NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR THE DISTRIBUTION OF THE DOCUMENTS
OUTSIDE OF MALAYSIA. WE AND THE PRINCIPAL ADVISER HAVE NOT TAKEN ANY ACTION TO PERMIT
AN OFFERING OF SHARES, WARRANTS AND ICULS BASED ON THE DOCUMENTS OR THE
DISTRIBUTION OF THE DOCUMENTS OUTSIDE OF MALAYSIA. THE DOCUMENTS MAY NOT BE USED FOR
AN OFFER TO SELL OR AN INVITATION TO BUY SHARES, WARRANTS AND ICULS IN ANY JURISDICTION
OTHER THAN MALAYSIA. WE AND THE PRINCIPAL ADVISER REQUIRE YOU TO INFORM YOURSELF OF
AND TO OBSERVE SUCH RESTRICTIONS.

THE DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PREPARED AND PUBLISHED SOLELY FOR THE RIGHTS ISSUE WITH
WARRANTS AND OFS UNDER THE LAWS OF MALAYSIA. WE AND THE PRINCIPAL ADVISER HAVE NOT
AUTHORISED ANYONE TO PROVIDE YOU WITH INFORMATION WHICH IS NOT CONTAINED IN THE
DOCUMENTS.

ALL TERMS USED ARE AS DEFINED IN THE “DEFINITIONS” SECTION OF THIS PROSPECTUS.




Company No. 7028-H

DEFINITIONS

Except where the context otherwise requires, the following definitions shali apply throughout this

Prospectus:

Act

Acquisitions
Aggregate Customers’
Securities Account
BNM

Board

Bonus Issue

Bursa Depository
Bursa Securities
Central Securities

Depository and Paying
Agency Rules

CDS Account

CIMB or Principal Adviser
or Lead Arranger or
Facility Agent

Closing Date

CMSA

Corporate Exercises
Documents
EGM

EPS

The Companies Act, 1965, as amended from time to time and
any re-enactment thereof

Collectively, the SOHO Land Acquisition and the Tower Land
Acquisition

The account maintained by each SSDS Participant with BNM
for the ICULS holders who are not Members of RENTAS

Bank Negara Malaysia

Board of Directors of |-Berhad

The bonus issue of Shares to be credited as fully paid-up on
the basis of one (1) new Share for every five (5) Shares held
by entitled sharehoiders of I-Berhad on the entitlement date of
14 October 2014

Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn Bhd

Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad

The rules for the central securities depository and paying
agency services in relation to the securities deposited in
RENTAS and as maodified or revised or substituted from time
to time

The account established by Bursa Depaository for the recording
of deposit and withdrawal of securities and for dealing in such

securities by the depositor

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad

Tuesday, 30 September 2014 at 5.00 p.m., heing the last date
and time for the acceptance, application and payment for the
Rights Shares and the OFS ICULS or such later date and time
as our Board, the Sumurwang Board (as the case may be) and
Principal Adviser may mutually decide and announce not later
than twa (2) Market Days before the stipulated date and time

Capital Markets and Services Act 2007, as amended from time
to time and any re-enactment thereof

Collectively, the Rights Issue with Warrants and the OFS
This Prospectus, together with the NPA, RSF, NPO and OAF
Extraordinary general meeting

Earnings per share
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DEFINITIONS (Cont'd)

Entittement Date

Excess OFS ICULS

Excess Rights Shares

FAST

Foreign Entitled
Shareholders

FPE
FYE

ICULS

ICULS Conversion Price

ICULS Issue Date

ICULS Maturity Date

{CULS Trust Deed

Kia Peng Land
Acquisition

LPD

Main Market

Market Day(s)

Friday, 12 September 2014 at 5.00 p.m., being the date and
time on which I-Berhad shareholders must be registered as a
member and whose names appear in our Record of
Depositors, to be entitled to the Rights Issue with Warrants
and the OFS

The OFS ICULS which are not taken up or not validly taken up
by the OFS Entitled Shareholders and/or their renouncee(s)
and/or transferee(s) prior to excess application

The Rights Shares with Warrants which are not taken up or
not validly taken up by our Rights Entitled Shareholders and/or
their rencuncee(s) and/or transferee(s) prior 10 excess
application

The Fully Automated System for Issuing/Tendering, a
centralised system for the origination of debt securities

Our Rights Entitled Shareholders and OFS Entitled
Shareholders having an address outside Malaysia as set out in
our Bursa Depository's records

Financial period ended
Financial year ended/ending

The 602,600,000 five (5)-year 2% to 3% irredeemable
convertible unsecured loan stocks of RM301,300,000 at 100%
of its nominal value of RMO0.50 each provisionally allotted by
I-Berhad to Sumurwang pursuant to the completion of the
Acqguisitions

RM0.68 for each new Share

The date of issue of the ICULS, being the date of allotment of
the ICULS to Sumurwang and the successful subscribers of
the OFS

The fifth (5th) anniversary of the ICULS Issue Date

The document constituting the ICULS executed between the
Trustee and the Company dated 27 August 2014

The acqguisition by 1-Marcom Sdn Bhd, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company, of the piece of freehold land held
under Geran 26180, Lot 242, Seksyen 63, Town and District of
Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan Kuala Lumpur measuring
approximately 1.05 acres ("Kia Peng Land”) pursuant to the
sale and purchase agreement dated 24 October 2013, which
was completed on 27 August 2014

13 August 2014, being the latest practicable date prior to the
printing and despatch of this Prospectus

Main Market of Bursa Securities

A day on which Bursa Securities is open for trading in
securities
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DEFINITIONS (Cont'd)

Members of RENTAS

MMLR

Non-OFS Entitled
Shareholders

NA,

NPA

NPO
CAF

OFS

OFS Entitled
Shareholders

OFS Entitlement Basis

OFS ICULS

OFS Offer Price

Own Securities Account

Prospectus

Provisional Allotments of

Rights

Provisional Offer of
ICULS

RCULS

RCULS-A

RCULS-B

Those person{s} approved to have access to or to utilise
RENTAS

Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities

Sumurwang, Sumur Ventures, Sumurwang Capital, Tan Sri
Lim Kim Hong, Puan Sri Tey Siew Thuan, The Peak @ KLCC
Sdn Bhd, Tay Siew Lian, Tang Soke Cheng, their related
parties and connected persons

Net assets

Notice of Provisional Allotment, in relation to the Rights Issue
with Warrants

Notice of Provisional Offer, in relation to the OFS
Offer Acceptance Form, in relation to the OFS

The renounceable restricted offer for sale of the OFS ICULS to
the OFS Entitled Shareholders on the OFS Entitlemnent Basis,
at the OF S Offer Price

The shareholders of I-Berhad {save for the Non-OFS Entitled
Shareholders) whose names appear in the Record of
Depositors of our Company as at the Entitlement Date in order
to be entitled to the OFS

The entitlement basis for OFS, being five (5} OFS ICULS for
every one (1) Share held on the Entitlement Date

The 289,132,870 ICULS offered by Sumurwang under the
OFS

The offer price of RM0.50 per OFS ICULS

The account maintained by each SSDS Participant with BNM
for holding its own ICULS

This prospectus dated 12 September 2014 relating to the
Rights Issue with Warrants and the OFS

Rights Shares and Warrants provisionally aliotted to our Rights
Entitled Shareholers

OFS ICULS provisionally offered to our OFS Entitled
Shareholers

The RCULS-A and RCULS-B, collectively

The 264,000,000 five (5)-year 3% to 5% redeemable
convertible unsecured loan stocks of RM132,000,000 at 100%
of its nominal value of RM0.50 each issued by |-Berhad
pursuant to the completion of the Kia Peng Land Acquisition

The 138,000,000 five (5)year 3% to 5% redeemable

convertible unsecured loan stocks of RM69,000,000 at 100%
of its nominal value of RM0.50 each issued by I-Berhad
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DEFINITIONS (Cont'd)

Record of Depositors

RENTAS

Rights Entitled
Shareholders

Rights Entitlement Basis

Rights Issue Price
Rights Issue Proceeds

Rights Issue with
Warrants

Rights Shares

RM and sen

RSF

Rules of Bursa
Depository

Scripless Securities
Depository System or
SSDS

sC

Share(s)

SICDA

SOHO Land Acquisition

pursuant to the completion of the Acguisitions

The shareholders of I-Berhad who are registered as a member
and whose names appear in the record of depositors
maintained at Bursa Depository

The real time electronic transfer of funds and securities system
operated and managed by Malaysian Electronic Clearing
Corporation Sdn Bhd, as agent for BNM

The shareholders of |-Berhad whose names appear in the
Record of Depositors of our Company as at the Entitlement
Date in order to be entitled to the Rights lssue with Warrants

The entitlement basis for the Rights Issue with Warrants, being
five (5) Rights Shares for every four {4) existing Shares held
on the Entitlement Date and one (1) Warrant for every five (5)
Rights Shares subscribed for by our Rights Entitled
Shareholders

The issue price of RM0.69 per Rights Share

Gross proceeds of RM197,488,964 from the Rights Issue with
Warrants

The renounceable rights issue of the Rights Shares together
with the Warrants on the Rights Entitlement Basis, at the
Rights Issue Price

The 286,215,890 new Shares to be issued pursuant to the
Rights Issue with Warrants

Ringgit Malaysia and sen, respectively

Rights Subscription Form, in relation to the Rights Issue with
Warrants

The rules of Bursa Depository as issued pursuant to SICDA

A component of RENTAS which is an electronic book-entry
depository system to effect and record the settlement of the
ICULS, and the associated settlement of payments

Securities Commission Malaysia
Ordinary share(s) of par value RM0.50 each in I-Berhad

Securities Industry (Central Depositories}) Act, 1991, as
amended from time to time and any re-enactment thereof

The acquisition by |-City Properties Sdn Bhd, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company, of the piece of freehold land held
under Geran 311884, Lot 16964, Seksyen 7, Bandar Shah
Alam, District of Petaling, State of Selangor Darul Ehsan
measuring approximately 12.13 acres {("SOHO Land")
pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 20
December 2013 and supplemental agreement dated 12 May
2014, which was completed on 27 August 2014
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DEFINITIONS (Cont'd)

SSDS Participant

Sumur Ventures
Sumuracres
Sumurwang
Sumurwang Beard
Sumurwang Capital

TEAP

TERP

Tower Land Acquisition

Treasury Shares

Trustee

Underwriter

Underwriting Agreement

VWAMP

Warrants

Warrants Deed Poll

Warrants Exercise Price

A member of RENTAS who is approved to open and maintain
a securities account in SSDS for its own account and/or its
customers

Sumur Ventures Sdn Bhd
Sumuracres Sdn Bhd

Sumurwang Sdn Bhd

The board of directors of Sumurwang
Sumurwang Capital Sdn Bhd

Theoretical ex-all price, after taking into account the Rights
Issue with Warrants and Bonus Issue

Theoretical ex-rights price, after taking into account the Rights
issue with Warrants only

The acquisition by City Centrepoint Sdn Bhd, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company, of the piece of freehold land heid
under H.S.(D} 298169, PT 23957, Seksyen 7, Bandar Shah
Alam, Daerah Petaling, Negeri Selangor Darul Ehsan,
measuring approximately 7.45 acres {formerly forming part of
the land held under Geran 311886, Lot 16966, Seksyen 7,
Bandar Shah Alam, Daerah Petaling, Negeri Selangor Darul
Ehsan) (“Tower Land”} pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement dated 20 December 2014 and supplemental
agreement dated 12 May 2014, which was completed on 27
August 2014

The Shares bought back or to be bought back by |-Berhad and
retained as treasury shares from time to time. As at the date of
this Prospectus, |1-Berhad does not retain any Treasury Shares

TMF Trustees Malaysia Berhad, being the trustee for the
iCULS holders

CIMB Investment Bank Berhad, being the underwriter for the
Rights Issue with Warrants

Underwriting agreement dated 28 August 2014 relating to the
Rights Issue with Warrants between our Company and the
Underwriter

Volume weighted average market price

The 57,243,178 free detachable warrants to be issued in
conjunction with the Rights Shares on the basis of one (1)
Warrant for every five (5) Rights Share subscribed for by the
Rights Entitled Shareholders

The deed poll executed by our Company on 28 August 2014
constituting the Warrants

The exercise price of the Warrants of RM1.69, being the price
at which one {1} Warrant is exercisable into one {1} new Share
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DEFINITIONS (Cont'd}

All references to “we”, “us”, “our”, “ourselves’ and "our Company” in this Prospectus are to
I-Berhad, and where the context otherwise requires, "our subsidiaries” refers to the subsidiaries of
[-Berhad. Our "Group” collectively refers to our Company, subsidiaries and associates. All references
to “you” and “your” in this Prospectus are to the shareholders of cur Company.

Words denoting the singular shall, where applicable, include the plural and vice versa, and words
denoting the masculine gender shall, where applicable, include the feminine and/or neuter genders,
and vice versa. References to persons shall include corporations, unless otherwise specified.

Any reference in this Prospectus to any enactment is a reference to that enactment as for the time
being amended or re-enacted. Any reference to time of day or date in this Prospectus shall be a
reference to Malaysian time and date, unless otherwise stated.

Any discrepancies in the tables included in this Prospectus between the amounts listed, actual figures
and the totals thereof are due to rounding.

Certain statements in this Prospectus may be forward-looking in nature, which are subject to
uncertainties and contingencies. Forward-looking statements may contain estimates and assumptions
made by our Board after due enquiry, which are nevertheless subject to known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual resuits, performance or achievements to
differ materially from the anticipated results, performance or achievements expressed or implied in
such forward-looking statements. In light of these and other uncertainties, the inclusion of a forward-
looking statement in this Prospectus should not be regarded as a representation or warranty that our
Company's plans and objectives will be achieved.

L THE REST OF THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 7

Vi



Company No. 7028-H

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CORPORATE DIRECTORY

LETTER TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF I-BERHAD IN RELATION TO THE RIGHTS
ISSUE WITH WARRANTS AND OFS

1. INTRODUCTION

2. DETAILS OF THE RIGHTS ISSUE WITH WARRANTS

2.1
2.2

2.3

2.4
2.5

Details of the Rights Issue with Warrants
Basis of determining the Rights Issue Price and the Warrant Exercise Price

Ranking of the Rights Shares and the new Shares to be issued arising from
the exercise of the Warrants

Principal terms of the Warrants

Last time and date for acceptance, application and payment for the Rights
Issue with Warrants

3. DETAILS OF THE OFS

3.1
3.2
3.3
34

3.5

3.6

Details of the OFS
Details of Sumurwang
Basis of determining the OFS Offer Price and ICULS Conversion Price

Status of the ICULS and ranking of the new Shares to be issued arising
from the conversion of the ICULS

Principal terms of the ICULS

L ast time and date for acceptance, application and payment for the OFS

4, SHAREHOLDERS’ UNDERTAKING AND UNDERWRITING ARRANGEMENT

5. RATIONALE FOR THE RIGHTS ISSUE WITH WARRANTS AND OFS

6. UTILISATION OF PROCEEDS

7. OTHER CORPORATE EXERCISES

8. RISK FACTORS

8.1
8.2
8.3
8.4

Risks relating to the Rights |ssue with Warrants
Risks relating to the OFS and ICULS
Business and operational risks

Forward looking statements / future prospects

vil

Page

10
10
12
13
14

14
20
21
22
24
26
27
27
20
30
33



Company No. 7025-H

TABLE OF CONTENTS

10.

11.

12.

13.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

9.1 Overview and outlook of the Malaysian economy

9.2 Overview and outlook of the Malaysian property market and shopping
complex segment

9.3 Overview and cutlook of Selangor property market

9.4 Prospects of the Group

FINANCIAL EFFECTS OF THE CORPORATE EXERCISES
10.1 Share capital

10.2 NA and gearing

10.3 Earnings and EPS

10.4 Convertible securities

WORKING CAPITAL, BORROWINGS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
MATERIAL COMMITMENTS

11.1 Working capital

11.2 Borrowings

11.3 Contingent liabilities
11.4 Material commitments

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ACCEPTANCE, PAYMENT, SALE/TRANSFER AND
EXCESS APPLICATION OF THE RIGHTS ISSUE WITH WARRANTS

12.1 General

12.2 Last date and time for acceptance and payment

12.3 Procedures for full acceptance and payment

12.4 Procedures for part acceptance

12.5 Procedures for sale and/or transfer of the Provisional Allotments of Rights
12.6 Procedures for Excess Rights Shares application

12.7 Procedures for acceptance by renouncee(s)/transferee(s)

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ACCEPTANCE, PAYMENT, SALE/TRANSFER AND
EXCESS APPLICATION OF THE OFS

13.1 General
13.2 Last date and time for acceptance and payment
13.3 Procedures for full acceptance and payment

13.4 Procedures for part acceptance

viii

Page
33

33

34

35
35
38
38
39
43
43

43

43
43
44
44
45

45
45
46
47
48
49
50
51

51
52
52

54



Company No. 7029-H

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

13.5 Procedure for sale and/or transfer of the Provisional Offer of ICULS 54

13.6 Procedures for Excess OFS ICULS applications 55

13.7 Procedures for acceptance by renouncee(s)/transferee(s) 56

14. LLAWS OF FOREIGN JURISDICTION AND FOREIGN SHAREHOLDERS 57
15. TERMS AND CONDITIONS 58
15.1 Terms and conditions of the Rights Issue with Warrants 58

15.2 Terms and conditions of the OFS . 58

16. FURTHER INFORMATION 59

APPENDICES

. CERTIFIED TRUE EXTRACT OF THE RESOLUTIONS PERTAINING TO THE 60
RIGHTS ISSUE WITH WARRANTS, THE SOHO LAND ACQUISITION AND THE
TOWER LAND ACQUISITION PASSED AT OUR EGM CONVENED ON 22 JULY
2014

I CERTIFIED TRUE EXTRACT OF THE RESOLUTION PERTAINING TO THE OFS 70
PASSED AT SUMURWANG'S EGM CONVENED ON 9 MAY 2014

. INFORMATION ON OUR COMPANY 71
IV. PROFORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF QUR 87
GROUP AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 TOGETHER WITH THE REPORTING

ACCOUNTANTS' LETTER

V. AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF QUR GROUP FOR 114
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2013 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

VL. UNAUDITED CONSOQOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 6-MONTHS 208
FPE 30 JUNE 2014

Vil. DIRECTORS’ REPORT 220

VIil. FURTHER INFORMATION 221

THE REST OF THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK




E Company No. 7029-H

CORPORATE DIRECTORY

=
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Il-Berhad

(7029-H)

Registered Office:

D-1-4, Jalan Multimedia 7/AJ
CityPark, i-City

40000 Shah Alam

Selangor Darul Ehsan

12 September 2014
Board of Directors:

Tan Sri Lim Kim Hong (Executive Chairman)

Dato’ Eu Hong Chew (Deputy Chairman/ Non-Executive Director)
Puan Sri Tey Siew Thuan (Executive Director)

Mr. Liang Yew Ming (/ndependent Non-Executive Director)
Madam Ong Poh Ling (Non-Executive Director)

Madam Goh Yeang Kheng (Independent Non-Executive Director)

To: Our Shareholders
Dear SirfMadam

l. RENOUNCEABLE RIGHTS ISSUE OF 286,215,890 RIGHTS SHARES TOGETHER WITH
57,243,178 WARRANTS ON THE BASIS OF FIVE (5) RIGHTS SHARES FOR EVERY FOUR
(4) EXISTING SHARES HELD ON THE ENTITLEMENT DATE AND ONE (1) WARRANT FOR
EVERY FIVE (5) RIGHTS SHARES SUBSCRIBED FOR BY THE RIGHTS ENTITLED
SHAREHOLDERS, AT AN ISSUE PRICE OF RM0.69 PER RIGHTS SHARE; AND

L. RENOUNCEABLE RESTRICTED OFFER FOR SALE OF 289,132,870 ICULS BY
SUMURWANG TO THE OFS ENTITLED SHAREHQLDERS ON THE BASIS OF FIVE (5)
ICULS FOR EVERY ONE (1) EXISTING SHARE HELD ON THE ENTITLEMENT DATE, AT
AN OFFER PRICE OF RM0.50 PER ICULS.

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 On 20 December 2013, CIMB, on behalf of our Board, had announced, that the
Company proposes to undertake, amongst others, the Rights Issue with Warrants and
the OFS, including the SOHO Land Acquisition and the Tower Land Acquisition.

1.2 On 28 March 2014, CIMB, on behalf of our Board, had announced that the SC had
approved and authorised the issuance of the ICULS vide its letter dated 26 March 2014.
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1.3

The SC’s approval and authorisation is subject to the following conditions:

Conditions imposed

Status of compliance

(&)

(b)

Prior to the issuance of the ICULS, the Company is required to
submit a checklist of compliance with the conditions imposed in
the said letter, standard conditions and continuing obligations as
stipulated in the SC Guidelines and the Guidelines on Private
Debt Securities, and any other letter issued in connection with
the proposal.

The provisions under the CMSA, guidelines, notices and
circulars issued or administered by the SC are an integral part of
the SC's approval and must be complied with. CIMB and our
Company are reminded that any contravention or non-
compliance with any approval condition will be subject to
enforcement actions by the SC as provided under the CMSA.

To be complied

Noted

On 27 June 2014, CIMB, on behalf of our Board had announced that Bursa Securities
had vide its letter dated 26 June 2014, granted its approval for, amongst others, the
following:

(i)

(ir)

the admission, listing of and quotation for:

{a) up to 70,000,000 Warrants arising pursuant to the Rights Issue with Warrants;

and

(b} up to 602,600,000 ICULS arising from the SOHQ Land Acquisition and Tower

Land Acquisition; and

the listing of and quotation for, amongst others, the following on the Main Market:

fa) upto 349,795,481 new Shares pursuant to the Rights Issue with Warrants;

(b)

(c)

up to 70,000,000 new Shares to be issued by [-Berhad pursuant to the
exercise of the Warrants in connection with the Rights issue with Warrants;
and

the aggregate of up to 709,248,532 new Shares to be issued arising from the
conversion of the ICULS, RCULS-A and RCULS-B issued pursuant to the Kia
Peng Land Acquisition, the SOHO Land Acquisition and the Tower Land
Acquisition.

Bursa Securities’ approval is subject to, amongst others, the following conditions in
relation to the Rights issue with Warrants:

Conditions imposed Status of compliance

(1)

(2}

|-Berhad and its adviser must fully comply with the relevant Noted

provisions under the MMLR pertaining to the implementation of
the above proposals.

I-Berhad and its adviser to inform Bursa Securities upon the
completion of the above proposals.

To be complied
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1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

Conditions imposed Status of compliance

(3) To incorporate the comments made in the circular to Complied
shareholders provided in the attachment.

(4) |-Berhad to furnish Bursa Securities with a writlen confirmation  To be complied
of its compliance with the terms and conditions of Bursa
Securities’ approval once the ahove proposals are completed.

(5) The cedified true copy of the resclution passed by the Complied via letter to
shareholders in general meeting approving the above proposals. Bursa Securities dated
23 July 2014

We had on 12 May 2014 received nomination letters dated 9 May 2014 from The Peak
@ KLCC Sdn Bhd (“The Peak @ KLCC"), being the vendor under both the SCHO Land
Acquisition and the Tower Land Acquisition, whereby The Peak @ KLCC had nominated
and identified Sumurwang as the registered and beneficial holder of the ICULS and
RCULS-B to be issued as settlement for the SOHO Land Acquisition and the Tower Land
Acquisition ("Nomination Letters”). in connection with the Nomination Letters,
Sumurwang had also on the same date provided its irrevocable and unconditional
undertaking to I-Berhad to carry out the OFS as part of the SOHO Land Acquisition and
the Tower Land Acquisition in place of The Peak @ KLCC ("Sumurwang Undertaking"}.
Both the Nomination Letters and the Sumurwang Undertaking was announced by CIMB,
on behalf of our Board, on 12 May 2014. A certified true extract of Sumurwang's
shareholders’ resolution autherising the OFS at its EGM convened on 9 May 2014 is set
out in Appendix Il of this Prospectus.

On 22 July 2014, our shareholders had approved, amongst others, the Rights Issue with
Warrants, the SOHO Land Acquisition and the Tower Land Acquisition at our EGM
convened on the same date. A certified true extract of the resolutions pertaining to the
Rights Issue with Warrants, SOHO Land Acquisition and Tower Land Acquisition which
were passed at the said EGM is set out in Appendix | of this Prospectus.

On 12 August 2014, CIMB, on behalf of our Board had announced that the SOHO Land
Acquisition and the Tower Land Acquisition had become unconditional.

On 27 August 2014, CIMB, on behalf of our Board had announced:

(i) that our Company had on even date executed the ICULS Trust Deed constituting
the ICULS;

(i} that both the SOHO Land Acquisition and the Tower Land Acquisition had been
completed and for the settlement of the Acquisitions, our Company had
provisionaily allotted the ICULS and issued the RCULS-B to Sumurwang;

(i) the price of the Rights !ssue with Warrants had been fixed at the Rights Issue
Price together with the Rights Entitlement Basis;

{iv) that the exercise price of the Warrants, in conjunction with the Rights Issue with
Warrants had also been fixed at the Warrants Exercise Price; and

{v) that the entitiement basis for the OFS has been fixed at the OFS Entitlement
Basis.
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1.8 On 28 August 2014, CIMB, on behalf of our Beard had announced:
{i} that cur Company had entered into the Underwriting Agreement; and

(iiy  that the entitement date for the Rights Issue with Warrants and OFS had been
fixed at 5.00 p.m. on 12 September 2014.

No person is authorised to give any information or to make any representation not contained in
this Prospectus in connection with the Corporate Exercises, and if given or made, such
information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised by us and/or
CIMB.

FOR AVOIDANCE OF DQUBT, THE RIGHTS ISSUE WITH WARRANTS AND THE OFS ARE
SEPARATE PROPOSALS AND THEIR RESPECTIVE ENTITLEMENTS ARE NOT RELATED
TO ONE ANOTHER. ENTITLED SHAREHOLDERS, RENOUNCEE(S) AND/OR
TRANSFEREE(S) (IF APPLICABLE) ARE ADVISED THAT ANY APPLICATION FOR THE
RIGHTS ISSUE WITH WARRANTS DO NOT INVOLVE ANY ENTITLEMENTS TO THE OFS
ICULS AND VICE VERSA.

IF YOU ARE IN ANY DOUBT AS TO THE ACTION TO BE TAKEN, YOU SHOULD
CONSULT YOUR STOCKBROKER, BANK MANAGER, SOLICITOR, ACCOUNTANT OR
OTHER PROFESSIONAL ADVISER IMMEDIATELY.

2. DETAILS OF THE RIGHTS ISSUE WITH WARRANTS

2.1 Details of the Rights Issue with Warrants

The Rights Issue with Warrants entails a provisional allotment of 286,215,890 Rights
Shares together with 57,243,178 Warrants to the Rights Entitled Shareholders on the
basis of five {6) Rights Shares for every four {4) existing Shares held with cne (1}
Warrant for every five (5) Rights Shares subscribed for by the Rights Entitled
Shareholders on the Entitlement Date at the Rights Issue Price.

Based on this, an aggregate of RM197,488,964 will be raised from the Rights Issue with
Warrants, and RM96,740,971 will be raised, assuming the full exercise of the Warrants.

The Warrants are attached to the Rights Shares without any cost and shall only be
issued to the Rights Entitled Shareholders and/or their renouncee(s) and/or
transferee(s) who subscribe for the Rights Shares pursuant to the Rights Issue
with Warrants. For avoidance of doubt, the Rights Shares and the Warrants are not
separately renounceable. Should the Rights Entitled Shareholders renounce all or
any part of their entitlements to the Rights Shares, they will not be entitled to the
Warrants attached thereto. The renunciation of the Rights Shares by the Rights
Entitled Shareholders will accordingly entail the renunciation of the Warrants to be
issued together with the Rights Shares. Nonetheless, the Warrants wili be
detached from the Rights Shares immediately upon issue and will be traded
separately on the Main Market.

Any fractional entitements under the Rights Shares with Warrants arising from the
Rights Issue with Warrants shall be disregarded and will be included in the pool of
Excess Rights Shares to be made available for excess application.
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Any Rights Shares with Warrants which are not taken up or not validly taken up by the
Rights Entitted Shareholders, will be made available for excess application by the Rights
Entitled Shareholders and/or their renocuncees and/or transferees (if applicable).

It is the intention of our Board to allocate the Excess Rights Shares, if any, in a fair and
equitable manner. As such, our Board intends to allocate the Excess Rights Shares on a
pro-rata basis to our Rights Entitled Shareholders and/or their renouncees and/or
transferees (if applicable) who have applied for Excess Rights Shares in the manner set
out in Section 12.6 of this Prospectus.

As you are a Rights Entitled Shareholder and the Shares are prescribed securities, your
CDS Account will be duly credited with the number of Provisional Allotments of Rights
which you are entitled to subscribe for in fuil or in part under the terms of the Rights
Issue with Warrants. You will find enclosed with this Prospectus, the NPA notifying you of
the crediting of such securities into your CDS Account and the RSF to enable you to
subscribe for the Rights Shares with Warrants provisionally allotted to you, as well as to
apply for Excess Rights Shares if you choose to do so.

Any dealing in our securities will be subject to, inter alia, the provisions of the SICDA, the
Securities Industry (Central Depositories) (Amendment} Act, 1998, the Rules of Bursa
Depository and any other relevant legislation. Accordingly, upon subscription, the Rights
Shares with Warrants will be credited directly into the respective CDS Accounts of the
successful applicants. No physical share certificates or warrant cerfificates will be issued
but notices of allotment will be despatched to successful applicants.

Within eight (8) Market Days from the last date of acceptance and payment for the Rights
Shares with Warrants or such other date as may be prescribed by Bursa Securities, we
will:

{i) allot the Rights Shares with Warrants;
(i)  despatch notices of allotment to the allottees; and

(i)  make an application for quotation for the Rights Shares with Warrants on the Main
Market.

The Rights Shares with Warrants will then be listed and quoted on the Main Market two
(2) Market Days after the application for quotation is made to Bursa Securities.

We intend to implement the Bonus Issue upon the completion of the Rights Issue with
Warrants. The entitiement date of the Bonus Issue has been determined by our Board to
he on 5.00 p.m. 14 October 2014.

The Bonus Issue involves the bonus issue of new Shares to be credited as fully paid-up
on the basis of one {1} new Share for every five (5) Shares held by entitled shareholders
of our Company to be effected by way of capitalisation from our Company's share
premium account. Based on our Company's latest audited financial statements as at 31
December 2013 and latest unaudited quarterly financial results as at 30 June 2014, the
share premium for both periods was approximately RM60.17 million.

For avoidance of douht, the implementation of the Bonus Issue is not conditional upon
the completion of the Rights Issue with Warrants. In the event that the Rights Issue with
Warrants is not completed for whatsoever reason, the Bonus Issue will continue to be
implemented.
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2.2

2.3

2.4

For illustrative purposes only, based on the enlarged issued and paid-up share capital of
our Company after the Rights Issue with Warrants of 515,188,602 Shares, a total of
103,037,720 new Shares shall be issued and allotted due to the Bonus Issue.

Basis of determining the Rights Issue Price and the Warrants Exercise Price

The Rights Issue Price of RM0.69 reprasents:

(i) a discount of approximately 66.5% to the five (5)-Market Day VWAMP of RM2.06
of our Shares up to 26 August 2014, being the last day of trading prior to the
announcement of the price-fixing of the Rights Shares on 27 August 2014;

(i}  a discount approximately 46.9% to the TERP of our Shares of RM1.30, computed
based on the five (5)-Market Day VWAMP up to 26 August 2014. The discount to
TERP is in line with precedent rights issue exercises; and

(i) a discount of approximately 36.1% to the TEAP of our Shares of RM1.08
computed based on the five (5)-Market Day VWAMP up to 26 August 2014.

The Warrants Exercise Price was determined based on a premium of 30.0% to the TERP
of RM1.30, which takes inte account amongst others, the funding requirements of our
Company and the expected timing of such requirements over the next five (5} years.

Ranking of the Rights Shares and the new Shares to be issued arising from the
exercise of the Warrants

The Rights Shares and the new Shares to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the
Warrants shall, upon allotment and issuance, rank pari passu in all respects with each
other and with the then existing Shares, save and except that they shall not be entitled to
any dividends, rights, allotments and/or other distributions, which may be declared, made
or paid to the shareholders of I-Berhad, the entitlement date of which precedes the date
of aliotment of the Rights Shares and the date of allotment of the new Shares issued
pursuant to the exercise of the Warrants from time to time during the Warrants’ tenure.

The Warrants shall, as between the Warrants holders, rank pari passu in all respects and
rateably among themselves, if applicable.

Principal terms of the Warrants

The principal terms of the Warrants are as follows:

Issue Size : 57,243,178 Warrants
issuer 1 |-Berhad
Form :  The Warrants, which are issued with the Rights Shares

will be immediately detached upon issue and separately
traded. The Warrants will be issued in registered form
and constituted by the Warrants Deed Poll

Tenure 1 Five (5) years from and inclusive of the date of issue of
the Warrants

Exercise Rights . Each Warrant entitles the holder to subscribe for one (1)
new Share at the Warrants Exercise Price satisfied in
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Exercise Price

Exercise Period

Distribution rights of the
Warrants

Status of new Shares
arising from the
exercise of the Warrants

Adjustments to the
exercise price and/for
number of Warrants

Transferability

cash. The number of Warrants may from time to time be
adjusted in accordance with the provisions of the
Warrants Deed Poll

Subject to adjustments in accordance with the
provisions of the Warrants Deed Poll, the exercise price
of the Warrants had been fixed at RM1.69 for each
Warrant

The period commencing from the date of the issue of
the Warrants and ending at the close of business at
5.00 p.m. in Kuala Lumpur on the date which is five (5)
vears from and inclusive of the date of issue of the
Warrants. Any Warrants not exercised during the
aforesaid exercise period will thereafter lapse and
become void

I-Berhad shall within eight (8) Market Days from the
date of exercise (or such other period as may be
prescribed by Bursa Securities) allot and issue the new
Shares, despatch notices of allotment to the holder who
has exercised the Warrants and to make an application
to Bursa Securities for the listing and quotation of the
said Shares.

The Warrants are not entitled to any dividends, rights,
allotments and/or other distributions to any existing
Shares until such Warrants are exercised (before the
entitlement date) and new Shares are issued and
allotted to such Warrant heolders

The new Shares to be issued arising from the exercise
of the Warrants shall, upon allotment and issuance,
rank pari passu in all respects with each other and with
the then Shares, save and except that such new Shares
shall not be entitled to any dividends, rights, allctments
andfor other distributions, which may be declared, made
or paid to shareholders, the entittement date of which
precedes the date of allotment of such new Shares

The Warrants Exercise Price and/or number of
unexercised Warrants may be adjusted by the Board, in
consultation with its professional advisers, in the event
of alteration to the share capital of I-Berhad, capital
distribution or issue of shares or any other events in
accordance with the provisions of the Warrants Deed
Poll

Subject to the provisions of SICDA and the Rules of the
Central Depository, the Warrants shall be transferable
by an instrument of transfer in any usual or common
form or such other form as may be prescribed and
approved by the directors of our Company and Bursa
Securities
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Modification

Listing

Board lot

Rights of the holders of
the Warrants in the
event of winding-up,
compromise of
arrangement

Save as expressly provided for in the Warrants Deed
Foll, no modifications, amendments or addition to the
Warrants Deed Poll (including the form and content of
the global warrant certificate) may be made without the
passing of a special resolution, other than but subject to
the prior approval of Bursa Securities:

{i) modifications which are not materially prejudicial
to the interests of the Warrants holders; or

(i) maodifications which are made to correct a
manifest error or to comply with mandatory
provisions of the laws of Malaysia (or any
regulations issued by any relevant authority).

Bursa Securities, vide its letter dated 26 June 2014, had
granted its approval for the admission, listing of and
guotation for the Warrants and the listing of and
guotation for the new Shares to be issued upon
exercise of the Warrants

The Warrants shall be tradable upon listing in board lots
of 100 Warrants, or such denomination as may be
determined by Bursa Securities

If whilst any Warrants remain capable of being
exercised, a resolution has been passed for a member’s
voluntary winding-up of the Company or where there is
a court order approving a scheme of compromise or
arrangement (within the meaning of Section 176 of the
Act), whether or not for the purpose of or in connection
with a scheme for the reconstruction of the Company or
the amalgamation of the Company with one or more
companies, then:

() for the purpose of such winding-up, compromise
or arrangement to which the Warrants holders or
some person designated by them for such
purposes by special resolution shall be a party,
the terms of such winding-up, compromise or
arrangement shall be binding on all the Warrants
holders; and

(ii) any other case, every Warrants holder shall be
entitled upon and subject to these conditions at
any time within six (6) weeks after the passing of
such resolution for a members’ voluntary
winding-up of the Company or within six (6)
weeks after the granting of the court order
approving the compromise or arrangement, by
irrevocable surrender of his Warrants to the
Company by submitting the duly completed
subscription form authorising the debiting of
his/its Warrants together with payment of the
relevant subscription price by banker's draft
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Constitution

Governing law

(such payment being free of any foreign
exchange commission, remittance charges, or
other deductions), to elect to be treated as if the
Warrants holder had immediately prior to the
commencement of the winding-up, compromise
or arrangement exercised the subscription rights
represented by such Warrants to the extent
specified in the subscription form and be entitied
to receive out of the assets of the Company
which would be available in liquidation if he had
on such date been the holder of the new Shares
to which he would have become entitled
pursuant to such exercise and the liquidator of
the Company shall give effect to such election
accordingly.

The Company shall give notice of any such resolution
within seven (7) days after the passing or granting
thereof or the granting of any such court order
approving such compromise or arrangement. Subject to
the foregoing, if the Company is wound-up or an order
has been granted for such compromise or arrangement,
all subscription rights which have not been exercised
within the six (8} weeks of the passing of such
resolution for a members’ voluntary winding-up of the
Company or within six (6) weeks after the granting of
the court order approving the compromise or
arrangement, as the case may be, shail lapse and any
Warrants representing all such subscription rights shall
cease to be valid for any purpose.

For the avoidance of doubt, if the Company is wound up
{other than by way of a members’ voluntary winding-
up), all subscription rights which have not been
exercised prior to the date of commencement of the
winding up shall lapse and the Warrants shall cease to
be valid for any purpose

The Warrants shall be constituted by the Warrants
Deed Poll

Laws of Malaysia and the exclusive jurisdiction of the
Courts of Malaysia



Company No. 7028-H —‘

LETTER TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF I-BERHAD IN RELATION TO THE RIGHTS ISSUE WITH
WARRANTS AND OFS {Cont'd)

2.5

LLast time and date for acceptance, application and payment for the Rights Issue
with Warrants

The last time and date for acceptance, application and payment for the Rights Issue with
Warrants is 5.00 p.m. on Tuesday, 30 September 2014, or such later time and date as
our Board and our Principal Adviser may mutually decide and announce not later than
two (2) Market Days before the stipulated time and date.

3. DETAILS OF THE OFS

3.1

Details of the OFS

As at the date of this Prospectus, the ICULS have been provisionally allotted as part
settiement of the Acquisitions, which were completed on 27 August 2014. The remaining
consideration for the Acquisitions was settled in the form of the issuance and allotment of
the RCULS-B to Sumurwang. Further details of the RCULS-B are set out in Section 3 of
Appendix Il of this Prospectus.

Pursuant to the Nomination Letters and the Sumurwang Undertaking, Sumurwang has
irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken to make an offer for sale of up to 50% of the
ICULS provisionally allotted to it to the OFS Entitled Shareholders, within six {6) months
from the date of compietion of the SOHO Land Acquisition and the Tower Land
Acquisition.

Based on the OFS Entitiernent Basis, the OFS will result in an offer for sale of
289,132,870 ICULS by Sumurwang at the OFS Offer Price, representing approximately
48% of the total ICULS. This will result in an aggregate of RM144,566,435 being raised
through the OFS, subject to the level of acceptance by OFS Entitled Sharehclders, all of
which shall accrue to Sumurwang, being the offeror under the OFS.

For avoidance of doubt, the OFS is not conditional upon the listing of the ICULS
on Bursa Securities since the primary objective of the OFS is to provide the OFS
Entitled Shareholders the opportunity to participate in the ICULS provisionally
allotted to Sumurwang following from the completion of the Acquisitions and to
minimise dilution.

The OFS is proposed to also facilitate the listing of the ICULS. The ICULS will be
listed subject to Bursa Securities’ approval and the requirements or conditions as
may be determined or imposed by Bursa Securities, including having sufficient
spread to maintain an orderly market. Notwithstanding the ICULS may or may not
be listed, the OFS shall continue to be implemented. In the event that the ICULS
are not listed, the OFS Entitled Shareholders and/or their renouncee(s) and/or
transferee(s) who successfully subscribe for the QFS ICULS will hold unlisted
ICULS with the continued benefit of receiving coupons and converting the ICULS
into new Shares in accordance with the terms of the ICULS. Details setting out the
circumstances where the ICULS are listed and not listed are described below.

The OFS involves the renounceable restricted offer for sale by Sumurwang of the OFS
[CULS to you. The OFS ICULS offered by Sumurwang shall be provisionally offered on
the basis of five (5) ICULS for every one (1) existing Share held by OFS Entitled
Shareholders on the Entitlement Date.

10
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Any fractional entitlements under the OFS ICULS arising from the OFS will be
disregarded and will be included in the pool of Excess OFS ICULS to be made available
for excess application.

Any OFS ICULS which are not taken up or not validly taken up by the OFS Entitled
Shareholders, will be made available for excess application by the OFS Entitled
Sharehclders and/or their renouncee(s) and/or transferee(s) (if applicable).

It is the intention of our Board to allocate the Excess OFS ICULS, if any, in a fair and
equitable manner. As such, our Board intends to allocate the Excess OFS ICULS on a
pro-rata basis to our OFS Entitled Shareholders and/or their renouncee{s) and/or
transferee(s} (if applicable) who have applied for the Excess OFS ICULS in the manner
set out in Section 13.6 of this Prospectus.

As you are an OFS Entitied Shareholder, your CDS Account will be duly credited with the
number of Provisional Offer of ICULS which you are entitled to subscribe for in full or in
part under the terms of the OFS. You will find enclosed in this Prospectus, the NPO
notifying you of the crediting of such securities into your CDS Account and the OAF to
enable you to subscribe for the OFS ICULS provisionally allotted to you, as well as to
apply for Excess OFS ICULS if you choose to do so.

{CULS to be listed on the Main Market

In the event that the ICULS are to be listed, the ICULS shall be prescribed securities.
Any dealing in our securities will be subject to, inter alia, the provisions of the SICDA, the
Securities Industry {Central Depositories) (Amendment) Act, 1998, the Rules of Bursa
Depository and any other relevant legislation. Accordingly, upon subscription, the OFS
ICULS will be credited directly into the respective CDS Accounts of the successful
subscribers. No physical loan stock certificates will be issued but notices of allotment will
be despatched to successful subscribers.

Within eight (8) Market Days from the last date of acceptance and payment for the OFS
ICULS or such other date as may be prescribed by Bursa Securities, we will:

(i) allot the ICULS;
{iil  despatch notices of alictment to the allottees; and
{iil make an application for quotation for the ICULS on the Main Market.

The ICULS will then be listed and quoted on the Main Market two {2) Market Days after
the application for quotation is made to Bursa Securities.

ICULS to be issued under FAST and RENTAS

In the event the ICULS are not to be listed, the ICULS shall be issued under FAST and
RENTAS and shall be securities listed on 8SDS. Any dealings in the ICULS will be
subject to, amongst others, the Central Securities Depository and Paying Agency Rules
and any other relevant rules and legislation.

A notification will be despatched to the custodian of the non-listed ICULS (3) business
days prior to the issuance of the ICULS. Accordingly, the ICULS (if not listed) will be
credited directly into the respective Own Securities Account or the Aggregate Customers’
Securities Account of successful subscribers who have successfully subscribed for such
ICULS. No physical loan stock certificates will be issued to individual subscribers.

11
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3.2

In respect of successful subscribers who are not SSDS Participants, i-Berhad has
nominated Pacific Trustees Berhad, as custodian to hold the ICULS in its securities
account maintained with a SSDS Participant in favour of successful subscribers who are
not SSDS Participants. The cost of setting up the securities account shall be borne by I-
Berhad at no additional expense to the successful subscribers. Shareholderfinvestors
are encouraged to refer to the OAF for further instructions.

For a successful subscriber who is not a SSDS Participant, all enquiries concerning the
ICULS (f not listed) and any dealings of the ICULS should be addressed to Pacific
Trustees Berhad at the foliowing address and contact details:

Pacific Trustees Berhad
Unit A-9-8, 8™ Floor
Megan Avenue 1

No. 189, Jalan Tun Razak
Off Persiaran Hampshire
50400 Kuala Lumpur

Telephone No.: 603 — 2166 8830
Fax No.: 603 — 2166 3830

Details of Sumurwang

Sumurwang was incorporated in Malaysia as Lim Kim Hong Holding Sdn Bhd under the
Act on 11 October 1980 as a private limited company. On 30 August 1984, it changed its
name to Sumurwang Sdn Bhd and converted to a public company, Sumurwang Bhd, on
the same date. Sumurwang assumed its current name when it converted back to a
private limited company on 19 January 1990. Sumurwang is principally involved in
investment holding.

As at the LPD, the authorised share capital of Sumurwang was RM50,000,000
comprising 49,999,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each and 1,000 preference shares of
RM1.00 each while its .issued and paid-up share capital was RM42,612,570 comprising
42,612,570 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each.

As at the LPD, the substantial shareholders of Sumurwang and their respective holdings
are as follows:

As at the LPD

Direct Indirect
No. of No. of
ordinary ordinary
shares shares
Substantial Shareholders ("000) % ("000) %
Tan Sti Lim Kim Heng 2,043,691 4.8% 36,709,343  86.1%""
Sumur Ventures 36,709,343 86.1% - -

Note:

1. Deemed interest through his shareholding in Sumur Ventures by virlue of Section 6A(4) of the
Act,
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There have been no changes in the issued and paid-up share capital of Sumurwang for
the past three (3) years preceding the LPD.

The directors of Sumurwang as at the LPD are Tan Sri Lim Kim Hong, Puan Sri Tey
Siew Thuan and Lee Ming Suan.

Basis of determining the OFS Offer Price and the ICULS Conversion Price

The OFS ICULS shall be offered at 100% of its nominal value, RM0.50, which is the
same basis as the issue price of the ICULS to Sumurwang pursuant to the completion of
the Acquisitions.

The conversion price of the ICULS was originally determined and arrived at based on a
premium of approximately 10% to the five (5)-Market Day VWAMP of the ordinary shares
of RM1.00 each in [-Berhad of RM2.35 up to and including 19 December 2013, being the
Market Day immediately preceding the date when the conditional sale and purchase
agreements for the SOHO Land and the Tower Land were executed on 20 December
2013. The premiums were determined after taking into consideration, infer alia, the
features of the ICULS such as its coupon payment terms, tenure and conversion mode,
the historical and prevailing market prices of I-Berhad as well as future earnings potential
of the Group together with the development of the SOHO Land and the Tower Land.

Since the execution of the respective sale and purchase agreements mentioned above,
our Company has and shall undergo alterations to its share capital which would affect
and adjust the conversion price of the ICULS. These share capital alterations are namely
the subdivision of our Company's ordinary shares from one (1) ordinary share of par
value RM1.00 each into two (2) Shares (which was completed on 12 August 2014)
(“Share S$plit”), the Rights Issue with Warrants and the Bonus Issue. Accordingly, final
adjustments were affected based con the provisions stipulated in the ICULS Trust Deed,
resulting in the final adjusted ICULS Conversion Price of RMO0.68 for each new Share.

The ICULS Conversion Price represents:

(i) a discount of approximately 47.7% from the TERP of RM1.30, based on the five
(5)-Market Day VWAMP up to and including 26 August 2014 of RM2.06; and

(iiy A discount of approximately 37.0% from the TEAP of RM1.08, based on the five
(5)-Market Day VWAMP up to and including 26 August 2014,

As set out in the terms of the ICULS and based on the ICULS Conversion Price, the
ICULS may be converted intc new Shares by surrendering RM0.68 nominal value of
ICULS for one (1} new Share.

The ICULS can be converted into new Shares on any Market Day commencing from the
ICULS Issue Date up to and including the ICULS Maturity Date. Unless previously
converted into new Shares pursuant to the conversion right or purchased, cancelled or
otherwise satisfied by the Company, all ocutstanding ICULS would be mandatorily
converted into new Shares at the ICULS Conversion Price on the ICULS Maturity Date.
Based on the ICULS Ceonversion Price, the maximum number of new Shares to be
issued is 443,088,235 new Shares.

The conversion of the ICULS intc new Shares will not involve any cash element. The
table below illustrates the ICULS entitlement and the number of new Shares to be
received upcn full conversion of the ICULS if the OFS Entitled Shareholders hold 10,000
units of Shares as at the Entitlement Date:
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3.4

3.5

Shares held as at Cost for ICULS No. of Shares to be received
the Entitlement entitlement based upon surrendering
Date on OFS Offer Price RM25,000 nominal value of
ICULS
OFS Entitled 10,000 RM25,000 36,764

Shareholders

In the event that the conversion of the ICULS give rise to fractional entitlements, the
ICULS holders shall disregard and waive its rights to any such fractional entitlements.

Status of the ICULS and ranking of the new Shares to be issued arising from the
conversion of the ICULS

The ICULS shall constitute direct, unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated debts
and obligations of I-Berhad and shall at all times rank pari passu without discrimination,
preference or priority among themselves and shall rank at least pari passu with all other
present and future unsecured and unsubordinated debts and obligations of iI-Berhad
except those which are mandatorily preferred by law.

The new Shares to be issued upon conversion of the ICULS shall, upon allotment and
issuance, rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing Shares, save and except
that they shail not be entitled to any dividends, rights, allotments and/or other
distributions, which may be declared, made or paid to the shareholders of 1-Berhad, the
entittement date of which precedes the date of their aliotment.

Principal terms of the ICULS
The principal terms of the ICULS are as follows:
1ssuer :  1-Berhad
Description :  Issuance of five (b)-year irredeemable convertible

unsecured loan stocks of up to RM301.30 million only
in nominal value

Issue size : RM301.30 million nominal value of 602,600,000
ICULS at RM0.50 each

Issue price : RMO0.50 each at 100% of the nominal value of the
ICULS

Form and denomination . Inthe case where the ICULS are listed

The ICULS will be issued in registered form in
denominations of RM0.50 and multiples thereof, and
constituted by the ICULS Trust Deed

In the case where the ICULS are not listed

The ICULS shall be issued on the FAST in
accordance with the Operational Procedures for
Securities Services, as amended or substituted from
time to time and the Participation and Operation

14
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Tenure

Coupon rate

Coupon payment
frequency

Rating

Transferability

Provisions on buy-
back/early redemption

ICULS conversion rights
and mandatory
conversion on the ICULS
Maturity Date

Rules for Payments and Securities Services, as
amended or substituted from time to time or their
replacement thereof applicable from time to time in
denominations of RM0.50 and multiples thereof, and
constituted by the ICULS Trust Deed.

Five (5) years from the ICULS Issue Date and the
ICULS shall mature on the fifth (57) anniversary of the
ICULS 1ssue Date

The ICULS will be interest free for the first (1%') year of
the tenure, and 2% to 3% per annum thereafter
payable semi-annually until the ICULS Maturity Date
as follows:

Years from ICULS Coupon rate per
Issue Date annum
Nil
2.0%
2.5%
3.0%
3.0%

N b WN -

interest ceases to be payable on the ICULS which are
converted, purchased, cancelled or otherwise
satisfied by the Issuer

Payable in arrears on a semi-annual basis

The ICULS will not be rated

Tradable on Bursa Securities upon their listing and
quotation on the Main Market. For avoidance of
doubt, there will be no setling restriction imposed on
the ICULS whether or not the ICULS are listed on the
Main Market

Provision on early redemption

Not applicable. The ICULS are irredeemable

Provisions on buy-back

|-Berhad, its subsidiaries or an agent acting on hehalf
of the Issuer may at any time purchase the ICULS at
any price in the open market or by private treaty. The
ICULS so0 purchased by the Issuer or by its
subsidiaries or by the agent of the Issuer will be
cancelled and may not be resold or reissued

The ICULS holders shall have the right to convert the
ICULS into new Shares at the ICULS Conversion
Price at any time during the ICULS Conversion Period
upon meeting the conditions of conversion
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ICULS Conversion Period

ICULS Conversion Price

ICULS Conversion Date

Conditions of conversion

Conversion mode

Status and ranking of
ICULS

1

Unless previously converted during the [CULS
Conversion Period, purchased, cancelled or otherwise
satisfied by the Issuer, all outstanding ICULS will be
mandatorily converted by the issuer into new Shares
at the applicable ICULS Conversion Price on the
ICULS Maturity Date

I-Berhad shali within eight (8} Market Days after
receipt of the notice of conversion, allot and/or issue
the new Shares arising fromm the conversion and
despatch notices of allotment, stating the number of
new Shares issued arising from such conversion,
which will be credited into the CDS Accounts of the
relevant ICULS holder

The period of five (5) years commencing from the
ICULS Issue Date up to and including the ICULS
Maturity Date

RMO0.68 for each Share and will be subject to
adjustments in certain circumstances in accordance
with the ICULS Trust Deed’

Any date (which shall be a business day) during the
ICULS Conversion Period on which the ICULS
conversion rights are exercised

Serving a conversion notice in the form as prescribe
in the ICULS Trust Deed fourteen (14) days' prior to
the proposed ICULS Conversion Date to the following
parties:-

(1) I-Berhad and the Facility Agent (in the case
where the ICULS are not listed); or

{ii) the Paying Agent (in the case where the
ICULS are listed)

By surrendering the ICULS with an aggregate nominal
value equivalent to the ICULS Conversion Price for
canceilation by the Issuer

Any fractional Shares arising from the conversion of
the ICULS shall be disregarded

The ICULS shall constitute direct, unconditional,
unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the
Issuer and shall at times rank pari passu, without
discrimination, preference or priority among
themselves and shall rank at least pari passu with all

The ICULS Conversion Price of RM0.68 was delermined after taking into account the Share Spiit, the Rights Issue with

Warrants and the Bonus Issue, further details of which are set out in Section 3.3 of this Prospectus.
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Status and ranking of new
Shares arising from the
conversion of ICULS

Adjustment to the ICULS
Conversion Price and/or
nominal value of ICULS in
the event of alteration to
the share capital

ICULS holder’s rights to
participate in any
distribution and/or offer of
further securities in the
Issuer

Rights in the event of

winding-up, liquidation or
an event of default

Amendment to the ICULS
holders rights

Events of default

other present and future unsecured and
unsubordinated debts and obligations of I-Berhad
except those which are mandatorily preferred by law

The new Shares to be issued upon conversion of the
ICULS shall, upon allotment and issuance, rank pari
passy in all respects with the then existing Shares,
save and except that they shall not be entitled to any
dividends, rights, allotments and/or other distributions,
which may be declared, made or paid to the
shareholders of the Issuer, the entitlement date of
which precedes the date of allotment of the new
Shares arising from the conversion of ICULS

The Issuer shall make the necessary adjustment to
the ICULS Conversion Price in the event of any
alteration in its share capital on or before the ICULS
Maturity Date, whether by way of rights issue, bonus
issue, consolfidation of shares, subdivision of shares
or reduction of capital howsoever being effected, in
accordance with the provisions of the ICULS Trust
Deed

The ICULS holders are not entitled to participate in
any distribution and/or offer of securities in the Issuer
until and unless such ICULS hoiders shall actually
exercise their {CULS conversion rights

Upon the declaration of event of default by the
Trustee in accordance with the ICULS Trust Deed or
in the event of winding-up or liquidation of the Issuer,
the amount which shall immediately be due and
payable by the Issuer to the ICULS holders shall he
the nominal value of the outstanding ICULS together
with all accrued coupon up to and including the date
of repayment

Save as otherwise provided in the transaction
documents in relation to the ICULS, a special
resoluticn of the ICULS holders is required to sanction
any modification, variation, abrogation or compromise
of or arrangement in respect of the rights of the
[CULS holders against the Issuer

The events of default including but not limited to the
following:

(i) the Issuer fails to pay any amount due and
payable under the ICULS, whether formaily
demanded or not;

{ii) the Issuer fails to pay any amount (other than

such amount due and payable under the
ICULS} due under the transaction documents
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(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vii)

18

on the due date or, if so payable, cn demand
and such failure to pay is not remedied within
seven (7} days from the date such amount is
due or demanded, as the case may be;

the Issuer fails to observe or perfom its
obligations under the ICULS or under any of
the transaction documents or under any
undertaking or arrangement entered into in
connection thereof (other than any covenant
to pay as set out under paragraphs (i) and (ii)
above) and which if capable of remedy, is not
remedied within thirty (30) days after the
Issuer becoming aware of such default;

any other indebtedness of the Issuer
becomes due and payable prior to its stated
maturity or the security created for any other
indebtedness becomes enforceable;

any representation, warranty or statement
which is made by the Issuer under the
transaction documents is or proves to be
incorrect, inaccurate or misieading on or as of
the date made or given or deemed made or
given;

any provision of the transaction documents is
or becomes, for any reason, invalid, illegal,
void or unenforceable which would prevent
the Issuer from or entitle the Issuer to refrain
from performing any of its obligations
thereunder;

the Issuer takes any action or any bona fide
proceedings are commenced or other steps
taken for:

(a) the Issuer to be adjudicated or found
insclvent;

{b) the winding-up or dissolution of the
Issuer either by an order of a court of
competent jurisdiction or by way of
voluntary  winding-up, save and
except to effect a reorganisation of
the business of the Issuer; or

{c) the appointment of a liquidator,
trustee, receiver or similar officer over
the whole or any part of the Issuer's
undertakings, assets, rights or
revenues, other than a winding-up for
the purpose of amalgamation or
reconstruction which  has been
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(viif)

(ix)

(xii)

(xiii)

{xiv)
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previously approved by the trustee
{on behalf of the ICULS holders) or
any order of a court of competent
jurisdiction; or

(d) anything analogous to any of the
events specified above;

the Issuer undergoes any scheme or
reconstruction, arrangement or compromise
pursuant to Section 176 of the Act or the
same has been instituted against it;

the Issuer makes a general assignment or
enters into an arrangement or composition
with or for the benefit of its creditors in
respect of its indebtedness;

the Issuer suspends or ceases or threatens to
suspend or ¢ease to carry on its business;

the Issuer fails to satisfy any judgment
passed against it by any court of competent
jurisdiction and no appeal against such
judgment or an application for a stay of
execution has been made to any appropriate
appellate court within the time prescribed by
taw or such appeal or application for a stay of
execution has been dismissed;

any authorisation, licence, approval, permit or
consent which is required for the lssuer to
carry out its business and/or in relation to the
transaction documents is withheld, withdrawn,
revoked, modified, terminated or invalidated
or has expired and not renewed or is
otherwise not granted or fails to remain in full
force and effect which may materially and
adversely impair or prejudice the business or
operations of the Issuer or the ability of the
Issuer to perform any of its obligations under
the ICULS Trust Deed or to comply with the
terms and conditions of the [CULS or the
transaction documents;

the Issuer repudiates any of the transaction
documents or the Issuer does or causes to be
done any act or thing evidencing an intention
to repudiate any of the transaction
documents;

any of the assets, undertaking, rights or
revenues of the Issuer is seized, nationalised,
expropriated or compulsorily acguired by or
under the authority of any government body;
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Board Lot

ICULS Trust Deed

ICULS Trustee

Governing law and
jurisdiction

or

{xv) any event or events has or have occurred or
situation exists which would or might in the
reasonable opinion of the ICULS Trustee:

{a) materially and adversely affect the
Issuer's ability to perform any of its
obligations under the transaction
documents in accordance with the
terms hereof or thereof; or

{b) materially and adversely change or
would materially and adversely
change the business, assets or
condition (financial or otherwise) of
the Issuer.

Upon the occcurrence of an event of default, the
Trustee may, or if so directed by the ICULS holders
via a special resolution, shall, notwithstanding the
ICULS Maturity Date declare the nominal value of the
outstanding ICULS to be immediately due and
payable, together with the accrued interest up to and
including the date of the repayment and the ICULS
Trustee is entitted to enforce its rights under the
transaction documents

The board size for trading of the ICULS shall be 100
ICULS or such board lots as defined by Bursa
Securities

The ICULS shall be constituted by the ICULS Trust
Deed

TMF Trustees Malaysia Berhad

Laws of Malaysia and the exclusive jurisdiction of the
Courts of Malaysia

Last time and date for acceptance, application and payment for the OFS

The last time and date for acceptance, application and payment for the OFS is 5.00 p.m,
on Tuesday, 30 September 2014, or such later time and date as our Board, the
Sumurwang Board and our Principal Adviser may mutually decide and announce not
later than two (2) Market Days before the stipulated time and date.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ UNDERTAKING AND UNDERWRITING ARRANGEMENT

41 Rights Issue with Warrants

The Rights Issue with Warrants is intended to be undertaken on a full subscription basis.

In this regard, our Company has procured written irrevocable and unconditional

undertakings from our major shareholders, namely Tan Sri Lim Kim Hong, Puan Sri Tey

Siew Thuan, Sumurwang, Sumurwang Capital and Sumur Ventures (“Undertaking

Shareholders”} vide their undertaking letters dated 8 May 2014 to subscribe for their

respective rights entitlement in full under the Rights Issue with Warrants based on their

shareholdings as follows (“Undertakings”):

Shareholdings as at Pursuant to the
9 May 2014" Undertakings
Ordinary Value of
shares of Undertakings

Shareholders RM1.00 each % Rights Shares / Warrants (RM'000)
Tan Sri Lim Kim Hong 457,500 04 1,143,750/ 228,750 789
Puan Sri Tey Siew Thuan 332,142 0.3 830,355/ 166,071 573
Sumurwang 66,790,441 586 166,976,102 / 33,395,220 115,214
Sumurwang Capital 2142857 1.9 5,357,144 /1,071,429 3,696
Sumur Ventures 15,850,009 13.9 39,625,021 /7,925,004 27,341
Total 85,572,949 751 213,932,372 /42,786,474 147,613
Note:

1. Pursuant to the Share Spiit completed on 12 August 2014, our Company’s total ordinary shares-in-

issue increased fo 228,972,712 Shares. Resulting from the Share Split, the fotal number of Shares
held by the Undertaking Shareholders as at the LPD is 171,145,898 Shares, representing 74.7% of
our Company’s issued and paid-up share capital, including Treasury Shares.

Further, in order to ensure that this subscription level is maintained, the Undertaking
Shareholders have also irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken not to dispose any
part or all of their shareholdings in I-Berhad prior to the Entitlement Date and shall
maintain their shareholdings in order to subscribe for their full rights entitlements under
the Rights Issue with Warrants.

The Undertakings represent the commitment by the major shareholders of the Company
to subscribe for their full rights entittement based on their current shareholdings in
I-Berhad.

The Undertaking Shareholders have confirmed via their Undertakings and CIMB has
verified that the Undertaking Shareholders have sufficient financial resources to
subscribe in full for their entittement of the Rights Shares pursuant to the Rights Shares
with Warrants.
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4.2

We had on 28 August 2014 entered into the Underwriting Agreement to underwrite the
remaining portion of the Rights Shares for which no undertaking was obtained from the
Undertaking Shareholders, amounting to 72,283,518 Rights Shares representing
approximately 25.3% of the total Rights Shares ("Underwritten Shares”). The issue
value of the Underwritten Shares is RM49,875,627 with an underwriting commission of
2.15% on the value of the Underwritten Shares based on the Rights Issue Price. The
underwriting commission and all costs relating to the Underwriting Agreement shall be
fully borme by our Company.

OFS

The OFS shall be undertaken on a non-minimum subscription basis and shall be
completed on an as-subscribed basis. In view of this, such OFS ICULS and Excess OFS
ICULS not taken up or not validly taken up by the OFS Entitled Shareholders and/or their
renauncee(s) and/or transferee(s) (if applicable) will remain with Sumurwang.

As a result of this, there will be no underwriting arrangement for the OFS ICULS since
the primary objective of the OFS is to provide the OFS Entitled Shareholders the
opportunity to participate in the ICULS following the completion of the Acquisitions and
not for fundraising purposes.

5. RATIONALE FOR THE RIGHTS ISSUE WITH WARRANTS AND OFS

5.1

The Rights Issue with Warrants

After due consideration of the various funding options available to our Company, our
Board is of the view that the Rights Issue with Warrants is the most appropriate avenue
of fund-raising for I-Berhad, after taking into consideration several major factors including
the following:

{n the Rights Issue with Warrants will enable us to raise funds without incurring
additional interest expense as compared to bank borrowings for its property
development activities including current on-going development proiects in i-City
and other potential development projects in the future, to repay the Phase 1 Debt
(as defined in Section 6.1 of this Prospectus) and to raise additional working
capital for the Group. Furthermore, the Rights Issue with Warrants provides an
opportunity for our Company to raise the necessary funds to participate in the
proposed joint venture to develop a regional retail mall within i-City (further details
of which are set out in Note 1 of Section 6.1 and Section 7 of this Prospectus).
Over subsequent periods, this would allow our Company to preserve cash for
reinvestment and/or operational purposes;

(i)  the funds raised from the Rights Issue with Warrants will also enable our Company
to accelerate our property development plans, particularly in providing the
necessary investable capital and working capital for our Group in light of our
development plans and launches over the next three (3) years. Certain details of
our property development plans are set out in Section 9.4 of this Prospectus;
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(i)  the Rights Issue with Warrants will provide our shareholders with an opportunity to
participate in an equity offering on a pro-rata basis and acquire new Shares at a
discount to prevailing market prices. This serves to reward our shareholders for
their continued support and loyalty to |-Berhad without diluting their interests,
assuming all Rights Entitled Shareholder(s) fully subscribe for their respective
entittements;

(iv) the Rights Issue with Warrants will increase our Company’s shareholders’ funds
and strengthen our balance sheet to better reflect our Group's current scope of
activities. These factors are expected to facilitate the continuous growth and
expansion plans of our Group, in particular our planned property development
activities;

(v) coupled with the Share Split and Bonus Issue, the enlarged share base from the
Rights Issue with Warrants is also expected to enhance the liquidity of our
Company's Shares on the Main Market; and

(viy the free detachable Warrants to be issued together with the Rights Shares allows
the Rights Entitled Shareholder(s} to increase their equity participation in our
Company at a pre-determined price over the tenure of the Warrants which will also
enable our Company to raise further proceeds as and when any of the Warrants
are exercised. The Rights Entitled Shareholder(s) may also benefit from any
potential capital appreciation of the Warrants.

OFS

With the settlement of the purchase consideration for the Acquisitions and the Kia Peng
Land Acquisition, a total nominal value of RM301.30 million ICULS has been
provisionally allotted by I-Berhad and a total nominal value of RM69.00 million RCULS-B
and RM132.00 million RCULS-A has been issued by |-Berhad to Sumurwang and
Sumuracres, respectively. In the event that the ICULS, RCULS-B and the RCULS-A are
converted, the shareholding of the minority shareholders of our Company would be
diluted.

The OFS provides an opportunity for the OFS Entitled Shareholders to participate in the
issuance of the ICULS by being able to subscribe for their entitiement of the OFS ICULS
under the OFS at the nominal value of the ICULS, which is the same basis as the issue
price of the ICULS pursuant to the Acquisitions, and to benefit from the future growth of
our Group. The OFS is also intended to enable the OFS Entitled Shareholders the
opportunity to minimise their dilution in shareholdings (on a converted basis) in our
Company, if all such shareholders subscribe to their respective entittements under the
OFS.
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6.

UTILISATION OF PROCEEDS

6.1

Rights Issue with Warrants

The Rights {ssue Proceeds are proposed to be utilised in the following manner:

Estimated Rights Issue
timeframe of Proceeds
Details of utilisation utilisation RM ‘mil

Property development expenditure and/or activities’ Within 60 months® 160.00
Repayment of amount owing to Sumurwang2 Within 3 months 16.83
General working capital of the Group® Within 24 months 16.66

Estimated expenses in relation to our corporate Within 3 months 4.00

proposals®

Total Rights Issue Proceeds 197.49

Notes:

1.

RM160.00 million from the Rights Issue Proceeds is proposed to be utilised for
our Company’s property development activities and/or investment, including on-going
development projects in i-Cily and other potential development projects in the future, for
example, the development of the Kia Peng Land, the SOHQ Land and the Tower Land,
including acquisition of landbanks for property development.

Expenditure for property development activities shall include, amongst others, contributions
and/or investmenis in respect of joint development of lands such as capital or equily
investment outlay and payment of lfandowners’ entiffements, pre-development feasibility
expenses and costs, and also contribution payments lo the relevant authorities in respect of
property development.

At this functure, the Company has earmarked approximately RM66.54 million of the fotal
allocated funds for its 40% capital contribution into a joint venture company, Central Plaza |-
City Malls Malaysia Sdn Bhd (“Central Plaza I-City Malis” or "JVCo0”) pursuant o the joint
venture with Central Paftana Public Company Limited ("Central Patfana”) via CPN Real
Estate Sdn Bhd and CPN Malls Malaysia Sdn Bhd (collectively, "CPN") to develop a
regional retail mall within the i-City project {“CPN Joint Venture”). Further details regarding
the CPN Joint Venlure and the relail mall are set out in Sections 7 and 9.4 of this
Prospectus.

Our shareholders had on 22 July 2014 approved the CPN Joint Venture af the EGM
convened on the same date. However, in the event that the CPN Joint Venture does not
malferialise, the entire amount of the Rights Issue Proceeds allocated for the CPN Joint
Venture shall be utilised for our Group's other property development expenditure and/or
aclivities as described above.

The amount owing fo Sumurwang by our Company of approximately RM16.83 miilion
("Phase 1 Debt’) is atlributable to the land costs and accrued inferest which has been
assigned to Sumurwang by The Peak @ KLCC arising from the deferred payment for land
costs as at 31 October 2013 for the development of certain parcels of Phase 1 of the i-City
project known as Blocks J, K & L and I-SOVO. On 26 November 2013, The Peak @ KLCC
and Sumurwang (a major shareholder of I-Berhad) had executed a deed of assignment to
assign the Phase 1 Debt from The Peak @ KLCC o Sumurwang as partial seftflement of a
debt owed by The Peak @ KLCC to Sumurwang, resulting in the obligation of |-Berhad to
satisfy the Phase 1 Debt in favour of Sumurwang instead of The Peak @ KLCC. Puan Sn
Tey Siew Thuan, who is a director and shareholder of Sumurwang, is also the sibling of
Madam Tay Siew Lian, a director and substantial shareholder of The Peak @ KLCC.
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5.

Under the terms of the joint venlure agreement dated 10 February 2009 entered into
between 1-Berhad and The Peak @ KLCC for the development of the i-City project ("JVA
2009”) which is located on piece of freehold land previously held under Geran 27449, Lot
4598, Mukim of Bukit Raja, District of Petaling, Selangor Darul Ehsan, of which the parent
titte has subsequently been subdivided info six (6) block fitles (“Master Land"), I-Berhad
and The Peak @ KLCC had agreed that the purchase consideration for the parcels of lands
located on Phase 1 of the Master Land shall be fixed at RM8§0.00 per square foot. The
payment can be deferred subject to interest based on the Base Lending Rate of Malayan
Banking Berhad (“MBB BLR").

The Phase 1 Debt represents the amount due for Blocks J, K & L and I-SOVQ that have
been developed by I-Berhad ta date under the JVA 2009,

The immediate settlermnent of the Phase 1 Debt will result in interest savings amounting fo
approximately RMB800,000 per annum, based on the MBB BLR of 6.62% per annum over
the past 12 months up to the LPD.

in the event thal at the time of settfement upon completion of the Rights Issue with
Warrants, the Phase 1 Debt is lower than RM16.83 million, any such excess will be
reaffocated and utilised for the general working capital of cur Group as outlined in note 3
helow.

In connection with the Rights Issue with Warrants, the Phase 1 Debt will be directly set-off
against part of the subscription monies of the Rights Shares, due from Sumurwang fo /-
Berhad in respect of its entitlement and/or excess applications made by Sumurwang, if any,
of an equivalent amount to the Phase 1 Debt.

Represenls funds allocated for our Group’s general working capital requirements, including
financing our Group’s daily operations and operaling expenses, which includes but is not
fimited to sales and markeling expenses; paymenls to conlraclors, suppliers and
consultants, general administrative and other operating expenses, as well as for general
corporale purposes.

The estimated expenses in relation to our corporate proposals recently undertaken
comprise of estimated professional fees, brokerage, underwriting commission, printing,
other fees and miscellaneous expenses and contingencies incurred as a result of the
corporate proposals. The cotporate proposals consist of the Share Split, the Kia Peng Land
Acquisition, the SOHO Land Acquisition, the Tower Land Acquisition, the JVA 2009
ratification, the Rights issue with Warrants and those outlined in Section 7 of this
Prospectus.

If the actual expenses are higher than those estimated, the deficit will be funded out of the
amount allocated for general working capital. However, if the actual expenses are fower
than those estimated, the excess will be allocated and utilised for the general working
capital of our Group.

Taking into consideration the timeframe for the development of the i-City Project.

The gross proceeds to be raised from the exercise of Warrants amounting up to
RM96.74 million will be utilised for the general working capital of our Group {see note 3
above) over the tenure of the Warrants of five (5) years.

OFSs

The gross proceeds arising from the OFS of up to approximately RM144.57 million shall
accrue entirely to Sumurwang. The cost and fees associated with the OFS will be borne
by Sumurwang, the offeror of the OFS ICULS under the OFS. Such associated costs and
fees are estimated to be approximately RM&00,000.
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7.

OTHER CORPORATE EXERCISES

Save as disclosed below, our Board confirms that there is no other outstanding corporate
exercise announced but not completed by our Company as at the LPD:

(i)

(it)
(iii}
(iv)

(vi}

the Kia Peng Land Acquisition, which was subsequently completed on 27 August
2014;

the SOHO Land Acquisition, which was subsequently completed on 27 August 2014;
the Tower Land Acquisition, which was subsequently completed on 27 August 2014;
the Bonus Issue, the details of which are set out in Section 2.1 of this Prospectus;

the establishment of our Company's long term incentive plan of up to 10% of our
Company’s issued and paid-up share capital (excluding Treasury Shares) for eligible
employees and eligible directors of our Group (“LTIP"). Our Shareholders had on 22
July 2014 approved the LTIP at the EGM held on the same date. As at the LPD, the
LTIP has yet to be effected in accordance with the requirements of the MMLR; and

the proposals relating to the CPN Joint Venture that entail the following:

{a) The joint venture and shareholders’ agreement dated 19 July 2013 entered into
between I-City Properties Sdn Bhd (a wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company) (“ICP”), |-Berhad, CPN, Central Plaza I-City Malls, Central Plaza |-
City Sdn Bhd and Central Plaza I-City Real Estate Sdn Bhd for the
development and management of a regional retail mall to be known as “Central
Plaza @ I-City” on a part of the freehold land held under Geran 311885, Lot
16965 and Geran 311886, Lot 16966, Seksyen 7, Bandar Shah Alam, District
of Petaling, State of Selangor Darul Ehsan measuring approximatety 11.12
acres ("Mall Land™};

(b)  The acquisition by Central Plaza I-City Real Estate Sdn Bhd, a 40%-owned
associate of ICP, of the Mall Land from The Peak @ KLCC for a purchase
consideration of approximately RM72.66 million to be settled entirely by cash
pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 19 July 2013 ("Mall Land
Acquisition”); and

(¢)  The arrangement between 1-Berhad and The Peak @ KLCC in relation to the
treatment of the purchase consideration from the disposal of the Mall Land by
The Peak @ KLCC to Central Plaza 1-City Real Estate Sdn Bhd pursuant to the
termination and payment agreement dated 1 April 2014 entered intc between
The Peak @ KLCC and I-Berhad (“Arrangement”),

The CPN Joint Venture, the Mall Land Acquisition and the Arrangement were
approved by our shareholders on 22 July 2014 at the EGM held on the same date. As
at the LPD, the CPN Joint Venture, the Mall Land Acquisition and the Arrangement
are pending meeting their various conditions precedents.
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8. RISK FACTORS

Prior to making an investment decision, you should carefully consider, along with the other
matters set forth in this Prospectus, the risk factors and investment considerations below. You
should note that the following list is not an exhaustive list of all the risks that we face or risks
that may develop in the future. These and other risks, whether known or unknown, may have a
material adverse effect on us or on our Shares or on other securities issued by us.

8.1 Risks relating to the Rights Issue with Warrants

(M)

(i)

(iii)

Market Price for the Shares

A variety of factors could cause the prices of our Shares to fluctuate, including
large block trades of our Shares on the open market, announcements of
developments relating to our Group’s business, fluctuations in our
operating/financial results or revenue levels and changes in regulatory
requirements or market conditions.

in addition, external factors such as economic, political and industry conditions
and stock market sentiments/liquidity could also adversely affect the prices of our
Shares.

There can be no assurance that the market price of our Shares (together with the
Rights Shares and any new Shares issued from time to time pursuant to the
exercise of the Warrants) will be traded above the TERP (after completion of the
Rights Issue with Warrants) or TEAP {after completion of the Bonus Issue). There
can also be no assurance that the market price of the Rights Shares upon or
subsequent to its listing and quotation will be at a leve! that meets the specific
investment objectives or targets of any heolder of the Rights Shares.

No prior market for the Warrants

There is no prior market for the Warrants, and as such there is no assurance that
an active market for the Warrants will develop upon listing and quotation on the
Main Market, or if developed, that such a market may be sustained or adequately
liguid during the tenure of the Warrants.

The market value of the Warrants may be subject to fluctuation

Cur Board believes that a variety of factors could cause the future market price
performance of the Warrants to fluctuate, including but not limited to trades of
substantial amount of the Warrants on Bursa Securities in the future, fluctuation in
the market price of the underlying Shares, announcernents of corporate
developments relating to our Group’s business and the future financial
performance of our Group.

The future price performance of the Warrants will also depend upon various
external factors, such as the prospects of the property industry in which our Group
operates, the economic, monetary and political and industry conditions, outlook of
interest rates, the performance of regicnal and world bourses as well as the
investors’ sentiments and liguidity in the local stock market.
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(iv)

Failure or delay in implementing the Rights Issue with Warrants

There is a risk that the Rights Issue with Warrants may be delayed or fail to be
implemented if there is a force majeure event or material adverse change of
events/circumstances which is beyornd the control of our Group, CIMB or the
Underwriter, arising during the implementation of the Rights Issue with Warrants.

There are also certain circumstances where the Underwriter may terminate the
Underwriting Agreement on the occurrence of any of the termination events set out
in the Underwriting Agreement, which events would, in the opinion of the
Underwriter (i) result in a material adverse fluctuation or material adverse
conditions in the securities market in Malaysia; (ii} materially prejudice the success
of the Rights Issue with Warrants or the dealings in our Shares, the Rights Shares
andfor the Warrants in the secondary market; (iii} be likely to have a material
adverse effect on the condition (financial or otherwise), prospects, results of
operations, properties or assets of our Company or of our Group as a whole; or
(iv) be commercially impracticable for the Underwriter to proceed with the Rights
Issue with Warrants on the terms and in the manner contemplated in this
Prospectus and the Underwriting Agreement. Apart from events related to breach
or illegality, such other events may include for example:

{a) suspension, moratorium or limitation on trading in shares or securities
generally on Bursa Securities; or

(b} minimum or maximum prices of trading having been fixed and maximum
ranges for prices for securities being required by Bursa Securities or by order
of any governmental authority; or

(c) a general moratorium on commercial banking acfivities or foreign exchange
rating or securities settlement or clearing services in or affecting Malaysia.

Notwithstanding the risks, our Company will exercise its best endeavours to
ensure the successful implementation of the Rights Issue with Warrants. However,
there can be no assurance that the abovementioned factors/events will not occur
and cause a delay in or the failure to implement the Rights Issue with Warrants. In
the event that the Rights Issue with Warrants is aborted, the Company will repay
without interest all monies received from the applicants in accordance with Section
243 of the CMSA.

In the event the Rights Shares and Warrants have been aliotted to successiul
shareholders and the Rights Shares with Warrants is aborted/ terminated, and in
the event that such allotment is not void under Section 243 of the CMSA, a return
of monies to all holders of the Rights Shares could only be achieved by way of
cancellation of share capital as provided under the Act and its related rules. Such
canceliation requires the sanction of our shareholders by special resolution in a
general meeting, consent of our creditors (unless dispensation with such consent
has been granted by the High Court of Malaya) and the confirmation of the High
Court of Malaya. There can be no assurance that such monies can be recovered
within a short period of time or at all in such circumstances.
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8.2

Risks relating to the OFS and ICULS

U]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The ICULS may not be listed or quoted on Bursa Securities

There may be a risk that the ICULS cannot be listed or guoted on Bursa
Securities. The OFS is proposed to also facilitate the listing of the ICULS and it will
be listed subject to Bursa Securities’ approval and the requirements or conditions
as may be determined or imposed by Bursa Securities, including having sufficient
spread to maintain an orderly market.

Although our Company will exercise our best endeavour to ensure the successful
listing of and quotation for the ICULS, there can be no assurance that the above
events will not occur. In the event that the ICULS are not listed on the Main
Market, OFS Entitted Shareholders who successfuily apply for the OFS ICULS wiill
hold unlisted ICULS with the continued ability to enjoy coupons and to convert the
ICULS into new Shares.

No prior market for the ICULS

There is no prior market for the ICULS, and as such there is no assurance that an
active market for the ICULS will develop upon listing and guotation on the Main
Market, or if deveioped, that such a market may be sustained or adequately liquid
during the tenure of the ICULS.

The market value of the ICULS may be subject to fluctuation

Our Board helieves that a variety of factors could cause the future market price
performance of the ICULS to fluctuate, including but not limited to trades of
substantial amount of the ICULS on Bursa Securities in the future, fluctuation in
the market price of the underlying Shares, announcements of corporate
developments relating to our Group’'s business and the future financial
performance of our Group.

The future price performance of ICULS will also depend upon various external
factors, such as the prospects of the property industry in which our Group
operates, the economic, monetary and political and industry conditions, outiook of
interest rates, the performance of regional and world bourses as well as the
investors’ sentiments and liquidity in the local stock market.

Credit risk of the ICULS

The ICULS shall constitute direct, unconditional and unsecured obligations of our
Company and subject to the provisions contained in the ICULS Trust Deed, must
at all times rank pari passu, without discrimination, preference or priority between
themselves and must rank at least pari passu with all present and future direct,
unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated debts and obligations of our
Company except for those which are preferred by law. Moving forward, there is no
assurance that the financial performance of our Group would be profitable to
sustain the financial condition of our Group at a satisfactory level to support the
value of the ICULS and/or generate sufficient cash flows to service the semi-
annual coupon payments when due as the ability to service the coupon payments
is dependent on our Company generating sufficient revenue and cashflow.
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However, our Company will endeavour to fulfil the obligation to service the coupon
payments by maintaining prudent cashflow management and monitor our cashflow
position regularly to avoid any event of default.

In the event of the ICULS becoming payable upon the occurrence of an event of
default pursuant to the ICULS Trust Deed, the amount which is immediately due
and payable by our Company to the ICULS holders shall be the nominal value of
the outstanding ICULS together with the accrued interest up to and including the
date of repayment.

Failure or delay in implementing the OFS

The OFS is exposed to risk that it may be delayed or fail to be implemented if
there is a force majeure event or a material adverse change of
events/circumstances which is beyond the control of our Group, Sumurwang or
CIMB, arising during the implementation of the OFS.

Notwithstanding the risks, our Company and Sumurwang will exercise its best
endeavours to ensure the successful implementation of the OFS. However, there
can be no assurance that the abovementioned factors/events will not occur and
cause a delay in or the failure to implement the OFS. In the event that the OFS is
aborted, the Company will repay without interest all monies received from the
applicants in accordance with Section 243 of the CMSA.

8.3 Business and operational risks

(i)

Competition

Qur Group’s property development business faces competition from various
competitors, including local and foreign property developers, all vying for
strategically located and reasonably priced landbanks. The property developrment
market is highly competitive and any oversupply of properties due to a mismatch in
supply and demand will intensify the level of competition which may, amongst
others, affect pricing and thus affecting the overall financial performance of our
Group. :

I-Berhad however, will continue to take measures to mitigate competition risk such
as conducting market intelligence surveys, monitoring and adjusting development
and marketing strategies in response to changing economic conditions and market
demand.

The CPN Joint Venture also faces competition from various competitors, including
both existing and new retail malls/commercial complexes to be developed. The
retail mall market is highly competitive and any oversupply of retail
malls/commercial complexes due to a mismatch in supply and demand will
intensify the level of competition which may, amongst others, affect yields and
occupancy rates of the Central Plaza @ |-City mall.

As the development of any competitive retail malils/ commercial complexes outside
of the Master Land is not within the control of the JVCo, it should be noted that the
development of Central Plaza @ [|-City mall is earmarked to be the only sizable
retail complex to be developed on the Master Land. Notwithstanding this, there
can be no assurances that the financial position and/or performance of the said
development would not be adversely affected due to the increase in the level of
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(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

competition from other retail malls/commercial complexes within the wider market
catchment area.

Joint venture risks

Our Group may enter inte joint ventures with other parties for the purpose of
property development activities, similar to the CPN Joint Venture. There is no
assurance that the anticipated benefits from such joint ventures, including that of
the GPN Joint Venture will be realised and our Group will be able to generate
sufficient revenue or returns to offset the associated costs from the development
projects and/or the invested capital in the respective joint ventures.

Nevertheless, our Board has and will continue to exercise due care in considering
the risks and benefits associated with joint ventures, including that of the CPN
Joint Venture and will take appropriate measures when considerating such
ventures.

Economic, political and regulatory considerations

Adverse developments in political, economic and regulatory conditions in Malaysia
could materially and adversely affect the financial prospects of our Group. Political
and economic uncertainties include but are not limited to, decline in Malaysia's
economy, a decline in Malaysia’s real estate market conditions, adverse changes
to utilities rates, changes in labour faws, availability of labour, a switch in political
leadership andfor changes in the government’s policies on housing/ real estate,
property development, interest rates, methods of taxation and licensing
regulations. These factors affect all players in the property industry and are
generally beyond the management’s control.

As these changes are beyond the control of cur Group, we will continuously take
reascnable steps to mitigate the above risks and to respond and adapt to the ever-
changing economic and regulatory environment in order to alleviate any difficulties
arising from the changes in the political, economic and regulatory circumstances
should they arise in future. Notwithstanding the above, there can be no assurance
that these changes will not materially affect our Group.

Delays in commencement and completion

The timely completion of property development projects are dependent on many
external factors that are beyond the control of our Group, including inter alia,
obtaining the necessary approvals from relevant authorities, the availability of
construction materials in adequate amounts and the satisfactory performance of
the appointed building contractors and consultants.

However, our Group will seek to mitigate such risks by closely monitoring the
progress of our devefopment projects and will endeavour to promptly rectify any
setback in order to ensure the timely completion of the developments,

Development risks

Our existing developments, including those relating to the Kia Peng Land, SOHO
Land and the Tower Land are subject to risks inherent to property development
such as oversupply of properties in their surrounding areas, land price escalation,
changes in demand for types of residential and commerciai properties, labour and
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

material supply shortages and fluctuations in the prices of building materials and
costs of labour.

The development of the Central Plaza @ !-City mall is also subject to risks
inherent to retail mall development such as oversupply of retail malls in the
surrounding areas of the Mall Land, changes in dermand for types of retail malls,
labour and material supply shortages and fluctuations in the prices of building
materials and costs of labour, which may adversely affect the financial
performance of the CPN Joint Venture, as well as the expected capital contribution
of ICP in the CPN Joint Venture.

Our Group intends to limit these risks by implementing prudent business
strategies, conducting continuous reviews of its operations as well as leveraging
on its experienced and capable management team, including that of CPN in retaii
development and management. Notwithstanding this, there can be no assurance
that development risks will not have an adverse impact on the financial position
and/or performance of our development projects when it is completed.

Compulsory acquisition

Pursuant to the Land Acquisition Act, 1960, the Government has the power to
compulsorily acquire any land in Malaysia in accordance with the aforesaid act. In
the event of any compulsory acquisition of land, the amount of compensation to be
awarded shall be computed on the basis prescribed in the First Schedule of the
Land Acquisition Act, 1960.

If all or any portion of our Group's landbank is compulsorily acquired by the
Government at any point in time, the amount of such compensation may be less
than the market price and/or may be less than their acquisition costs, resulting in
an adverse financial impact to our Group. Our Group may also be hampered in
undertaking any future development on any part of the affected parcel(s) of land,
thereby limiting its full developmental potential and/or the financial contribution of
such development to our Company.

Financing and/or funding risk

The availability of adequate financing is crucial to our Group's ability to proceed
with and complete our property development projects according to plan. Such
development projects are expected to be funded from a combination of internal
funds, shareholders’ loans, sales proceeds and bank borrowings.

if for whatsoever reason our Group is unable to procure adequate resources to
finance these property development projects, our Group’s business and financial
condition as well as future growth and prospects may be materially and adversely
affected.

Interest rate risks

Any prolonged adverse movements in interest rates could lead to higher borrowing
costs for our Group, as such costs are typically based on the bank’s base lending
rate. Such higher borrowing costs will in turn affect the profitability of our Group.
While every effort is taken to ensure that no adverse effects arise from interest-
related commitments, there can be no assurance that any potential increase in
interest rates will not have any material impact on our Group's future financial
performance.
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8.4

Forward looking statements / future prospects

Certain statements in this Prospectus are based on historical information, which may not
be reflective of the future results, and others are forward-looking in nature, which are
subject to uncertainties and contingencies.

All forward-looking statements are based on forecasts and assumptions made by our
Group and although believed to be reasonable, are subject to known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors which may affect the actual results, performance or
achievements implied in such forward-looking statements. Such factors include, inter
alia, the risk factors as set out in this section. In light of these and other uncertainties, the
inclusion of forward-looking statements in this Prospectus should not be regarded as a
representation or warranty by our Company that the plans and objectives of our Group
will be achieved.

9. INDUSTRY OVERVIEW AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

9.1

Overview and outlook of the Malaysian economy

The Malaysian economy registered a strong growth of 6.4% in the second quarter of
2014 (1Q 2014: 6.2%). Overall, growth was supported by higher exports and continued
strength in private domestic demand. Real exports of goods and services grew at a
faster pace while growth in real imports of goods and services moderated, resulting in a
significant improvement in net exports. On a gquarter-on-quarter seasonally-adjusted
basis, the economy grew by 1.8% (1Q 2014: 0.8%).

Domestic demand grew by 5.7% in the second quarter of 2014 {(1Q 2014: 7.4%). Private
sector activity remained the key driver of growth during the guarter amid strong
investment and consumption. Public sector spending declined during the quarter, due to
lower public investment and consumption. Private sector activity grew by 8.1% (1Q 2014:
8.8%), above its long-term average of 6.9%. Private investment continued to register
double-digit growth, expanding by 12.1% (1Q 2014:-14.1%). The robust performance
was accounted mainly by investments in the services sector, particularly in dwellings,
transportation and private education, and in the export-oriented manufacturing industry.
Private consumption increased by 6.5% (1Q 2014: 7.1%) in the second quarter.
Household spending remained supported by stable employment conditions and
continued wage growth.

By contrast, public sector expenditure declined by 2.1% (1Q 2014: 2.7%). Public
consumption declined marginally by 1.3% (1Q 2014; 11.2%), reflecting mainly lower
Government spending on emoluments, and supplies and services. Public investment
declined during the guarter, albeit at a slower pace of 3.3% (1Q 2014: -6.4%), attributed
to lower spending on fixed assets by both the Federal Government and public
enterprises.

in terms of total investment, gross fixed capital formation expanded by 7.2% (1Q 2014:
6.3%). By type of assets, this was driven by spending on machinery and equipment
(9.1%; 1Q 2014: -1.8%), amidst a mederation of investment in structures (6.7%; 1Q
2014: 14.7%).

(Source: Malaysian Economy Second Quarter 2014 Report, Bank Negara Malaysia}
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9.2 Overview and outlook of the Malaysian property market and shopping complex
segment

Value added of the construction sector (consisting primarily of residential, non-residential
and civil engineering) grew 12% during the first half of 2013 (January - June 2012:
18.5%) attributed to ongoing civil engineering and residential activities.

The residential subsector expanded 15.7% in the first half of 2013 (January — June 2012:
22%) supported by strong demand and reflected in higher construction activities with
housing starts rising 20.3% to 73,804 units (January — June 2012: 13.8%; 61,351 units).

In the residential segment, two and three-storey terraced houses as well as
condominiums/ apartments accounted for 24.9% (18,401 units} and 22.3% (16,422 units)
of the total starts, respectively. Units from new launches dropped 45.4% to 17,105 units
(January — June 2012: -6.9%; 31,305 units). Sales of new launches remained favourable
with a take-up rate of 21.8% (January — June 2012: 15.6%). In line with the increasing
demand, the property overhang declined 9.5% to 14,576 units (end-June 2012: -27.7%;
16,098 units) amid the better sales performance of the residential segment.

Following the Government’s initiatives to curb speculative activity, the volume of
residential property transactions contracted 12.6% in the first half of 2013 (January —
June 2012: increase of 1.5%), while the value increased marginally by 1% to RM32.9
billion (January — June 2012: 8%; RM32.6 billion). House prices continue to rise, albeit at
a slower pace in 2013. During the 2nd quarter of 2013, the National House Price Index
moderated to 7.8% (Q2 2012: 11.2%). Average all-house prices in Malaysia were at
RM257,605 (Q2 2012: RM238,810), with Kuala Lumpur continuing to record the highest
prices at RM605,711 foliowed by Sabah (RM389,203), Selangor (RM387,412), Sarawak
(RM330,388) and Pulau Pinang (RM298,697).

In the non-residential subsector, construction activity was subdued and declined 1%
(January — June 2012: increase of 12.8%) as reflected in the lower incoming supply,
particularly in the purpose-built office and shopping complex segments. However,
demand for commercial buildings remained stable with the average occupancy rate of
office and retail space at 84.2% and 79.7%, respectively, reflecting sustained demand,
particularly for commercial space located in prime areas.

Growth in the construction sector is projected to increase at a moderate pace of 9.6% in
2014 (2013: 10.6%) due to slower construction activity in the civil engineering subsector
following the completion of several major infrastructure projects. Meanwhile, the
residential subsector is expected to remain strong in view of the increased demand for
housing, particularly from the middle-income group. The implementation of PR1MA
housing project is expected to accelerate to meet the target of providing 80,000 units of
houses for the middle-income group by 2015, Activity in the non-residential subsector is
expected to remain stable, albeit at a moderate pace, supported by buoyant business
and industrial activities as well as improved consurner sentiment.

{Source; Economic Report 2013/2014, Ministry of Finance, Malaysia}
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9.3

9.4

Overview and outlook of the Selangor property market

Selangor property market moderated in the first half of 2013 (H1 2013). There were
40,282 transactions recorded worth RM21.92 billion. As compared to H1 2012, both
number and value of transactions dropped by 17.1% and 4.0% respectively (H1 2012:
48,619 transactions worth RM22.83 billion). Against H2 2012, the number and value of
transactions reduced by 15.9% and 17.0% (H2 2012: 47,894 transactions worth
RM26.41 billion). Residential sub-sector remained the most dominant sector, capturing
78.2% of the total transactions, followed by commercial (8.3%), agricultural (6.9%),
industrial {3.3%) and development land (3.2%).

In the high-rise segment, prices were generally in upward trend with few exceptions.
Prices of low-cost flats in Damansara Damai and Taman Puchong Permai registered
increases of 21.0% and 13.0% respectively to record at RM65,000 to RM88,000.
Meanwhile, apartments in Pusat Bandar Puchong in Petaling witnessed higher gains of
19.0%, fetching at RM265,000 to RM290,000. Other notable increases were recorded in
Desa Aman Puri, Gombak and Bandar Sungai Long, Cheras by 14.5% and 11.1%
respectively. Likewise, prices of condominium units remained strong in Petaling and Huiu
Langat Districts whilst others were stable,

The residential overhang improved in the review period. There were 2,479 units of
residential overhang worth RM1.44 billion. Against H2 2012, the overhang number was
down by 8.5% (H2 2012: 2,709 units), whilst the value increased by 17.1% (H2 2012: RM
1.23 billion). On a similar note, the unsold under construction decreased marginally to
9,080 units, down by 5.2% (H2 2012: 9,574 units) whereas the unsold not constructed
slightly increased by 0.9% (H2 2012: 1,418 units) to 1,431 units.

Simitar movements were recorded for shops sub-sector. Against H1 and H2 2012, the
overhang shrunk by 24.8% and 19.6%, to 328 units worth RM80.07 million. However, the
unsold under construction remained unchanged at 523 units. The unsold not constructed
increased by 69.8% and 93.1% respectively as compared to H1 2012 and H2 2012.

(Source: “H1 2013 Properly Market Report — Selangor”, National Properly Information Centre,
Valuation and Properly Services Depattment, Ministry of Finance, Malaysia)

Prospects of our Group

The i-City master development project which also encompasses the SOHO Land and the
Tower Land is an approximately RM7 billion urban devefopment in Shah Alam and is
master planned as a fuily integrated intelligent city that entails the development of MSC
Malaysia Cyhercentre offices; data centres; corporate office tower; condominiums;
incubator units; a regional shopping mall; hotels; as well as serviced apartments. Having
been awarded MSC Malaysia Cybercentre status and endorsed as a Tourism
Destination by the Ministry of Tourism and declared as an International Park by the
Selangor State Government, i-City is poised to change the Shah Alam landscape
positively.

The “i-SOHQ" development project, located on the SOHO Land, encompasses four {4)
phases that will comprise a mix of hoth residential and commercial units which is
anticipated to have a total gross development value of approximately RM1.9 billion and is
expected to be developed over a span of five {5) years targeted to be completed by
2017.
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The construction of Phase 1 of the “i-SOHO" development began in August 2013 and is
targeted to complete in June 2016. As at the LPD, a total of 637 residential/ retail units
have been scld. The next phase of i-SOHO involves 826 units of i-Suites serviced
residences spread over two (2) 34-storey towers with hotel service standards. This
phase of the development has already commenced and is targeted to complete by
August 2017. As at the LPD, a total of 152 units have been sold.

The conceptual proposal for the development of the Tower Land encompasses a mixed
development of residential service suites, a hotel tower and an office tower with a total
gross floor area of 1.60 million square feet and an estimated gross development value of
approximately RM1.0 billion. )t is currently in the conceptual and planning phase. The
development for the Tower Land is planned to be developed over a span of four (4)
years commencing 2015,

The Mall Land is seen as a highly suitable site for the “"Central Plaza @ I-City” mall as it
possesses good regional accessibility via major expressways and being strategically
located alongside the Federal Highway. As a result, the mall is expected to have a high
level of visibility including supporting the expansion of the market catchment within the
immediate vicinity, namely i-City since it is planned as an urban development and master
planned as a fully integrated intelligent community. The progressive development of i-
City is expected to provide a ready market, particularly where on-site shopper traffic shall
be drawn from the offices, residential units as well as hotels located within walking
distance.

The “Central Plaza @ |-City” mall development is an integral component of the overall i-
City project master plan and the deveicpment of such a retail centre within i-City is
expected to benefit the entire i-City project, particularly the commercial and residential
elements by providing a major retail component to the i-City project with a sizeable retail
area of approximately 1.0 million square feet to support and attract additional office
workers and residential tenancies to the area. This in turn is anticipated to encourage
demand for our developments in the future and provide i-City with positive exposure
when the mall is completed by 2017.

Our Board is of the view that for the “Central Plaza @ I-City” mall to be sustainable and
successful with a tenant mix that includes strong major tenancies which will in turn attract
smaller tenants and pedestrian traffic to the complex, it is imperative that the
development be operator-driven. To this end, the CPN Joint Venture is expected to
optimise the mall’'s developmental potential by leveraging on Central Pattana’s
experience in retail development and management. Central Pattana is one of the largest
retail developer in Thailand and currently manages 24 shopping centres including
CentralWorld, its flagship retail centre iocated in Bangkok, Thailand. The structure and
terms of the CPN Joint Venture will enable Central Pattana to lead the development,
leasing and management of the mall which will enable I-Berhad to focus on developing
other properties within i-City as weil as our leisure business.
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With i-City forming the foundation of our Company’s property development activities, the
Grand i-Residence development will see us grow and expand our property development
portfolio beyond Shah Alam. The Grand i-Residence development on the Kia Peng Land
will enable us to embark and expand our geographical footprint fo include the heart of
Kuala Lumpur, specifically in the strategic and prime locality within the vicinity of the
Kuala Lumpur City Centre (KLCC) area.

The Grand i-Residence development is envisaged to be a fully furnished 50-storey luxury
condominium deveiopment and based on preliminary plans, it shall comprise of 127 units
of SOHO (small office home office) and 315 units of serviced apartments with an
anticipated total gross development value of approximately RM820.00 million. The
development is expected to be developed over a span of five (5) years commencing from
2014 and targeted to complete by mid 2019.

Our Board is of the view that the prospects for property development activities in
Malaysia will remain positive as shown in our Group’s commendable growth in revenue
at a compounded annual growth rate ("CAGR") of 136% per annum from RMZ27.23
million for the FYE 31 December 2011 to RM152.15 million for FYE 31 December 2013.
For the 6-month FPE 30 June 2014, our Group continued to record significant revenue
growth, registering RM115.56 million, a 90% increase over the same period in 2013.

Furthermore, given the location of i-City and the Kia Peng Land with its freehold status
and the integrated projects planned at the location which meets market trend and
demand, our Board envisages that the prospects of the proposed developments for i-City
and the Kia Peng Land will be favourable coupled with our Group’s strong recurring
income base from the leisure segment.

THE REST OF THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK T
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10.

FINANCIAL EFFECTS OF THE CORPORATE EXERCISES

10.1 Share capital

The Warrants and ICULS are not expected to have any immediate effect on the issued
and paid-up share capital of |-Berhad, until such time when the Warrants are exercised
and ICULS are converted into new Shares. Assuming the full exercise of Warrants and
full conversion of ICULS, the proforma effects on the issued and paid-up share capital of
|-Berhad are as follows:

Par No. of Share

value Shares Capital

Details (RM) (‘000} (RM’000)

Issued and paid-up share capital as at the LPD 0.50 228,973 114,486

To be issued pursuant to the Rights Issue with Warrants 0.50 286,216 143,108

0.50 515,189 257,594

To be issued pursuant to the Bonus Issue’ 0.50 103,037 51,519

0.50 618,226 309,113

To be issued pursuant to the full exercise of Warrants? 0.50 68,692 34,346

0.50 686,918 343,459

To be issued pursuant to full conversion of IcuLs® 0.50 443,088 221,544

0.50 1,130,006 565,003

To be issued pursuant to full conversion of the RCULS 0.50 254,326 127,163

0.50 1,384,332 692,166

To be issued pursuant to full granting of the LTIP award 0.50 138,433 69,217

Enlarged issued and paid-up share capital 0.50 1,522,765 761,383
Notes:

1.

For illustration, a total of 103.04 million new Shares shall be {ssued under the Bonus Issue
after taking into account the Rights Issue with Warrants.

Fursuant to the Rights Issue with Warrants, a fotal of approximately 57.24 million Warranis
shall be issued to Rights Entitied Shareholders and as a result of the Bonus [ssue,
additional Warrants amouniting to approximately 11.44 million is also assumed to be issued
in accordance with the terms of the Warrants Deed Poll. As a resull, a total of approximately
68.69 million Warrants is assumed to be exercised into approximately 68.69 million new
Shares.

For illustrative purposes only, assuming the full conversion of the ICULS based on the
ICULS Conversion Price of RMO0.68, the full conversion of the ICULS will entail the issuance
of approximately 443.09 miflion new Shares.

For fllustrative purposes only, assuming no redemption from the Company and based on
the RCULS-A conversion price of RM0.84 and the RCULS-B conversion price of RM0.71,
the full conversion of the RCULS will entail the issuance of a total of approximately 254.33
million new Shares.
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| Company No. 7029-H |

LETTER TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF I-BERHAD IN RELATION TO THE RIGHTS ISSUE WITH
WARRANTS AND OFS (Cont'd)

11.

10.3

10.4

Eamings and EPS

The Rights Issue with Warrants, the OFS and the Bonus Issue are not expected to have
any material effect on the consolidated earnings of our Group. There will be a dilutive
effect to the EPS of our Group for the FYE 31 December 2014 as the Rights Issue with
Warrants and the Bonus Issue are expected to be completed by the fourth (4th) quarter
of 2014.

Moving forward, the Rights Issue with Warrants is expected to contribute positively to the
consolidated earnings of I-Berhad for the ensuing financial years, when the benefits of
the proposed utilisation of the Rights Issue Proceeds (as set out in Section 6.1 of this
Prospectus) are realised.

Nevertheless, the conversion of any ICULS and RCULS into new Shares will result in I-
Berhad’'s consolidated EPS being diluted. Pursuant to their principal terms, the
conversion of the ICULS can occur any time at the option of the holders during the
tenure of the ICULS while the conversion of the RCULS can only occur at the option of
the holders during the period from and including the second (2™) anniversary up to and
including the maturity date of the RCULS. Such dilution will depend on the number of
new Shares issued under the conversion of the ICULS and/or the RCULS.

Convertible securities

Save for the existing RCULS-A, RCULS-B and the provisionally allotted I[CULS, {-Berhad
does not have any other convertible securities as at the date of this Prospectus.
Pursuant to the Rights Issue with Warrants, i-Berhad’s convertible securities will also
include the Warrants.

WORKING CAPITAL, BORROWINGS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND MATERIAL
COMMITMENTS

111

Working capital

Our Board is of the opinion that after taking into consideration the funds generated from
our operations and the banking facilities available as weil as the proceeds from the
Rights Issue with Warrants, our Group will have sufficient working capital to meet our
current core business requirements for a period of twelve (12} months from the date of
this Prospectus.

Borrowings

As at the LPD, our Group had total outstanding borrowings of approximately RM10.00
million, all of which are interest-bearing, details of which are as follows:

RM'000
Short term borrowings
- Short term revolving credit facility 10,000
Sub-total 10,000

43



Company No. 7029-H |

LETTER TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF I-BERHAD IN RELATION TO THE RIGHTS ISSUE WITH
WARRANTS AND OFS (Cont'd)

11.4

As at the LPD, our Group does not have any long term borrowings and foreign
borrowings.

There has not been any default on payments of either interest and/or principal sums in
respect of any borrowings throughout the past one (1) financial year and the subsequent
financial period up to the LPD.

Contingent liabilities

Save as disclosed below, as at the LPD, our Board confirms that there are no material
contingent liabilities incurred or known to be incurred by our Group, which upon being
enforceable, will have a material adverse effect on our Group’s financial position or
business:

RM'000
Contingent liabilities in respect of;
- Bank guarantee issued to third parties 1,814
Total contingent liabilities 1,814

In accordance with the terms of the Tower Land Acquisition, City Centrepoint Sdn Bhd
("CCSB"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company and the purchaser of the Tower
Land, is required to procure a bank guarantee in favour of Central Plaza Real Estate Sdn
Bhd to guarantee the payment on demand of an amount up to RM11,992,600 in respect
of CCSB’s portion of the costs of certain infrastructures within the Tower Land and the
Mall Land which are common to and to be shared between the development of the
Tower Land and the Mall Land (which adjoins the Tower Land). The provision of this
bank guarantee is subject to the completion of the Mall Land Acquisition (as defined in
Section 7(vi}(b) of this Prospectus).

As a portion of the project capitalisation amount for the CPN Joint Venture {as defined in
Section 6.1 of this Prospectus) is expected to be financed via external borrowings, our
Company may be required to provide corporate guarantees {through ICP) as a joint
venture party to the CPN Joint Venture based on its shareholding in Central Plaza I-City
Mall Malaysia Sdn Bhd to support such external borrowings. As at the LPD, such
requirements and quantum have not been finalised between ICP, CPN and potential
borrowers.

Material commitments

Save as disclosed below, as at the LPD, our Board confirms that there are no material
commitments incurred or known to be incurred by our Group which upen being
enforceable, will have a material adverse effect on our Group’s financial position or
business:

RM'000
Contracted but not provided for
- Property, plant and equipment:
{y New leisure attractions 2,941
(i) Hotel development 4,253
- Investment properties 21,696
Total capital commitments 28,890

The material commitments in respect of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
is expected to be funded through internally-generated funds and/or bank borrowings.
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12. INSTRUCTIONS FOR ACCEPTANCE, PAYMENT, SALE/TRANSFER AND EXCESS
APPLICATION OF THE RIGHTS ISSUE WITH WARRANTS

121

12.2

General

FULL INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE ACCEPTANCE AND PAYMENT FOR THE RIGHTS
SHARES WITH WARRANTS PROVISIONALLY ALLOTTED TO YOU AND/OR YQUR
RENOUNCEE(S) AND/OR TRANSFEREE(S) (IF APPLICABLE) AS WELL AS FOR
EXCESS RIGHTS SHARES APPLICATION ARE SET OUT IN THIS PROSPECTUS
AND THE ACCOMPANYING RSF. YOU AND/OR YOUR RENOUNCEE (S} AND/OR
TRANSFEREE(S) (IF APPLICABLE) ARE ADVISED TO READ THIS PROSPECTUS,
THE RSF AND THE NOTES AND THE INSTRUCTIONS THEREIN CAREFULLY. THE
RSF MUST NOT BE CIRCULATED UNLESS ACCOMPANIED BY THIS
PROSPECTUS.

ACCEPTANCE, APPLICATION AND/OR PAYMENT WHICH DOES NOT CONFORM
STRICTLY TO THE TERMS OF THIS PROSPECTUS, THE RSF AND THE NOTES
AND INSTRUCTIONS THEREIN OR WHICH ARE ILLEGIBLE MAY BE REJECTED AT
THE ABSOLUTE DISCRETION OF OUR BOARD.

If you are a Rights Entitled Shareholder, your CDS Account will be duly credited with the
Provisional Aflotments of Rights which you are entitled to subscribe for under the terms
and conditions of the Rights Issue with Warrants. You will find enclosed with this
Prospectus, the NPA notifying you of the crediting of such securities into your CDS
Account and the RSF to enable you to subscribe for the Rights Shares with Warrants
provisionally allotted to you, as well as to apply for Excess Rights Shares if you choose
to do so. This Prospectus and the RSF are also availabie on Bursa Securities’ website
{(http://www.bursamalaysia.com}.

The minimum number of securities that can be subscribed for or accepted is five (§)
Rights Shares, which will be accompanied by cne (1) Warrant. The minimum number of
Warrants that can be issued and allotted with accepted Rights Shares is one (1) Warrant.
Fractions of the Warrant (if any) arising from the Rights Issue with Warrants will be dealt
with by our Board as they may deem fit. You and your renouncee(s) and/or transferee(s)
(if applicable) should take note that a trading board lot of the Rights Shares are 100
Rights Shares and a trading board lot of the Warrants are 100 Warrants.

Our Company shall make an announcement after the Closing Date on the outcome of
the Rights {ssue and Warrants.

The Rights Shares with Warrants will be prescribed securities pursuant to Section 14(5)
of the SICDA and therefore, all dealings will be by book entries through CDS Accounts
and shall be governed by SICDA Rules and the Rules of Bursa Depository. As a Rights
Entitled Shareholder, you andfor your renouncee(s) and/or transferee(s) (if applicable)
are required to have valid and subsisting CDS Accounts when making applications.

Last date and time for acceptance and payment

The last date and time for acceptance and payment for the Rights Shares with Warrants
is 5.00 p.m. on Tuesday 30 September 2014, or such other later time and date as our
Board and our Principal Adviser may mutually decide and announce not later than two
{2) Market Days before the stipulated time and date.
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LETTER TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF 1-BERHAD IN RELATION TO THE RIGHTS ISSUE WITH
WARRANTS AND OFS (Cont’d)

12.3 Procedures for full acceptance and payment

Acceptance of and payment for the Rights Shares with Warrants must be made on the
RSF accompanying this Prospectus and must be completed in accordance with the
notes and instructions contained in the RSF. Acceptances which do not conform to the
terms and conditions of this Prospectus or the RSF or the notes and instructions
contained in these Documents or which are illegible may be rejected at the absolute
discretion of our Board.

If you wish to accept the Provisional Allotments of Rights in full, please complete Parts
I(a) and i of the RSF in accordance with the notes and the instructions therein. Each
completed and signed RSF together with the appropriate remittance must be despatched
by ORDINARY POST at your own risk or DELIVERED BY HAND using the reply
envelope provided to our Share Registrar at the following address:-

Tricor Investor Services Sdn Bhd
Level 17, The Gardens North Tower
Mid Valley City

Lingkaran Syed Putra

59200 Kuala Lumpur

Tel. No. : 603 2264 3883
Fax No.: 603 2282 18386

so as to arrive no later than 5.00 p.m. on Tuesday 30 September 2014, being the last
time and date for acceptance and payment, or such other later time and date as our
Board and our Principal Adviser may mutually decide and announce not later than two
(2) Market Days before the stipulated time and date.

If you lose, mispiace or for any other reasons require another copy of the RSF, you may
obtain additional copies from vyour stockbrokers, Bursa Securities' website
{http://mww.bursamalaysia.com), our Share Registrar at the address stated above or our
registered office.

One {1) RSF can only be used for acceptance of Provisional Aliotments of Rights
standing to the credit of one (1) CDS Account. Separate RSF(s) must be used for the
acceptance of Provisional Allotments of Rights standing to the credit of more than one
(1) CDS Account. if successful, the Rights Shares with Warrants subscribed by you or
your renouncee(s) and/or transferee(s) (if applicable) will be credited into the respective
CDS Accounts where the Provisiona! Allotments of Rights are standing to the credit.

A reply envelope is enclosed with this Prospectus. To facilitate the processing of the
RSF(s) by our Share Registrar, you are advised to use one {1} reply envelope for each
completed RSF.

EACH COMPLETED RSF MUST BE ACCOMPANIED BY REMITTANCE IN “RM” FOR
THE FULL AMOUNT IN THE FORM OF BANKER'S DRAFT(S) OR CASHIER'S
ORDER(S) OR MONEY ORDER(S) OR POSTAL ORDER(S) DRAWN ON A BANK OR
POST OFFICE {N MALAYSIA CROSSED “A/C PAYEE ONLY"” AND MADE PAYABLE
TO “I-BERHAD RIGHTS ISSUE_ACCOUNT” AND ENDORSED ON THE REVERSE
SIDE WITH THE NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS AND CDS ACCOUNT OF THE RIGHTS
ENTITLED SHAREHOLDERS TO BE RECEIVED BY OUR SHARE REGISTRAR. THE
PAYMENT MUST BE MADE IN THE EXACT AMOUNT. ANY ACCEPTANCE WITH
EXCESS OR INSUFFICIENT PAYMENT MAY BE REJECTED AT THE ABSOLUTE
DISCRETION OF OUR BOARD. CHEQUES OR ANY OTHER MODE OF PAYMENTS
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12.4

ARE NOT ACCEPTABLE. DETAILS OF THE REMITTANCES MUST BE FILLED IN
THE APPROPRIATE BOXES PROVIDED IN THE RSF.

If acceptance and payment of your Provisional Allotments of Rights is not received by
our Share Registrar by 5.00 p.m. on Tuesday 30 September 2014, being the last time
and date for acceptance and payment, or such other later time and date as our Board
and our Principal Adviser may mutually decide and announce no later than two (2)
Market Days before the stipulated time and date, such provisional allotment to you
and/or your renouncee(s) (if applicable} shall be deemed to have been declined and shall
be cancelled and such Rights Shares with Warrants not taken up will be first made
available for Excess Rights Shares application and if undersubscribed, will be
underwritten by the Underwriter in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Underwriting Agreement.

NO ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF THE RSF FOR THE RIGHTS 1SSUE
WITH WARRANTS ACCEPTED OR PAYMENT THEREOF WILL BE ISSUED BY OUR
COMPANY OR OUR SHARE REGISTRAR. PROOF OF TIME OF POSTAGE SHALL
NOT CONSTITUTE PROOF OF TIME OF RECEIPT BY OUR SHARE REGISTRAR.
ACCEPTANCES SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO HAVE BEEN ACCEPTED BY
REASON OF REMITTANCE BEING PRESENTED FOR PAYMENT. OUR BOARD
RESERVES THE RIGHT NOT TO ACCEPT ANY ACCEPTANCE OR TO ACCEPT ANY
ACCEPTANCE IN PART ONLY WITHOUT ASSIGNING ANY REASON.

Upon acceptance of your Provisional Allotments of Rights and subject to the payment
being made in accordance to this Prospectus and the notes and instructions in the RSF,
your portion of the Rights Shares with Warrants shall be credited into your CDS Account
and a notice of allotment will be despatched to you by ordinary post to the address as
stated in our Record of Depositors at your own risk within eight (8) Market Days from the
last date of acceptance and payment for the Rights Shares with Warrants or such other
period as may be prescribed by Bursa Securities.

Any acceptance and payment made which has been rejected on the basis that it does
not conform with the terms in this Prospectus or the notes and instructions of the RSF,
the full amount of the payment shall be refunded without interest and shall be deposited
to you within fifteen (15) Market Days from the last date for acceptance and payment of
the Provisional Allotments of Rights by ordinary post to the address as stated in our
Record of Depositors at your own risk.

YOU SHOULD NOTE THAT ALL RSF AND REMITTANCES SO LODGED WITH OUR
SHARE REGISTRAR WILL BE IRREVOCABLE AND CANNOT SUBSEQUENTLY BE
WITHDRAWN.

Procedures for part acceptance

You are entitled to accept part of your entitlement to the Provisional Allotments of Rights
provided that the minimum number of Rights Shares with Warrants that can be
subscribed for or accepted is five (5) Rights Shares.

You must complete Part I{(a) of the RSF by specifying the number of Rights Shares with
Warrants which you are accepting and Part |l of the RSF and deliver the completed and
signed RSF together with the relevant payment to our Share Registrar in the manner as
set out in Section 12.3 above.

YOU ARE ADVISED TO READ AND ADHERE TO THE RSF AND THE NOTES AND
INSTRUCTIONS CONTAINED IN THE RSF.
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i2.5

The portion of the Provisional Allotments of Rights not taken up shall be allotted te any
other person allowed under any laws, regulations or rules to accept the transfer of the
Provisional Allotments of Rights and the balance, if any, will be first made available for
Excess Rights Shares applications and if undersubscribed, wili be underwritten by the
Underwriter in accordance with the terms and conditions set out in the Underwriting
Agreement.

Procedures for sale and/or transfer of the Provisional Allotments of Rights

The Provisional Allotments of Rights are renounceable and will be traded on Bursa
Securities commencing 15 September 2014 until 23 September 2014 at 5.00 p.m.. You
and/or your renouncee(s) (if applicable) may sell/transfer all or part of the Provisional
Allotments of Rights to such person as may be allowed pursuant to the Rules of Bursa
Depository.

If you wish to sell/transfer all or part of your entittement to the Rights Shares with
Warrants you may do s¢ immediately through your stockbroker for the period up to the
last time and date for sale and transfer of the Rights Shares with Warrants (in
accordance with the Rules of Bursa Depository), without first having to request for a split
of Provisional Allotments of Rights credited to your CDS Account,

In sellingftransferring all or part of your Provisional Allotments of Rights, you and/or your
renouncee(s) (if applicable) need not deliver any documenit (including the RSF), to your
stockbroker. However, you andfor your renouncee(s) (if applicable) must ensure that
there is sufficient Provisional Allotment of Rights in your CDS Account for settlement of
the sale/transfer.

Renouncee(s) or transferee(s) of the Provisional Allotments of Rights may obtain a copy
of this Prospectus and the RSF from their stockbrokers or from our Share Registrar or at
our Registered Office. This Prospectus and the RSF are also available on Bursa
Securities website at (http://www.bursamalaysia.com).

If you andfor your renouncee(s) (if applicable) have sold/transferred only part of your
entittement of the Rights Shares with Warrants, you may still accept the balance of your
entittements to the Rights Shares with Warrants by completing Parts 1(a) and I of the
RSF and deliver the completed RSF together with the full amount payable on the
balance of your entittement to our Share Registrar in accordance with the instructions set
out in Section 12.3 above.

THE WARRANTS SHALL ONLY BE ISSUED TO THE RIGHTS ENTITLED
SHAREHOLDERS AND/OR THEIR RENOUNCEE(S) AND/OR TRANSFEREE(S) (IF
APPLICABLE) WHO SUBSCRIBE FOR THE RIGHTS SHARES PURSUANT TO THE
RIGHTS ISSUE WITH WARRANTS. FOR AVOIDANCE OF DOUBT, THE RIGHTS
SHARES AND THE WARRANTS ARE NOT SEPARATELY RENOUNCEABLE.
SHOULD THE RIGHTS ENTITLED SHAREHOLDERS RENOUNCE ALL OR ANY
PART OF THEIR ENTITLEMENTS TO THE RIGHTS SHARES, THEY WILL NOT BE
ENTITLED TO THE WARRANTS ATTACHED THERETO. THE RENUNCIATION OF
THE RIGHTS SHARES BY THE RIGHTS ENTITLED SHAREHOLDERS WILL
ACCORDINGLY ENTAIL THE RENUNCIATION OF THE WARRANTS TO BE ISSUED
TOGETHER WITH THE RIGHTS SHARES. NONETHELESS, THE WARRANTS WILL
BE DETACHED FROM THE RIGHTS SHARES IMMEDIATELY UPON ISSUE AND
WILL BE TRADED SEPARATELY ON THE MAIN MARKET.
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12.6 Procedures for Excess Rights Shares application

If you wish to apply for additional Rights Shares with Warrants in excess of your
entitiement, you may do so by completing Part I(b) of the RSF (in addition to Parts 1(a)
and ') and forward it with a separate remittance for the full amount payable on the
Excess Rights Shares applied for, to our Share Registrar not later than 5.00 p.m. on
Tuesday 30 September 2014 being the last time and date for acceptance and payment
or such other later time and date as our Board and our Principal Adviser may mutually
decide and announce not later than two (2) Market Days before the stipulated time and
date.

PAYMENT FOR THE EXCESS RIGHTS SHARES APPLIED FOR SHOULD BE MADE
IN THE SAME MANNER DESCRIBED IN SECTION 12.3 ABOVE EXCEPT THAT THE
BANKER'S DRAFT(S) OR CASHIER’'S ORDER(S) OR MONEY ORDER(S) OR
POSTAL ORDER(S) DRAWN ON A BANK OR POST OFFICE IN MALAYSIA SHALL
BE CROSSED “A/C PAYEE ONLY” AND MADE PAYABLE TO “I-BERHAD EXCESS
RIGHTS ISSUE_ACCOUNT”, AND ENDORSED ON THE REVERSE SIDE WITH YOUR
NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS AND YOUR CDS ACCOUNT NUMBER. APPLICATIONS
ACCOMPANIED BY PAYMENTS OTHER THAN IN THE MANNER STATED ABOVE
OR WITH EXCESS OR INSUFFICIENT REMITTANCES MAY BE REJECTED AT THE
ABSOLUTE DISCRETION OF OUR BOARD. CHEQUES OR ANY OTHER MODE OF
PAYMENTS ARE NOT ACCEPTABLE. DETAILS OF THE REMITTANCES MUST BE
FILLED IN THE APPROPRIATE BOXES PROVIDED IN THE RSF.

it is the intention of our Board to allocate the Excess Rights Shares, on a fair and
equitable basis in the following priority:

(i firstly, to minimise the incidence of odd lots;

(il secondily, for allocation to the Rights Entitled Shareholder(s) who have applied for
Excess Rights Shares on a pro-rata basis and in board lots, calculated based on
their respective shareholdings as at the Entitlement Date;

(i)  thirdly, for allocation to the Rights Entitled Shareholder{s) who have applied for the
Excess Rights Shares on a pro-rata basis and in board lots, calculated based on
the quantum of their respective Excess Rights Shares appiied for; and

{iv) fourthly, for allocation to renouncee(s) andfor transferee(s} who have applied for
the Excess Rights Shares on a pro-rata basis and in board lots, calculated based
on the quantum of their respective Excess Rights Shares applied for.

Nevertheless, our Board reserves the right to allot the Excess Rights Shares applied for
under Part I{b} of the RSF in such manner as our Board deems fit and expedient and in
the best interest of our Company subject always to such allocation being made on a fair
and equitabie basis, and that the intentions of our Board as set out above is achieved.
Our Board reserves the right to accept the Excess Rights Shares application in full or in
part, without assigning any reason thereof.

In the event there are still unsubscribed Rights Shares with Warrants after allocating ali
the Excess Rights Shares applied for, the remaining unsubscribed Rights Shares with
Warrants will be subscribed by the Underwriter in accordance to the terms and
conditions of the Underwriting Agreement.
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12.7

NO ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT FOR THE EXCESS RIGHTS SHARES
APPLIED OR PAYMENT THEREOF WILL BE ISSUED BY OUR COMPANY OR OUR
SHARE REGISTRAR. PROOF OF TIME OF POSTAGE SHALL NOT CONSTITUTE
PROOF OF TIME OF RECEIPT BY OUR SHARE REGISTRAR.

In respect of unsuccessful or partially successful Excess Rights Shares applications, the
full amount or the surplus application monies, as the case may be, will be refunded
without interest and shall be despatched to you within fifteen (15) Market Days from the
last day for application and payment for the Excess Rights Shares by ordinary post to the
address as shown in our Record Of Depositors at your own risk.

However, if you are successful, notices of allotment will be despatched by the Share
Registrar to you by ordinary post to the address as shown in our Record of Depositors at
your own risk within eight (8) Market Days from the last day for application and payment
for the Excess Rights Shares or such other period as may be prescribed by Bursa
Securities.

ACCEPTANCES SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO HAVE BEEN ACCEPTED BY
REASON OF REMITTANCE BEING PRESENTED FOR PAYMENT. OUR BOARD
RESERVES THE RIGHT NOT TO ACCEPT ANY ACCEPTANCE OR TO ACCEPT ANY
ACCEPTANCE IN PART ONLY WITHOUT ASSIGNING ANY REASON.

YOU SHOULD NOTE THAT ALL RSF AND REMITTANCES SO LODGED WITH OUR
SHARE REGISTRAR WILL BE IRREVOCABLE AND CANNOT SUBSEQUENTLY BE
WITHDRAWN.

Procedures for acceptance by renouncee(s)/transferee(s)

A renouncee or transferee who wishes to accept the Provisional Allotments of Rights,
must obtain a copy of the RSF from his stockbroker, Bursa Securities’ website
{http://'www.bursamalaysia.com), our Share Registrar or at our registered office,
complete the RSF in accordance with the notes and instructions therein and submit the
same together with the appropriate remittance.

The procedure for acceptance, selling or transferring of the Provisional Allotments of
Rights, applying for Excess Rights Shares and/or payment is the same as that which is
applicable to the Rights Entitled Shareholder(s) described in Sections 12.3 to 12.6 of this
Prospectus.

If you wish to obtain a copy of this Prospectus and/or accompanying RSF, you can also
request for the same from your stockbroker, our Share Registrar, or Bursa Securities’
website at (hitp://www.bursamalaysia.com).

THE RENOUNCEE(S)/TRANSFEREE(S) ARE ADVISED TO READ, UNDERSTAND
AND CONSIDER CAREFULLY THE CONTENTS OF THIS PROSPECTUS AND
ADHERE TO THE NOTES AND INSTRUCTIONS CONTAINED IN THIS PROSPECTUS
AND RSF CAREFULLY.

THE LAST TIME AND DATE FOR ACCEPTANCE AND PAYMENT FOR THE RIGHTS
SHARES WILL BE AT 5.00 P.M. ON TUESDAY 30 SEPTEMBER 2014, OR SUCH
OTHER LATER TIME AND DATE AS OUR BOARD AND QUR PRINCIPAL ADVISER
MAY MUTUALLY DECIDE AND ANNOUNCE NOT LESS THAN TWO (2) MARKET
DAYS BEFORE THE STIPULATED TIME AND DATE.
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13. INSTRUCTIONS FOR ACCEPTANCE, PAYMENT, SALE/TRANSFER AND EXCESS
APPLICATION OF THE OFS

13.1 General

FULL INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE ACCEPTANCE AND PAYMENT FOR THE OFS
ICULS PROVISIONALLY OFFERED TO YOU AND/OR YOUR RENOUNCEE(S)
AND/OR TRANSFEREE(S) (IF APPLICABLE} AS WELL AS FOR EXCESS OFS
ICULS APPLICATION ARE SET OUT IN THIS PROSPECTUS AND THE
ACCOMPANYING OAF. YOU AND/OR YOUR RENOUNCEE(S) AND/OR
TRANSFEREE(S) (IF APPLICABLE) ARE ADVISED TO READ THIS PROSPECTUS,
THE OAF AND THE NOTES AND THE INSTRUCTIONS THEREIN CAREFULLY. THE
OAF MUST NOT BE CIRCULATED UNLESS ACCOMPANIED BY THIS
PROSPECTUS.

ACCEPTANCE, APPLICATION AND/OR PAYMENT WHICH DOES NOT CONFORM
STRICTLY TO THE TERMS OF THIS PROSPECTUS, THE OAF AND THE NOTES
AND INSTRUCTIONS THEREIN OR WHICH ARE ILLEGIBELE MAY BE REJECTED AT
THE ABSOLUTE DISCRETION OF OUR BOARD AND/OR THE SUMURWANG
BOARD.

If you are an OFS Entitled Shareholder, your CDS Account will be duly credited with the
Provisional Offer of ICULS for which you are entitled to subscribe for under the terms
and conditions of the OFS. You will find enclosed with this Prospectus, the NPO notifying
you of the crediting of such number of Provisional Offer of ICULS into your CDS Account
and the OAF to enable you to accept and make payment for the Provisional Offer of
ICULS to you, as well as to apply and make payment for any Excess OFS ICULS, if you
choose to do so. This Prospectus and the OAF are also available on Bursa Securities’
website (hitp://www . bursamalaysia.com).

The minimum number of OFS ICULS that can be subscribed for is five (6) OFS 1CULS.
You and your renouncee(s)/transferee(s) (if applicable) should take note that a trading
board lot of the ICULS comprises 100 ICULS or RM50.00 nominal vaiue of the ICULS.

QOur Company shall make an announcement after the Closing Date on the outcome of
the OFS and whether the ICULS are to be listed or not.

In the event that the ICULS are to be listed, the ICULS shall be prescribed securities
pursuant to Section 14(5) of the SICDA and therefore, all dealings will be by book entries
through CDS Accounts and shall be governed by SICDA Rules and the Rules of Bursa
Depository. As an OFS Entitled Shareholder, you and/or your renouncee(s} and/or
transferee(s) (if applicable) are required to have valid and subsisting CDS Accounts
when making applications.

In the event that the ICULS are not te be listed, the ICULS shall be issued under FAST
and RENTAS and shall be securities listed on SSDS. Any deatings in the ICULS will be
subject to, amongst others, the Central Securities Depository and Paying Agency Rules
and any other relevant rules and regulations. If you and/or your renouncee(s) and/or
transferee(s) (iff applicable) are SSDS Participants, please provide your valid and
subsisting Own Securities Account number in addition to your CDS Account number
when making applications. For OFS Entitled Shareholders and renouncee(s} and/or
transferee(s) (if applicable) that are not SSDS Participants or for those who did not
provide their Qwn Securities Account number, the ICULS will be held by Pacific Trustees
Berhad, as custodian nominated by I-Berhad to hold the ICULS in its securities account
raintained with a SSDS Parlicipant on behalf of you or your renouncee(s) and/or
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transferee(s) (if applicable) favour. The cost of setting up the Aggregate Customers’
Securities Account shall be borne by [-Berhad at no additional expense to the
subscribers.

Further details are set out in Section 3.1 of this Prospectus.
Last date and time for acceptance and payment

The last date and time for acceptance and payment of the OFS ICULS is at 5.00 p.m. on
Tuesday 30 September 2014 or such other later date and time as our Board, the
Sumurwang Board and our Principal Adviser may mutually decide and announce not
later than two (2) Market Days before the original stipulated time and date.

Procedures for full acceptance and payment

Acceptance of and payment for the OFS ICULS must be made on the QOAF
accompanying this Prospectus and must be completed in accordance with the notes and
instructions contained in the OAF. Acceptances which do not conform to the terms and
conditions of this Prospectus or the OAF or the notes and instructions contained in these
Documents or which are illegible may be rejected at the absolute discretion of our Board
and/or the Sumurwang Board.

If you wish to accept the Provisional Offer of ICULS in full, please complete Parts I(a)
and Il of the OAF in accordance with the notes and instructions therein. Each completed
and signed OAF together with the appropriate remittance must be despatched by
ORDINARY POST at your own risk or DELIVERED BY HAND using the reply envelope
provided to our Share Registrar at the following address:-

Tricor Investor Services Sdn Bhd
Level 17, The Gardens North Tower
Mid Valley City

Lingkaran Syed Putra

59200 Kuala Lumpur

Tel. No.: 603 2264 3883
Fax No.: 603 2282 1886

so as to arrive no later than 5.00 p.m. on Tuesday 30 September 2014, being the last
time and date for acceptance and payment, or such other later date and time as our
Board, the Sumurwang Board and our Principal Adviser may mutually decide and
announce no fater than two (2) Market Days before the stipulated date and time.

If you lose, misplace or for any other reasons require another copy of the OAF, you may
obtain additional copies from your stockbrokers, Bursa Securities’ website
(http://www.bursamalaysia.com), ocur Share Registrar at the address stated above or our
registered office.

One (1) OAF can only be used for acceptance of Provisional Offer of ICULS standing to
the credit of one (1) CDS Account. Separate OAF(s) must be used for the acceptance of
Provisional Offer of ICULS credited to more than one (1) CDS Account. If successful, the
OFS ICULS subscribed by you or your renauncee(s) (if appficable} will be credited inta
the respective CDS Accounts or Own Securities Account or Aggregate Customers'
Securities Account as stated on the completed OAF.
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A reply envelope is enclosed with this Prospectus. To facilitate the processing of the
OAF(s) by our Share Registrar, you are advised to use one (1) reply envelope for each
completed OAF.

EACH COMPLETED OAF MUST BE ACCOMPANIED BY REMITTANCE IN “RM” FOR
THE FULL AMOUNT IN THE FORM OF BANKER’S DRAFT(S) OR CASHIER'S
ORDER(S) OR MONEY ORDER(S) OR POSTAL ORDER(S} DRAWN ON A BANK OR
POST OFFICE IN MALAYSIA CROSSED "A/C PAYEE ONLY” AND MADE PAYABLE
TO “I-BERHAD OFS ACCOUNT” AND ENDORSED ON THE REVERSE SIDE WITH
THE NAME IN BLOCK LETTERS AND CDS ACCOUNT AND OWN SECURITIES
ACCOUNT (IF ANY)} OF THE OFS ENT{TLED SHAREHOLDERS TO BE RECEIWVED
BY OUR SHARE REGISTRAR. THE PAYMENT MUST BE MADE IN THE EXACT
AMOUNT. ANY ACCEPTANCE WITH EXCESS OR INSUFFICIENT PAYMENT MAY
BE REJECTED AT THE ABSOLUTE DISCRETION OF OUR BOARD AND/OR THE
SUMURWANG BOARD. CHEQUES OR ANY OTHER MODE OF PAYMENTS ARE
NOT ACCEPTABLE. DETAILS OF THE REMITTANCES MUST BE FILLED IN THE
APPROPRIATE BOXES PROVIDED IN THE OAF.

If acceptance and payment for your Provisional Offer of ICULS are not received by our
Share Registrar by 5.00 p.m. on Tuesday 30 September 2014, being the last time and
date for acceptance and payment, or any other later time and date as our Board, the
Sumurwang Board and our Principal Adviser may mutually decide and announce not
later than two (2) Market Days before the stipulated time and date, such provisional
offering to you and/or your renouncee(s) (if applicable) shall be deemed to have been
declined and shall be cancelled and such OFS ICULS not taken up will be first made
available for Excess OFS [CULS application and if undersubscribed, will be retained by
Sumurwang.

NO ACKNOWLEGDEMENT OF RECEIPT OF THE OAF FOR THE OFS ICULS
ACCEPTED OR PAYMENT THEREOF WILL BE ISSUED BY OUR COMPANY OR
OUR SHARE REGISTRAR. PROOF OF TIME OF POSTAGE SHALL NOT
CONSTITUTE PROOF OF TIME OF RECE!IPT BY OUR SHARE REGISTRAR.
ACCEPTANCES SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO HAVE BEEN ACCEPTED BY
REASON OF REMITTANCE BEING PRESENTED FOR PAYMENT. OUR BOARD
AND/OR THE SUMURWANG BOARD RESERVES THE RIGHT NOT TO ACCEPT
ANY ACCEPTANCE OR TO ACCEPT ANY ACCEPTANCE IN PART ONLY WITHOUT
ASSIGNING ANY REASON.

ICULS to be listed on the Main Market

In the event the ICULS are to be listed and upon acceptance of your Provisional Offer of
ICULS and subject to the payment being made in accordance to this Prospectus and the
notes and instructions in the OAF, your portion of the OFS ICULS shall be credited into
your CDS Account upon issuance and a notice of allotment will be despatched to you by
ordinary post to the address as stated in our Record of Depositors within eight (8) Market
Days from the last date of acceptance and payment for the OFS ICULS or such other
period as may be prescribed by Bursa Securities.

ICULS to be issued under FAST and RENTAS

In the event the ICULS are not to be listed, the ICULS shall be issued under FAST and
RENTAS and shall be securities listed on SSDS. Upon your acceptance of your
Provisional Offer of ICULS and subject to the payment being made in accordance to this
Prospectus and the notes and instructions in the OAF, your portion of the OFS ICULS
shall be credited directly into your Own Securities Account {for SSDS Participants) or the
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securities account maintained with a SSDS Participant which is held by Pacific Trustees
Berhad, as custodian nominated by |-Berhad to hold the ICULS {for non SSDS
Participants) upon issuance. A notification will be despatched to the custodians for the
non-listed ICULS by the Facility Agent three (3) business days prior to the issuance of
the ICULS,

Any acceptance and payment made which has been reiected on the basis that it does
not confarm with the terms in this Prospectus or the notes and instructions of the OAF,
the full amount of the payment shall be refunded without interest and shall be deposited
to you within fifteen (15) Market Days from the last date for acceptance and payment of
the Provisional Offer of ICULS by ordinary post to the address as stated in our Record of
Depositors at your own risk.

YOU SHOULD NOTE THAT ALL OAF AND REMITTANCES SO LODGED WITH OUR
SHARE REGISTRAR WILL BE IRREVOCABLE AND CANNOT SUBSEQUENTLY BE
WITHDRAWN.

Procedures for part acceptance

You are entitled to accept part of your entittement to the Provisional Offer of ICULS
provided that the minimum number of the OFS ICULS that can be subscribed for or
accepted is five () OFS ICULS.

You must complete Part [{a} of the OAF by specifying the number of OFS ICULS which
you are accepting and Part 1l of the OAF and deliver the completed and signed OAF
together with the relevant payment to our Share Registrar in the same manner as set out
in Section 13.3 above.

YOU ARE ADVISED TO READ AND ADHERE TO THE OAF AND THE NOTES AND
INSTRUCTIONS CONTAINED IN THE OAF.

The portion of the Provisional Offer of ICULS not accepted shall be offered to any other
person allowed under any laws, regulations or rules to accept the transfer of the OFS
ICULS provisionally offered and the balance, if any, will be first made available for
Excess OFS ICULS applications and if undersubscribed, will be retained by Sumurwang.

Procedure for sale and/or transfer of the Provisional Offer of ICULS

The Provisional Offer of ICULS are renounceable and will be traded on Bursa Securities
commencing 15 September 2014 until 23 September 2014 at 5.00 p.m.. You and/or your
renguncee(s} {if applicable} may sell/transfer ail or part of the Provisional Offer of ICULS
to such person as may be allowed pursuant to the Rules of Bursa Depository.

If you wish to sellitransfer all or part of your entitlements of the OFS ICULS, you may do
s0 immediately through your stockbroker for the period up to the last time and date for
sale and transfer of the OFS ICULS {in accordance with the Rules of Bursa Depaository),
without first having to request for a split of the Provisional Offer of ICULS credited to your
CDS Account.

In sellingftransferring all or part of your Provisional Offer of ICULS, you andfor your
renouncee(s) (if applicable) need not deliver any document (including the OAF) to your
stockbroker. However, you and/or your renouncee(s) must to ensure that there is
sufficient Provisional Offer of ICULS in your CDS Account for setflement of the
saleftransfer.
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Renouncee(s) and/or transferee(s) of the Provisional Offer of ICULS may obtain a copy
of this Prospectus and the OAF from their stockbrokers or from our Share Registrar or at
our Registered Office. This Prospectus and the OAF are also available in Bursa
Securities website at (hitp://www.bursamalaysia.com).

If you and/or your renouncee(s) (if applicable) have sold/transferred only part of your
entittement of the OFS ICULS, you may still accept the balance of your entitlements to
the OFS ICULS by completing Parts I(a) and Il of the OAF and deliver the completed
OAF together with the full amount payable on the bhalance of your entitlement to our
Share Registrar in accordance with the instructions in Section 13.3 above.

Procedures for Excess OFS ICULS application

If you wish to apply for additional OFS ICULS in excess of your entitlernent, you may do
s0 by completing Part I(b) of the OAF (in addition to Parts I(a} and I} and forward it with
a separate remittance for the full amount payable on the Excess OFS ICULS applied for,
to our Share Registrar not later than 5.00 p.m, on Tuesday 30 September 2014, being
the last time and date for acceptance and payment, or such later time and date as our
Board, the Sumurwang Board and the Principal Adviser may mutually decide and
announce not later than two (2) Market Days before the stipulated time and date.

PAYMENT FOR THE EXCESS OFS ICULS APPLIED FOR SHOULD BE MADE IN THE
SAME MANNER DESCRIBED IN SECTION 13.3 ABOVE EXGEPT THAT THE
BANKER’S DRAFT(S) OR CASHIER’S ORDER(S) OR MONEY ORDER(S) OR
POSTAL ORDER(S) DRAWN ON A BANK OR POST OFFICE IN MALAYSIA SHALL
BE CROSSED “A/C PAYEE ONLY” AND MADE PAYABLE TO “l-BERHAD EXCESS
OFS ACCOUNT”, AND ENDORSED ON THE REVERSE SIDE WITH YOUR NAME IN
BLOCK LETTERS AND CDS ACCOUNT NUMBER AND OWN SECURITIES
ACCOUNT (IF ANY). APPLICATIONS ACCOMPANIED BY PAYMENTS OTHER THAN
IN THE MANNER STATED ABOVE OR WITH EXCESS OR INSUFFICIENT
REMITTANCES MAY BE REJECTED AT THE ABSOLUTE DISCRETION OF OUR
BOARD AND/OR THE SUMURWANG BOARD. CHEQUES OR ANY OTHER MODE
OF PAYMENTS ARE NOT ACCEPTABLE. DETAILS OF THE REMITTANCES MUST
BE FILLED IN THE APPROPRIATE BOXES PROVIDED IN THE OAF.

It is the intention of our Board and/or the Sumurwang Board to allocate the Excess OFS
ICULS on a fair and equitable basis and in the following priority:-

(i) firstly, to minimise the incidents of odd lots;

(i)  secondly, for allocation to the OFS Entitled Shareholder{s) who have applied for
Excess OFS ICULS on a pro-rata basis and in board lots, calculated based on
their respective shareholdings as at the Entitiement Date;

(i}  thirdly, for allocation to the OFS Entitled Shareholder(s) who have applied for the
Excess OFS ICULS on a pro-rata basis and in board lots, calculated based on the
guantum of their respective Excess OFS |CULS applied for; and

(iv) fourthly, for allocation to renouncee(s} and/or transferee(s) who have applied for
the Excess OFS ICULS on a pro-rata basis and in board lots, calculated based on
the quantum of their respective Excess OFS ICULS applied for.

Nevertheless, our Board and/or the Sumurwang Board reserves the right to allot any
Excess OFS ICULS applied for under Part I{b} the OAF in such manner as they deem fit
and expedient and in the best interest of our Company subject always to such allocation
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being made on a fair and equitable basis, and that the intentions of our Board and/or the
Sumurwang Board as set out above is achieved. Our Board andf/or the Sumurwang
Board reserves the right to accept the Excess OFS ICULS application in full or in part,
without assigning any reason thereof.

In the event there are still unsubscribed OFS ICULS after allocating all the Excess OFS
ICULS applied for, the remaining unsubscribed OFS ICULS will be retained by
Sumurwang.

NO ACKNOWLEGDEMENT OF RECEIPT FOR THE EXCESS OFS ICULS APPLIED
OR PAYMENT THEREOF WILL BE ISSUED BY OUR COMPANY OR QOUR SHARE
REGISTRAR. PROOF OF TIME OF POSTAGE SHALL NCT CONSTITUTE PROOF OF
TIME OF RECEIPT BY OUR SHARE REGISTRAR.

in respect of unsuccessful or partially successful Excess OFS ICULS applications, the
full amount or the surplus application monies, as the case may be, will be refunded
without interest and shall be despatched to you within fifteen (15) Market Days from the
last date for application and payment for the Excess OFS ICULS by ordinary post to the
address as shown in our Record of Depositors at your own risk.

ICULS to be listed on the Main Market

in the event the ICULS are to be listed and if your application for Excess OFS ICULS is
successful, your portion of the OFS ICULS shall be credited into your CDS Account upen
issuance and a notice of allotment will be despatched to you by the Share Registrar by
ordinary post to the address as shown in cur Record of Depositors at your own risk
within eight (8) Market Days from the last day for application and payment for the Excess
OFS ICULS or such other period as may be prescribed by Bursa Securities.

ICULS to be issued under FAST and RENTAS

In the event the ICULS are not to be listed and if your application for the Excess OFS
ICULS is successful, your pertion of the ICULS shali be credited directly into your Own
Securities Account (for SSDS Participants) or the securities account of Pacific Trustees
Berhad maintained with a SSDS Participant (for non SSDS Participants) upon issuance.
A notification will be despatched by the Facility Agent to the custodian of the non-listed
ICULS three (3) business days prior to the issuance of the ICULS.

ACCEPTANCES SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO HAVE BEEN ACCEPTED BY
REASON OF REMITTANCE BEING PRESENTED FOR PAYMENT. OUR BOARD
AND/OR THE SUMURWANG BOARD RESERVES THE RIGHT NCT TO ACCEPT
ANY ACCEPTANCE OR TO ACCEPT ANY ACCEPTANCE IN PART ONLY WITHOUT
ASSIGNING ANY REASON.

YOU SHOULD NOTE THAT ALL OAF AND REMITTANCES SO LODGED WITH OUR
SHARE REGISTRAR WILL BE IRREVOCABLE AND CANNOT SUBSEQUENTLY BE
WITHDRAWN.

Procedures for acceptance by renocuncee(s)/transferee(s)

A rencuncee or transferee who wishes to accept the Provisional Offer of ICULS, must
obtain a copy of the OAF from his stockbroker, Bursa Securities’ website
(http:/iwww.bursamalaysia.com), our Share Registrar or at our registered office,
complete the OAF in accordance with the notes and instructions therein and submit the
same together with the appropriate remittance.
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The procedure for acceptance, selling or transferring of the Provisional Offer of ICULS,
applying for Excess OFS 1CULS and/or payment is the same as that which is applicable
to the OFS Entitled Shareholders described in Sections 13.3 to 13.6 of this Prospectus.

If you wish to obtain a copy of this Prospectus andfor accompanying CAF, you can also
request for the same from your stockbroker, our Share Registrar, or Bursa Securities’
website at (http://www.bursamalaysia.com}).

THE RENOUNCEE(S) AND/OR TRANSFEREE(S) ARE ADVISED TO READ,
UNDERSTAND AND CONSIDER CAREFULLY THE CONTENTS OF THIS
PROSPECTUS AND ADHERE TO THE NOTES AND INSTRUCTIONS CONTAINED IN
THIS PROSPECTUS AND CAF CAREFULLY.

THE LAST TIME AND DATE FOR ACCEPTANCE AND PAYMENT FOR THE OFS
ICULS WILL BE AT 5.00 P.M. ON TUESDAY 30 SEPTEMBER 2014, OR SUCH
OTHER LATER TIME AND DATE AS OUR BOARD, THE SUMURWANG BOARD AND
OUR PRINCIPAL ADVISER MAY MUTUALLY DECIDE AND ANNOUNCE NOT LESS
THAN TWO (2) MARKET DAYS BEFORE THE STIPULATED TIME AND DATE.

LAWS OF FOREIGN JURISDICTION AND FOREIGN SHAREHOLDERS

The Documents are not intended and will not be issued, circulated or distributed in any country
or jurisdiction other than Malaysia. The Documents have not been (and will not be) made to
comply with the laws of any foreign jurisdiction, and have not heen (and will not be} lodged,
registered or approved pursuant to or under any legislation of (or with or by any regulatory
authorities) or other relevant bodies of any foreign jurisdiction. The Rights Shares with
Warrants and the OFS ICULS will not be made or offered in any foreign jurisdiction and
accordingly, this Prospectus together with the accompanying documents will not be sent to
shareholders without an address in Malaysia.

However, such shareholders without an address in Malaysia may collect the Prospectus,
together with accompanying documents from the Share Registrar. The Share Registrar shall be
entitled to request for such evidence as they deem necessary to satisfy themselves as to the
identity and authority of the person collecting the aforesaid documents.

The Foreign Entitled Shareholders and/or their renouncee(s) and/or their transferee(s) (where
applicable) may only accept or renounce (as the case may be) all or any part of their
entittements and exercise any other rights in respect of the Rights Shares with Warrants and
OFS ICULS to the extent that it would be lawful to do so. No action has been or will be taken to
ensure that the Corporate Exercises and the Documents comply with the laws of any countries
or jurisdictions other than the laws of Malaysia. It shall he the sole responsibility of the Foreign
Entitled Shareholders and/or their renouncee(s) or transferee(s) {if applicable) who are or may
be subject to the laws of any countries or jurisdictions other than the laws of Malaysia to consult
their legal advisers as to whether the acceptance or renunciation of all or any part of the Rights
[ssue with Warrants and the acceptance or renunciation of all or any part (as the case may be)
of their entitiernents under the OFS, would result in the contravention of any laws of such
countries or jurisdictions. Neither |-Berhad, Sumurwang, CIMB nor any other advisers to the
Corporate Exercises shall accept any responsibility or liability and hereby disclaim any
responsibility or liability in the event any acceptance and/or renunciation and/or transfer (as the
case may be), application for excess or the subscription, offer, sale, resale, pledge or other
transfer of the Rights Shares with Warrants or OFS ICULS made by any of the Foreign Entitled
Shareholder and/or their renouncee(s) and/or their transferee(s) (if applicable) is or shall
become iltegal, unenforceable, voidable or veid in any countries or jurisdictions in which the
Foreign Entitled Shareholder(s) and/or their renouncee(s) and/or transferee(s) {if applicable)
are residents,
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By signing any forms accompanying the Documents, the Foreign Entitled Shareholders and/or
their renouncee(s} and/or their transferee(s) (if applicable) are deemed to have represented,
acknowledged and declared in favour of (and which representations, acknowledgements and
declarations will be relied upon by) CIMB; other experts; I-Berhad and its Directors and officers;
and Sumurwang and its Directors and officers that:-

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

our Company would not, by acting on the acceptance or renunciation in connection with
the Corporate Exercises be in breach of the laws of any jurisdiction to which the
Foreign Entitled Shareholders and/or their renouncees and/or their transferee(s} (where
applicable) are or may be subject to;

they have complied with the laws to which they are or may be subject to in connection
with the acceptance or renunciation;

they are not a nominee or agent of a person in respect of whom our Company would,
by acting on the acceptance or renunciation be in breach of the laws of any jurisdiction
to which that person is or may be subject to;

they are aware that the Rights Shares with Warrants and the OFS ICULS can only be
transferred, sold or otherwise disposed of, or charged hypothecated or pledged in
accordance with all applicable laws in Malaysia;

they have received a copy of this Prospectus and have read the contents of this
Prospectus;

they have had access to such financial and other information and have been afforded
the opportunity to ask guestions to the representatives of our Company and receive
answers thereto as they deem necessary in connection with their decision to subscribe
for or purchase the Rights Shares with Warrants and/or the OFS ICULS; and

they have sufficient knowledge and experience in financial and business matters to be
capable of evaluating the merits and risks of subscribing or purchasing the Rights
Shares with Warrants and/or the OFS ICULS, and are and will be able, and are
prepared to bear the economic and financial risks of investing in and helding the Rights
Shares with Warrants and/or the OFS ICULS.

15. TERMS AND CONDITIONS

15.1

15.2

Terms and conditions of the Rights Issue with Warrants

The issuance of the Rights Shares with Warrants under the Rights Issue with Warrants is
governed by the terms and conditions set out in this Prospectus, the Warrants Deed Poll
and the accompanying NPA and RSF.

Terms and conditions of the OFS

The aliotment and issuance of the OFS ICULS under the OFS is governed by the terms

and conditions set out in this Prospectus, the ICULS Trust Deed and the accompanying
NPO and OAF.
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16. FURTHER INFORMATION

You are requested to refer to the attached appendices for further information.

Yours faithfuily,
For and on behalf of the Board of
I-BERHAD

/:_PMIV

PUAN SRITEY SIEW THUAN
Executive Director

—

THE REST OF THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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APPENDIX 1 - CERTIFIED TRUE EXTRACT OF THE RESOLUTIONS PERTAINING TO THE
RIGHTS ISSUE WITH WARRANTS, THE SOHO LAND ACQUISITION AND THE TOWER LAND
ACQUISITION PASSED AT CUR EGM CONVENED ON 22 JULY 2014

<

II-Berhad

(7029-H)
EXTRACT OF THE RESOLUTIONS PASSED AT THE EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING OF I-BERHAD HELD AT i-GALLERY, PERSIARAN MULTIMEDIA, i-CITY,

40000 SHAH ALAM, SELANGOR DARUL EHSAN ON TUESDAY, 22 JULY 2014 AT
10.30 A.M.

SPECIAL RESOLUTION 1

PROPOSED AMENDMENT

“THAT, subject to the passing of any one or more of Ordinary Resolutions 2, 8, 7 or 8; and
Ordinary Resolution 4 in respect of paragraphs (i) and (ii) below only, but not subject to any
other resolution in respect of paragraph (iii) below, the existing clause 5 of the Memorandum
of Association (“MA") of the Company be amended, as appilicable, in the following manner:

(i) in the event that both the Proposed Increase in Authorised Share Capital and the
Proposed Share Split are implemented:

(i)

Existing Clause

Proposed Clause

Clause 5 of MA

The authorised share capital of the
Company is RM200,000,000 divided
into 200,000,000 shares of RM1.00
each with power for the Company to
increase, sub-divide, consolidate or
reduce such capital and to divide the
shares forming the capital (original

increased or reduced) into several
classes and to attach thereto
respectively  preferential, deferred,

special or qualified rights, privileges or
conditions as regards dividends,

repayment of capital, voting or
otherwise.

Clause 5 of MA

The authorised share capital of the
Company is RM1,000,000,000 divided
into 2,000,000,000 shares of RMO0.50
each with power for the Company to
increase, sub-divide, consolidate or
reduce such capital and to divide the

shares forming the capital (original
increased or reduced) into several
classes and to attach thereto
respectively preferential, deferred,

special or qualified rights, privileges or
conditions as regards  dividends,
repayment of capital, voting or otherwise.

in the event that the Proposed Increase in Authorised Share Capital is implemented
but the Proposed Share Spiit is not implemented:

1
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Existing Clause | Proposed Clause
Clause 5 of MA | Clause 5 of MA

The authorised share capital of the | The authorised share capital of the
Company is RM200,000,000 divided | Company is RM1,000,000,000 divided
into 200,000,000 shares of RM1.00 | into 1,000,000,000 shares of RM1.00
each with power for the Company to | €ach with power for the Company to
increase, sub-divide, consolidate or increase, sub-divide, consolidate or
reduce such Capita| and to divide the reduce such Capita‘ and to divide the
shares forming the capital (original | shares forming the capital (original
increased or reduced) into several | Increased or reduced) into several
classes and to attach thereto | classes and to attach thereto respectively
respectively  preferential, deferred, preferential, deferred, special or qualified
special or qualified rights, privileges or | rights, privileges or conditions as regards
conditions as regards dividends, dividends, repaymerit of capital, voting or
repayment of capital, voting or | Otherwise.

otherwise.

(iii) in the event that the Proposed Share Split is implemented but the Proposed Increase
in Authorised Share Capital is not implemented:

Existing Clause Proposed Clause
Clause 5 of MA Clause 5 of MA

The authorised share capital of the | The authorised share capital of the
Company is RMZ200,000,000 divided | Company is RM200,000,000 divided into
into 200,000,000 shares of RM1.00 | 400,000,000 shares of RMO0.50 each
each with power for the Company to | with power for the Company to increase,
increase, sub-divide, consolidate or | sub-divide, consolidate or reduce such
reduce such capital and to divide the | capital and to divide the shares forming
shares forming the capital (original | the capital (original increased or
increased or reduced) into several | reduced) into several classes and to
classes and to attach thereto | attach thereto respectively preferential,
respectively  preferential, deferred, | deferred, special or qualified rights,
special or gualified rights, privileges or | privileges or conditions as regards
conditions as regards dividends, | dividends, repayment of capitai, voting or
repayment of capital, voting or | otherwise.

otherwise.

AND THAT the Beard be and is hereby authorised to do all acts, deeds and things and
execute all necessary documents as the Board may deem fit or expedient in order to carry
out, finalise and give effect to the Proposed Amendment with full powers to assent to any
conditions, modifications, variations and/or amendments as may be required or permitted by
the relevant authorities and to take all steps as the Board may consider necessary in the
best interest of the Company or expedient to implement, finalise and give full effect to the
Proposed Amendment.”

2
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ORDINARY RESOLUTION 2

PROPOSED RIGHTS ISSUE WITH WARRANTS

"THAT, subject to the passing of Ordinary Resolution 4 and Special Resolution 1, and
conditional upon the approvals of all the relevant regulatory authorities for the admission of
the warrants to the Official List of Bursa Securities and the listing of and quotation for all the
new ordinary shares to be issued in the Company and warrants to be issued and all the new
ordinary shares to be issued arising from the exercise of the warrants, on the Main Market of
Bursa Securities, approval be and is hereby given to the Board to:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Provisionally {or otherwise) allot and issue by way of a renounceabile rights issue of
such number of new ordinary shares (“Rights Shares”) together with up to
70,000,000 free detachable warrants ("Warrants”), at an issue price for the Rights
Shares to be determined later, such that the gross proceeds of up to RM200,000,000
are raised, based on a rights entitlement basis and warrants entitlement basis to be
determined upon the indicative terms and conditions set out in the Company’s
circular dated 30 June 2014, to the shareholders of the Company whose names
appear in the Record of Depositors of the Company as at the close of business on
the entitlement date which shall be determined by the Board and announced at a
later date ("Proposed Rights Issue with Warrants™),

determine the rights entitlement basis and the number of Rights Shares together with
the Warrants entitlement basis to the Rights Shares, pursuant to the Proposed Rights
Issue with Warrants;

determine and vary if deemed fit, necessary and/or expedient, the issue price of the
Rights Shares and the exercise price of the Warrants to be issued in connection with
the Proposed Rights Issue with Warrants;

allot and issue up to 70,000,000 ordinary shares in the Company arising from the
exercise of the Warrants ("Exercised Shares"), from time to time during the tenure of
the Warrants in accordance with the provisions of a deed poll constituting the
Warrants to be executed by the Company and as supplemented from time to time
(“Warrants Deed Polt’),

allot and issue such other additional Warrants, the number of ordinary shares of the
Company which the holder of each Warrant is entitled to subscribe and/or adjust from
time to time the exercise price of the Warrants, as a result of any adjustment under
the provisions of the Warrants Deed Poll and/or as may be required by the relevant
authorities, including any adjustments to be made resulting from the Proposed Share
Split and the Proposed Bonus Issue; and

constitute the Warrants upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Warrants
Deed Poll;
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THAT the Rights Shares and the Exercised Shares shall, upon allotment and issuance, rank
pari passu in all respects with each other and with the then existing ordinary shares of the
Company, save and except that the Rights Shares and the Exercised Shares shall not be
entitled to any dividends, rights, allotments and/or other distributions, which may be
declared, made or paid to the shareholders of the Company, the entittement date of which
precedes the date of allotment;

THAT any Rights Shares (together with the associated Warrants entitlement) which are not
taken up or validly taken up shall be made available for excess applications and the Board
be and is hereby authorised to allocate the excess Rights Shares (together with the
associated Warrants entittiements) on a pro-rata basis to the entitled shareholders and/or
their renouncee(s);

THAT in the event the Proposed Share Split is not approved or carried out for any reason
whatsoever, the Board be and is hereby authorised to adjust the number of Rights Shares
and Warrants to reflect the par value of the then existing ordinary shares of the Company;

THAT any fractional entitiements of the Rights Shares and Warrants arising from the
Proposed Rights Issue with Warrants, if any, shail be dealt with in such manner as the Board
shall in their absolute discretion deem fit and expedient, and to be in the best interest of the
Company;

THAT the proceeds of the Proposed Rights Issue with Warrants be utilised for the purposes
set out in Section 2.2.8 of the Circular to the shareholders of the Company dated 30 June
2014, and the Board be and are hereby authorised with full powers to vary the manner
and/or purpose of utilisation of such proceeds in such manner as the Board may deem fit
and in the best interest of the Company subject (where required} to the approval of the
relevant authorities;

THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to enter into and execute the Warrants Deed
Poll with full powers to assent to any conditions, modifications, variations and/or
amendments in any manner as may be required by the reievant authorities or the Board may
consider necessary and with full powers to implement and give effect to the terms and
conditions of the Warrants Deed Poll;

THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to enter into and execute an underwriting
agreement for the underwriting of the Rights Shares (if any) and with full powers to assent to
any conditions, modifications, variations and/or amendments in any manner as may be
required by the relevant authorities or the Board may consider necessary and with fuli
powers to implement and give effect to the terms and conditions of the underwriting
agreement to be executed by the Company;

AND THAT the Board be and is further authorised to do all acts, deeds and things and
execute all necessary documents as the Board may deem fit or expedient in order to carry
out, finalise and give effect to the Proposed Rights Issue with Warrants with full powers to
assent to any conditions, modifications, variations and/or amendments as may be imposed
or required by the relevant authorities and to take all steps as they may consider necessary
in the best interest of the Company or expedient to implement, finalise and give full effect to
the Proposed Rights Issue with Warrants.”
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ORDINARY RESOLUTION 4
PROPOSED INCREASE IN AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

“THAT, subject to the passing of any one or more of Ordinary Resolutions 2, 6, 7 or 8; and
Special Resolution 1 and conditional upon the approvals of all the relevant regulatory
authorities, approval be and is hereby given to the Board to increase the authorised share
capital of the Company from RM200,000,000 comprising 200,000,000 ordinary shares of
RM1.00 each to:

(a) RM1,000,000,000 comprising 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each, in the
event that the Proposed Share Split is implemented; or

(b) RM1,000,000,000 comprising 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each in the
event that the Proposed Share Split is not implemented;

AND THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all acts, deeds and things and
execute all necessary documents as the Board may deem fit or expedient in order to carry
out, finalise and give effect to the Proposed Increase in Authorised Share Capital with full
powers to assent to any conditions, modifications, variations and/or amendments as may be
required or permitted by the relevant authorities and to take all steps as the Board may
consider necessary in the best interest of the Company or expedient to implement, finalise
and give full effect to the Proposed Increase in Authorised Share Capital.”

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 6

PROPOSED KIA PENG LAND ACQUISITION

“THAT, subject to the passing of Ordinary Resolution 4 and Special Resolution 1 and
conditional upon the approvals of the relevant reguiatory authorities for the issuance of five
(5)-year 3% to 5% redeemable convertible unsecured ioan stocks of RM132 000,000 at
100% of its nominal value of RM0.50 each (*“RCULS-A") and for the listing of and guotation
for the ordinary shares in-the Company arising from the full conversion of the RCULS-A on
the Main Market of Bursa Securities, approval be and is hereby given to the Board:

(a) for the acquisition by I-Marcom Sdn Bhd from Sumuracres Sdn Bhd of a piece of
freehold land held under Geran 26180, Lot 242, Seksyen 63, Town and District of
Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan Kuala Lumpur measuring approximately 1.05
acres and located along Jalan Changkat Kia Peng (“Kia Peng Land”) upon the terms
and subject to the conditions of a sale and purchase agreement dated 24 October
2013 between Sumuracres Sdn Bhd (as the vendor), |-Marcom Sdn Bhd (as the
purchaser) and I1-Berhad (*Kia Peng Land SPA"), for a consideration of
RM132,000,000 to be settled through the issuance of the RCULS-A by the Company
("Proposed Kia Peng Land Acquisition”);

(b} to allot and issue 264,000,000 RCULS-A of RM132,000,000 nominal value; and
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(c) to allot and issue such number of new ordinary shares in the Company, credited as
fully paid-up to the hoiders of RCULS-A arising from the conversion of RCULS-A by
the holders of RCULS-A from time to time during the tenure of the RCULS-A at a
conversion price of RM3.20 per new ordinary share of RM1.00 each in the Company,
subject to adjustments, in accordance with the provisions of a deed poll constituting
the RCULS-A to be executed by the Company and as supplemented from time to
time (“RCULS-A Deed Poll™), including any adjustments to be made resulting from
the Proposed Share Split, the Proposed Rights lIssue with Warrants and the
Proposed Bonus lssue;

THAT the new ordinary shares in the Company to be issued pursuant to the conversion of
RCULS-A shall, upon allotment and issuance, rank pari passu in all respects with the then
existing ordinary shares in the Company, save and except that the new ordinary shares shall
not be entitled to any dividends, rights, allotments and/or other distributions, which may be
declared, made or paid to the shareholders of the Company, the entitlement date of which
precedes the date of allotment of the new ordinary shares from time to time during the
tenure of the RCULS-A;

THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to enter into and execute the RCULS-A Deed
Poll constituting the RCULS-A with full powers to assent to any conditions, modifications,
variations and/or amendments in any manner as may be required by the relevant authorities
or the Board may consider necessary and with full powers to implement and give effect to
the terms and conditions of the RCULS-A Deed Poll;

AND THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all acts, deeds and things and
execute all necessary documents as the Board may deem fit or expedient in order to carry
out, finalise and give effect to the Proposed Kia Peng Land Acquisition with full powers to
assent to any conditions, modifications, variations and/or amendments as may be required
or permitted by the relevant authorities (including making the necessary applications to the
relevant authorities for any approvals and consents as may be required) and to take all steps
as the Board may consider necessary in the best interest of the Company or expedient to
implement, finalise and give full effect to the Proposed Kia Peng Land Acquisition.”

In respect of Ordinary Resolution 6, shareholders holding 4,638,034 shares (99.89%) voted
in favour while a shareholder holding 4,901 (0.11%) voted against the resolution. Based on
the results of the poll, Ordinary Resolution 6 was declared carried by the Chairman.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 7

PROPOSED SOHO LAND ACQUISITION

“THAT, subject to the passing of Ordinary Resolution 4 and Special Resolution 1 and
conditional upon the approvais of the relevant regulatory authorities for the issuance of
ICULS and RCULS-B and the listing and quotation for the ordinary shares in the Company
arising from the full conversion of the ICULS and the RCULS-B on the Main Market of Bursa
Securities, approval be and is hereby given to the Board:
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(b)

{c)

(d)

for the acquisition by I-City Properties Sdn Bhd from The Peak @ KLCC Sdn Bhd of
a piece of freehold land held under Geran 311884 Lot 16964, Seksyen 7, Bandar
Shah Alam, District of Petaling, State of Selangor Darul Ehsan measuring
approximately 12.13 acres (“SOHO Land”) upon the terms and subject to the
conditions of a sale and purchase agreement dated 20 December 2013 between The
Peak @ KLCC Sdn Bhd (as the vendor), Sumur Heights Sdn Bhd, Sumurwang
Industries Sdn Bhd, Top Capital Sdn Bhd, Sumur Marketing Sdn Bhd and
Sumurwang Development Sdn Bhd (collectively, the “Land Proprietors”), 1-City
Properties Sdn Bhd (as the purchaser) and I-Berhad (as the issuer) ("SOHO Land
SPA"), for a consideration of RM241,300,000 to be settled through the issuance of
RM196,300,000, which forms part of, up to RM301,300,000 five (5)-year 2% to 3%
irredeemabie convertible unsecured loan stocks at 100% of its nominal value of
RM0.50 each (“ICULS") and the issuance of RM45 000,000, which forms part of, up
to RM69,000,000 five (5)-year 3% to 5% redeemabie convertible unsecured loan
stocks at 100% of its nominal value of RMQ.50 each ("RCULS-B") by the Company
(“Proposed SOHO Land Acquisition”);

to allot and issue 382,600,000 ICULS of RM196,300,000 nominal vailue and
90,000,000 RCULS-B of RM45,000,000 nominal value;

to allot and issue such number of new ordinary shares in the Company, credited as
fully paid-up to the holders of the ICULS arising from the conversion of ICULS by the
holders of the ICULS from time to time during the tenure of the ICULS at a
conversion price of RM2.59 per new ordinary share of RM1.00 each in the Company,
subject to adjustments, in accordance with the provisions of a trust deed constituting
the ICULS to be executed between the Company and a duly appointed trustee and
as supplemented from time to time (“ICULS Trust Deed”), including any adjustments
to be made resulting from the Proposed Share Split, the Proposed Rights Issue with
Warrants and the Proposed Bonus Issue; and

to allot and issue such number of new ordinary shares in the Company, credited as
fully paid-up to the holder of RCULS-B arising from the conversion of RCULS-B by
the holders of the RCULS-B from time to time during the tenure of the RCULS-B at a
conversion price of RM2.71 per new ordinary share of RM1.00 each in the Company,
subject to adjustments, in accordance with the provisions of a deed poll constituting
the RCULS-B to be executed by the Company and as supplemented from time to
time ("RCULS-B Deed Poll"), including any adjustments to be made resulting from
the Proposed Share Split, the Proposed Rights Issue with Warrants and the
Proposed Bonus Issue;

THAT the new ordinary shares in the Company to be issued pursuant to the conversion of
the ICULS and RCULS-B shall, upon allotment and issuance, rank pari passu in all respects
with the then existing ordinary shares in the Company, save and except that the new
ordinary shares shall not be entitted to any dividends, rights, allotments and/ocr other
distributions, which may be declared, made or paid to the shareholders of the Company, the
entitlement date of which precedes the date of allotment of the new ordinary shares from
time to time during the tenure of the ICULS and the RCULS-B;
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THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to enter into and execute the ICULS Trust
Deed with full powers to assent to any conditions, modifications, variations and/or
amendments in any manner as may be required by the relevant authorities or the Board may
consider necessary and with full powers to implement and give effect to the terms and
conditions of the ICULS Trust Deed;

THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to enter into and execute the RCULS-B Deed
Poll with full powers to assent to any conditions, modifications, variations and/or
amendments in any manner as may be required by the relevant authorities or the Board may
consider necessary and with full powers to implement and give effect to the terms and
conditions of the RCULS-B Deed Poll;

AND THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all acts, deeds and things and
execute all necessary documents as the Board may deem fit or expedient in order to carry
out, finalise and give effect to the Proposed SOHO Land Acquisition with full powers to
assent to any conditions, modifications, variations and/or amendments as may be required
or permitted by the relevant authorities (including making the necessary applications to the
relevant authorities for any approvals and consents as may be required} and to take all steps
as the Board may consider necessary in the best interest of the Company or expedient to
implement, finalise and give full effect to the Proposed SOHO Land Acquisition.”

In respect of Ordinary Resolution 7, shareholders holding 4,658,291 shares (100%) voted
unanimously in favour of the resolution and based on the results of the poll, Ordinary
Resolution 7 was declared carried by the Chairman.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 8
PROPOSED TOWER LAND ACQUISITION

“THAT, subject to the passing of Ordinary Resolution 4 and Special Resolution 1 and
conditional upon the approvals of the relevant regulatory authorities for the issuance of
ICULS and RCULS-B and the listing and quotation for the ordinary shares in the Company
arising from the full conversion of the ICULS and the RCULS-B on the Main Market of Bursa
Securities, approval be and is hereby given to the Board:

(a) for the acquisition by City Centrepoint Sdn Bhd from The Peak @ KLCC Sdn Bhd of
a piece of freehold land which currently forms part of the land held under Geran
311886, Lot 16966, Seksyen 7, Bandar Shah Alam, District of Petaling, State of
Selangor Darul Ehsan measuring approximately 7.45 acres (“Tower Land") upon the
terms and subject to the conditions of a sale and purchase agreement dated 20
December 2013 between The Peak @ KLCC Sdn Bhd (as the vendor), the Land
Proprietors, City Centrepoint Sdn Bhd (as the purchaser) and I-Berhad (as the
issuer) (“Tower Land SPA"), for a consideration of RM129,000,000 to be settled
through the issuance of RM105,000,000 ICULS and RM24,000,000 RCULS-B by the
Company (“Proposed Tower Land Acquisition”);

(b} to aliot and issue 210,000,000 ICULS of RM105,000,000 nominal value and
48,000,000 RCULS-B of RM24,000,000 nominal value;
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(c) to allot and issue such number of new ordinary shares in the Company, credited as
fully paid-up to the holder of the ICULS arising from the conversion of the ICULS by
the holder of the ICULS from time to time during the tenure of the ICULS at a
conversion price of RM2.59 per new ordinary share of RM1.00 each in the Company,
subject to adjustments, in accordance with the provisions of the ICULS Trust Deed,
including any adjustments to be made resulting from the Proposed Share Split, the
Proposed Rights Issue with Warrants and the Proposed Bonus Issue; and

(d) to allot and issue such number of new ordinary shares in the Company, credited as
fully paid-up to the holder of the RCULS-B arising from the conversion of RCULS-B
by the holder of the RCULS-B from time to time during the tenure of the RCULS-B at
a conversion price of RM2.71 per new ordinary share of RM1.00 each in the
Company in accordance with the provisions of the RCULS-B Deed Poll, including any
adjustments to be made resulting from the Proposed Share Split, the Proposed
Rights Issue with Warrants and the Proposed Bonus issue;

THAT the new ordinary shares in the Company to be issued pursuant to the conversion of
the ICULS and RCULS-B shall, upon allotment and issuance, rank pari passu in all respects
with the then existing ordinary shares in the Company, save and except that the new
ordinary shares shall not be entitied to any dividends, rights, allotments and/or other
distributions, which may be declared, made or paid to the shareholders of the Company, the
entitlement date of which precedes the date of allotment of the new ordinary shares from
time to time during the tenure of the ICULS and the RCULS-B;

THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to enter into and execute the |CULS Trust
Deed with full powers to assent to any conditions, modifications, variations and/or
amendments in any manner as may be required by the relevant authorities or the Board may
consider necessary and with full powers to implement and give effect to the terms and
conditions of the ICULS Trust Deed,

THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to enter into and execute the RCULS-B Deed
Poll constituting the RCULS-B with full powers to assent to any conditions, modifications,
variations and/or amendments in any manner as may be required by the reievant authorities
or the Board may consider necessary and with full powers to implement and give effect to
the terms and conditions of the RCULS-B Deed Poll;

AND THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all acts, deeds and things and
execute all necessary documents as the Board may deem fit or expedient in order to carry
out, finalise and give effect to the Proposed Tower Land Acquisition with full powers to
assent to any conditions, modifications, variations and/or amendments as may be required
or permitted by the relevant authorities (including making the necessary appiications to the
relevant authorities for any approvals and consents as may be required) and to take all steps
as the Board may consider necessary in the best interest of the Company or expedient to
implement, finalise and give full effect to the Proposed Tower Land Acquisition.”
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In respect of Ordinary Resolution 8, shareholders holding 4,658,291 shares (100%) voted
unanimously in favour of the resolution and based on the results of the poll, Ordinary
Resolution 8 was declared carried by the Chairman.

CERTIFIED TRUE EXTRACT

GO YEANG KHENG
Director

Dated: § 2 SEP 2014
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7D
SUMURWANG SDN BHD
/| . \ (63330-T)
D-1-4, Jalan Multimedia 7/AJ
SUMURWANG i~City, CityPark
40000 Shah Alam

Selangor Darul Ehsan
Tel: 03-5521 8800
Fax: 03-5521 8810

CERTIFIED EXTRACT OF MINUTES OF THE EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING
OF THE COMPANY HELD ON 9 MAY 2014

PROPOSED RENOUNCEABLE RESTRICTED OFFER FOR SALE OF UP TO 50% OF UP
TO RM301.30 MILLION FIVE (5)-YEAR 2% TO 3% IRREDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE
UNSECURED LOAN STOCKS AT 100% OF ITS NOMINAL VALUE OF RM0.50 EACH
{(*JCULS”) TO BE ISSUED PURSUANT TO THE SOHO LAND SPA AND/OR THE TOWER
LAND SPA TO THE MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS OF I-BERHAD (“PROPOSED OFFER
FOR SALE”)

Resolved:-

That the Company hereby accept the nomination as the Nominated Party for the Proposed
Offer for Sale and that in consideration of |-Berhad's acceptance of our nomination by The
Peak @ KLCC Sdn Bhd pursuant to the Nomination Letter and in consideration for the
issuance of amongst others, the ICULS to us pursuant to the SOHO and Tower Land Sale
and Purchase Agreements (“SPAs"), the Company hereby irrevocably and unconditionally
undertake that we will within a period of 6 months from the date of the completion of the
SOHO and Tower Land SPAs in accordance with its terms, make an offer for sale of up to
50% of the ICULS issued to us pursuant to the SOHO and Tower Land SPAs or up fo
RM150,650,000 nominal value of the ICULS to |-Berhad's minority shareholders and
excluding The Peak @ KLCC Sdn Bhd, the Company and related parties and persons
connected to The Peak @ KLCC Sdn Bhd and the Company such as Sumur Ventures Sdn
Bhd, Sumurwang Capital Sdn Bhd, Tan Sri Lim Kim Hong, Puan Sri Tey Siew Thuan, Tay
Siew Lian and Tang Soke Cheng.

Further resolved that this undertaking shall lapse and be of no further effect in the event that
the Abridged Prospectus/Prospectus for the Proposed Offer for Sale cannot be or is not
registered for any reason whatsoever with the Securities Commission Maiaysia or the
Proposed Offer for Sale cannot be implemented for any reason whatsoever (otherwise than
by reason of our breach of the undertaking).

It is further resolved that the Director, Y. Bhg. Puan Sri Tey Siew Thuan be authorised to
sign the Letter of Undertaking and all other relevant documents pertaining to the Proposed
Offer for Sale of the ICULS and that the Common Seal of the Company be affixed to all
relevant documents pertaining to the Proposed Offer for Sale, where necessary.

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY

——r ///447\

PUAN SRi TEY SIEW THUAN T LAN
Director Co pan Secretary
Dated : 9 May 2014 S UMURCITY

Jne Wild's Tl Eaearad 2007
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Company No. 7029-H

APPENDIX Iil - INFORMATION ON OUR COMPANY (Cont’d)

1.

HISTORY AND BUSINESS

Our Company was incorporated in Malaysia under the Act on 2 February 1967 as a private
limited company under the name of Sanyo Industries (Malaysia) Sendirian Berhad. On 27 May
1968, our Company was converted into a public company under the name of Sanyo Industries
{Malaysia) Berhad. Subsequently on 29 September 1269 our Company was listed on the Main
Board of Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange (now known as the Main Market). On 4 September
1997, our Company changed its name to Neico Industries (M) Berhad. Our Company changed
its name to its present name, |-Berhad, on 12 August 1999.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Our Company is principally involved in investment holding. The principal activities of our Group
are set out in Section 6 of this Appendix.

SHARE CAPITAL

The authorised, issued and paid-up share capital of our Company as at the LPD are as follows:

Authorised
Issued and paid-up

Par value Amount

No. of Shares RM RMW
2,000,000,000 0.50 1,000,000,000
228,972,712 0.50 114,486,356

Save for the ICULS (the principal terms of which are set out in Section 3.5 of this Prospectus),
the RCULS-A and the RCULS-B, our Company does not have any convertible securities as at
the date of this Prospectus.

The details of the RCULS-A and RCULS-B are set out below:

Issuer
Issue date

Number of RCULS
Nominal value

Coupon rate

Tenure

RCULS-A RCULS-B
I-Berhad I-Berhad
27 August 2014 27 August 2014
264,000,000 138,000,000
RM0.50 each RM0.50 each
The RCULS-A shall bear the following The RCULS-B shall bear the

coupon rate based on the nominal
value of the RCULS-A then
outstanding:

Years from
RCULS-A Coupon rate
Issue Date per annum
1 Nil
2 3.0%
3 4.0%
4 5.0%
5 50%

Five (5) years from and inclusive of
the date of issue of the RCULS-A and
the RCULS-A shall mature on the fifth
(5™ anniversary of the RCULS-A
Issue Date ("RCULS-A  Maturity
Date”).

71

following coupon rate based on the
nominal value of the RCULS-B then
outstanding:

Years from
RCULS-B Coupon rate
Issue Date per annum
1 Nil
2 3.0%
3 4.0%
4 5.0%
5 5.0%

Five (5) years from and inclusive of
the date of issue of the RCULS-B
and the RCULS-B shall mature on
the fitth (5™) anniversary of the
RCULS-B Issue Date ("RCULS-A
Maturity Date").



Company No. 7029-H

APPENDIX Il - INFORMATION ON OUR COMPANY (Cont'd)

Conversion rights The RCULS-A holder shall have the
right to convert the RCULS-A into
new Shares at the RCULS-A
Conversion Price at any time during
the RCULS-A Conversion Period.

Unless previously redeemed or
cancelled pursuant to the RCULS-A
Deed Poll executed by the Issuer on
18 August 2014 or converted, all
outstanding RCULS-A  will be
automalically redeemed by |-Berhad
on the RCULS-A Maturity Date.

Conversion period The period commencing from and
including the second (2") anniversary
of the RCULS-A Issue Date up to and
including the RCULS-A Maturity Date.

Conversion price RM0.84 for each new Share after
taking in consideration the Share
Split, the Rights Issue with Warrants
and the Bonus Issue.

The conversion price is subject to
further adjustments under certain
circumstances in accordance with the
RCULS-A Deed Poll executed by the
Issuer on 18 August 2014.

The RCULS-B holder shall have the
right to convert the RCULS-B into
new Shares at the RCULS-B
Conversion Price at any time during
the RCULS-B Conversion Period.

Unless previously redeemed or
cancelled pursuant to the RCULS-B
Deed Poll executed by the Issuer on
18 August 2014 or converted, all
outstanding RCULS-B  will be
automatically redeemed by |-Berhad
on the RCULS-B Maturity Date.

The period commencing from and
including the second  (2™)
anniversary of the RCULS-B Issue
Daie up to and inciuding the
RCULS-B Maturity Date.

RMO0.71 for each new Share after
taking in consideration the Share
Split, the Rights Issue with Warrants
and the Bonus lssue.

The conversion price is subject to
further adjustments under certain
circumstances in accordance with
the RCULS-B Deed Poll executed
by the Issuer on 18 August 2014,

The authorised share capital of our Company was increased from RM200,000,000 comprising
200,000,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each to RM1,000,000,000 comprising 2,000,000,000
Shares by way of the creation of additional 800,000,000 Shares. The increase in the authorised

share capital was effected on 22 July 2014

Our Company completed the implementation of the Share Split on 12 August 2014. As a result,
our Company's issued share capital changed from RM114,486,356 comprising 114,486,356
ordinary shares of RM1.00 each to Ri114,486,356 comprising 228,872,712 Shares. There has
been no change in the paid-up share capital of our Company as a result of the Share Split.

Save as disclosed above, there had been no change in the authorised, issued and paid-up
share capital of our Company for the past three (3} years preceding the LPD.

THE REST OF THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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Company No. 7029-H |

APPENDIX Ill - INFORMATION ON OUR COMPANY (Cont’'d)

5. PARTICULARS OF THE DIRECTORS

5.1

Details of our Directors as at the LPD are as follows:

The particulars of our Directors as at the LPD are as follows:

Name of
Director Age Profession Designation Nationality Address
Tan Sri Lim 63 Executive Executive Malaysian No. 14, Jalan
Kim Hang Chairman Chairman 16/14, 46350
Petaling Jaya,
Setangor
Dato’ Eu 61 Deputy Deputy Malaysian No. 33, Jalan
Hong Chew Chairman Chairman/ Aminuddin Baki,
Non-Executive Taman Tun Dr.
Director Ismail, 60000
Kuala Lumpur,
Wilayah
Persekutuan
Puan Sri Tey 60 Executive Executive Malaysian No. 14, Jalan
Siew Thuan Director Director 16/14, 46350,
Petaling Jaya,
Selangor
Liang Yew 47 Company Independent Malaysian  24-B5, 4™ Floor,
Ming Director Non-Executive Jalan 556/3,
Director Kelana Jaya,
47301, Petaling
Jaya, Selangor
Ong Poh 50 Company Non-Executive Malaysian No. 30, Jalan
Ling Director Director Istana, 41000
Klang, Selangor
Goh Yeang 48 Company Independent Malaysian No. 6, Jalan
Kheng Director Non-Executive Margosa
Director SD10/8, Bandar

Sri Damansara,

52200 Kuala
Lumpur,

Wilayah
Persekutuan

L
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Company No. 7029-H

APPENDIX lil - INFORMATION ON OUR COMPANY (Cont’d)

6. SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSQCIATED COMPANIES

Effective
Date / Place Issued and equity
of paid-up share interest
Company incorporation capital % Principal activities
RM (unless
otherwise
stated)
Subsidiaries of I-Berhad
1-City Marketing Sdn Bhd 22.05.1995/ 1,300,000 100 Properly developers,
Malaysia contractor for
construction work, land
and property owners,
property and complex
managers
I-City Properties Sdn Bhd 20.04.2000/ 2,500,000 100 Property  developers,
Malaysia contractors for
construction work, land
and properly owners,
property and complex
managers
[-City (Selangor) Sdn Bhd 03.01.1983/ 250,000 100 Management and
Malaysia development of
i-City,
Shah Alam as a MSC
Malaysia  Cybercentre
and Technopreneur
Campus
City Centrepoint Sdn Bhd 01.11.2013/ 2.00 100 Property developers,
Malaysia contractor for
construction work, land
and property owners,
property and complex
managers
World Citypoint Sdn Bhd 01.11.2013/ 2.00 100 Property  developers,
Malaysia contractor for
construction work, land
and property owners,
properly and complex
managers
|-Marcom Sdn Bhd 14.07.1999/ 500,000 100 Investment holding and
Malaysia property  development
activities
I-R & D Sdn Bhd 20.01.1995/ 500,000 100 Investment and property
Malaysia holdings
1-Silicon Sdn Bhd 05.04.2000/ 1,000,000 100 Investment holding,
Malaysia properly management
and property investment
I-City (MM2H) Sdn Bhd 17.06.2014/ 50,000 100 Provision of MM2H?
Malaysia related services

? means Malaysia My Second Home
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Effective
Date / Place Issued and equity
of paid-up share interest
Company incorporation capital % Principal activities
Subsidiary of [-Marcom
Sdn Bhd
I-Think Sdn. Bhd 08.06.2000/ 100,000 100 Advertising agent,
Malaysia advertiser and
advertising contractor
Subsidiaries of I-R&D Sdn
Bhd
I-Office2 Sdn Bhd 26.01.1995/ 1,350,000 80 Provision of managed
Malaysia network and
telephony services
I-City Travel Sdn Bhd 11.03.2014/ 200,000 100 Travel agency activities
Malaysia
Subsidijary of I-Silicon
Sdn Bhd
I-City Resorts Sdn Bhd 08.04.2000/ 100,000 100 Promotion,  marketing
Malaysia and management of
events, leisure and
other tourism related
activities
[-Digital (Shanghai) Trading 8.12.2005/ UsDp250,000 100 Dormant
Co Ltd People's
Republic of
China
Associated Companies
Central Plaza I-City Malls 13.06.2013/ 10.00 40 Investment holding
Malaysia Sdn Bhd Malaysia
Central Plaza [-City Sdn 13.06.2013/ 10.00 40 Property management
Bhd Malaysia
Central Plaza [-City Real 13.06.2013/ 10.00 40 Property developer and
Estate Sdn Bhd Matlaysia properly owners
I-City Hotel Sdn Bhd 12.07.2012/ 100,000 40 Hotel operator
Malaysia

THE REST OF THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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7. PROFIT AND DIVIDEND RECORD

Our profit and dividend records based on the audited consolidated financial statements of our
Group for the last 3 financial years from the FYE 31 December 2011 to 31 December 2013 and
the unaudited consolidated interim financial statements for the 6-month FPE 30 June 2013 and
30 June 2014 are set out below:

Unaudited Unaudited

Audited FYE 31 December FPE 30 FPE 30
2011 2012 2013  June 2013  June 2014
RM 000 RM 000 RM 000 RM'000 RM 000
Revenue 27,229 66,656 152,148 60,948 115,563
Cost of sales (13,089) {32,137) (86,645) (36,277) (64,899}
Gross profit 14,140 34,519 65,503 24,671 50,664
Fair val_ue gain on investment ) } 12,996 - -
properties
Other income 3,232 2,845 1,043 485 512
Other expenses (15,560) (19,162) (26,617) (12,087) (17,103)
Finance cosls - - - - -
Share of profit/(loss} of an associate = 35 58 28 (30)
Profit before tax 1,812 18,237 52,983 13,097 34,043
Tax expenses (752) (1,578) (9,014) {1,394) (8,510)
Profit for the financial year 1,060 16,659 43,5969 11,703 25,533
Other comprehensive income, net of
tax:
Foreign currency translations 69 (45) 121 68 {20)
Total comprehensive income 1,129 16,614 44,090 11,771 25,513

Earnings before interest, taxation,

depreciation and amortisation 591 24,892 65,663 18,359 40,194
Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company 1,338 16,818 43,968 11,713 25,509
Non-controlling interests (278) (159) 1 (10) 24
Weighted average number of

ordinary shares in issue (000):

- basic 114,000 114,000 114,000 114,000 114,000
- diluted - - -

EPS (sen):

- basic 1.17 14.75 38.57 10.27 22.38
- diluted - - - - -

Dividend per share (net) (senj):
- first and final dividend 1 4 6 - -

- share dividend - 7 . - -
Profit margin:

Gross profit margin (%) 52 52 43 40 44
Net profit margin (PATAMI) (%) 4 25 29 19 22

Nofe:
1. Comprise of a distribution of share dividend in the form of one (1) Treasury Share for every

fourtesn {14) ordinary shares of RM1.00 held, equivalent to approximately 7 sen per share and a 4
sen per share cash dividend.
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COMMENTARY ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Unaudited 6-month FPE 30 June 2014

For the FPE 30 June 2014, our Group posted higher revenue and profit before fax of
RM115.6 million and RM34.0 million respectively as compared to the revenue and profit
before tax of RM60.9 million and RM13.1 million respectively, for the FPE 30 June 2013. The
increase in both the revenue and profit before tax of 90% and 160% respectively was mainly
contributed by our Group's property development segment.

The property development segment registered revenue and profit before tax of RM88.9
million and RM32.2 million for the FPE 30 June 2014 as compared to the revenue and profit
before tax of RM35.9 million and RM7.8 million respectively, for the FPE 30 June 2013. The
significant increase in both revenue and profit before tax for the property development
segment were driven by higher percentage of recognition from the increase in sales of the
development units as well as the physical completion of buildings/projects for i-Residence, i-
S0VO0, i-SCHO and i-Suites projects.

The property investment segment registered revenue and profit before tax of RM4.6 million
and RMO0.2 million respectively as compared to the revenue and loss before tax of RM4.4
million and RM1.8 million respectively, for the FPE 30 June 2013. The improved revenue and
profitability from the property investment segment is due to higher occupancy rate and a once
off waiver of service charge for 6 months by the Joint Management Body (“JMB”)
respectively.

The revenue and profit before tax for both the property development and property investment
segment represented approximately 81% of the revenue and approximately 95% of the profit
before tax registered by our Group for the FPE 30 June 2014.

The leisure segment registered revenue and profit before tax of RM21.6 million and RM3.2
million respectively as compared to the revenue and profit before tax of RM20.1 million and
RM7.4 million respectively, for the FPE 30 June 2013. The higher revenue with lower profit
before tax for the leisure segment was due to pre-opening costs and additional operating
costs incurred for new attractions. The leisure segment contributed approximately 19% and
9% of our Group's revenue and profit before tax respectively for the financial period.

The ICT services segment registered revenue and profit before tax of RM0.5 million and
RM0.04 million respectively as compared to the revenue and loss before tax of RM0.5 million
and RM0.1 million respectively, for the FPE 30 June 2013. The improvement in performance
for the ICT services segment was mainly due to more effective cost management through re-
negotiation for better terms and rates with a major service provider.

FYE 31 December 2013

For the FYE 31 December 2013, our Group recorded revenue of RM152.1 million and profit
before tax of RM53.0 million respectively as compared to the revenue and profit before tax of
RM66.7 million and RM18.2 million respectively, for the FYE 31 December 2012. The
increase in both the revenue and profit before tax of 128% and 191% respectively was mainly
due to higher sales during the financial year from the projects launched in previous financial
year in the property development segment as well as the growth in the leisure segment.

The property development segment registered revenue and profit before tax of RM94.9
million and RM30.1 million for the FYE 31 December 2013 as compared to the revenue and
profit before tax of RM24.6 million and RM4.7 million respectively, for the FYE 31 December
2012. The growth in the property development segment was driven by the higher percentage
of completion of the on-going projects, together with encouraging sales of i-Residence, i-
SQVO and the new launch of i-SCHO during the financial year.
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The property investment segment registered revenue and profit before tax of RM9.1 million
and RM9.0 million for the FYE 31 December 2013 as compared to the revenue and loss
before tax of RM9.0 million and RM2.8 million respectively, for the FYE 31 December 2012.
The property investment segment pre-tax profits were boosted by the fair value gains on the
revaluation of investment properties amounting to approximately RM13.0 million recognised
at the end of financial year pursuant to Financial Reporting Standard 140 investment
Property.

The revenue and profit before tax for both the property development and property investment
segment represented approximately 68% of the revenue and approximately 74% of the profit
before tax registered by our Group for the FYE 31 December 2013.

The leisure segment registered revenue and profit before tax of RM46.9 million and RM14.9
million for the FYE 31 December 2013 as compared to the revenue and profit before tax of
RM31.8 million and RM16.1 million respectively, for the FYE 31 December 2012. There was a
slight drop of about RM1.2 million in profit before taxation for the leisure segment as
compared to FYE 31 December 2012 due to higher depreciation charges from new
attractions, namely the additional attractions within the theme park during the financiai year
and the write-off of some exhausted assets within the theme park. The leisure segment
contributed 28% of our Group’s pre-tax profits with a 47% growth in its revenue as compared
to FYE 31 December 2012,

The ICT services segment registered revenue and loss before tax of RM1.0 million and
RMO0.2 million for the FYE 31 December 2013 as compared to the revenue and loss before
tax of RM1.2 million and RMO0.9 million respectively, for the FYE 31 December 2012. There
was a decline in losses for the ICT services segment in FYE 31 December 2013 as compared
to the preceding year due to lower depreciation charges and the write-back of accruals which
were no longer needed after the parties mutually agreed to waive the amount payable.

FYE 31 December 2012

For the FYE 31 December 2012, our Group posted revenue of RM66.7 million and profit
before tax of RM18.2 million respectively as compared to the revenue and profit before tax of
RM27.2 million and RM1.8 million respectively, for the FYE 31 December 2011. The increase
in both the revenue and profit before tax of 145% and 911% respectively was mainly
contributed by our Group's property development segment and leisure segment as well as
from an one-off gain of RM1.8 million from the divestment of the i-Home trademark.

The property development segment registered revenue and profit before tax of RM24.6
milion and RM4.7 mitlion for the FYE 31 December 2012 as compared to the zero revenue
contribution and loss before tax of RM2.6 milion for the FYE 31 December 2011. The
revenue from the property development segment was recognised progressively on the i-
Residence condominium and i-SOVO (Small Office Versatile Office) projects which were
launched during the financial year.

The property investment segment registered revenue and loss before tax of RM9.0 million
and RM2.8 million for the FYE 31 December 2012 as compared to the revenue and loss
hefore tax of RMS.0 million and RM1.2 million respectively, for the FYE 31 December 2011,
The property investment segment incurred losses despite a slight increase in revenue mainly
due to non-renewal of some tenancies upon expiry and the slow increase in the number of
new tenancies.

The leisure segment registered revenue and profit before tax of RM31.8 million and RM16.0
million for the FYE 31 December 2012 as compared to the revenue and profit before tax of
RM17.0 miflion and RM5.9 million respectively, for the FYE 31 Decemnber 2011. For the FYE
31 December 2012, the leisure segment contributed approximately 88% to our Group's profit
before tax. There were significant increase in revenue and profit before tax for the leisure
segment due mainly to higher revenue generated from the upgrading of the ShoWalk
attraction and the addition of new theme park attractions which were opened to the public

84



Company No. 7029-H |

APPENDIX Hl — INFORMATION ON QUR COMPANY (Cont’d)

since the end of 2011 together with the new water theme park aftraction that started
operations on 15 November 2012. Furthermore, there was an increase in the number of
visitors to the LED lightscape during the financial year as well.

The ICT services segment registered revenue and loss before tax of RM1.2 million and
RMO0.8 mitlion for the FYE 31 December 2012 as compared to the revenue and loss before
tax of RM1.3 million and RM1.5 million respectively, for the FYE 31 December 2011. There
was a slight decrease in revenue for the ICT services segment due to lower occupancy rate in
the Cybercentre offices. However, the ICT services segment registered lower losses for FYE
31 December 2012 as compared to preceding year mainly due fo lower depreciation charge.

OQur Board had on 31 January 2013, declared an interim single tier dividend of 4% in respect
of the FYE 31 December 2012. This in addition to the distribution of share dividend of one (1)
treasury share for every fourteen (14} existing ordinary shares of RM1.00 each held to entitled
shareholders on 28 December 2012.

FYE 31 December 2011

For the FYE ended 31 December 2011, our Group recorded revenue of RMZ27.2 million and
profit before tax of RM1.8 million respectively as compared to the revenue and profit before
tax of RM9.9 million and RM3.8 million respectively, for the FYE 31 December 2010. While
there was an increase in both the revenue and operating margin in 2011 as compared to
2010, the reduction in other operating income had resulted in a decrease in profit. The key
revenue contributor for the FYE 31 December 2011 was from our leisure segment and
followed by our property investment segment which accounted for 62% and 33% respectively
of our Group’s revenue.

The leisure segment registered revenue and profit before tax of RM17.0 million and RM7.3
million for the FYE 31 December 2011 as compared to the revenue and profit before tax of
RM2.8 million and RM2.1 million respectively, for the FYE 31 December 2010. The growth in
leisure segment was mainly due to the increase in both the number of visitors for our LED
lightscape and SnoWalk attractions as well as the contribution from new theme park
attractions which were open for the public since the end of 2011.

The property investment segment registered revenue and loss before tax of RM9.0 million
and RM1.2 million for the FYE 31 December 2011 as compared to the revenue and profit
before tax of RM4.9 million and RM1.3 miilion respectively, for the FYE 31 December 2010.
The growth in revenue in property investment segment was mainly driven by higher
occupancy rate for the Cybercentre offices, while the loss before tax for this segment was
mainly due to the provision for impairment losses on the amounts owing from the tenants
which necessary actions to recover the amount have been taken.

The ICT services segment registered revenue and loss before tax of RM1.3 million and
RM1.5 million for the FYE 31 December 2011 as compared to the revenue and profit before
tax of RMO.5 million and RM4.8 million respectively, for the FYE 31 December 2010. Our ICT
services segment contributed 5% of our Group's revenue but registered a loss before tax of
RM1.5 million rmainly due to higher depreciation charged for FYE 31 December 2011 due to
additional investment in new IT assets as compared to the previous financial year.
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9, HISTORICAL SHARE PRICES

The foliowing table sets cut the monthly highest and lowest market prices of our Shares as
transacted on the Main Market for the twelve {12) months preceding to the date of this

Prospectus:
High' Low'
RM RM

2013
10 September te 30 September 1.44 1.34
October 1.44 1.34
November 1.47 1.19
December 1.37 1.13
2014
January 1.46 1.26
February 1.49 1.33
March 1.51 1.44
April 1.82 1.43
May 1.75 1.62
June 1.73 1.63
July 1.80 1.58
August 2.40 1.76
1 September to 2 September 2.61 2.30
Last transacted market price of the Shares on 12 December 2013, 1.15
being the last trading day prior to the date of announcement of
amongst others, the Rights Issue with Warrants and the OFS
Last transacted market price of the Shares as at the LPD 214
Last transacted market price of the Shares on 9 September 2014, 2.39

being the last trading day prior to the ex-date for the Rights Issue
with Warrants and OFS

Note:

1.  Represents the adjusted share price of our Company after taking into account the Share Spiit
which was completed on 12 August 2014.

(Source: Bloomberg Finance L.P.)
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Tel: +603 2616 2BB8 12th Floor Menara Uni.Asia
BDO Fax: +603 2616 3190, 2616 3191 1008 Jalan Sultan Ismait
www.bdo.my 50250 Kuala Lumpur
Malaysia

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF I-BERHAD AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 TOGETHER WITH THE REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS’ LETTER

{Prepared for inclusion in the Prospectus to the Sharehoiders of 1-Berhad)

Date: 28 August 2014

The Board of Directors
i-Berhad

D-1-4, Jalan Multimedia 7/A)
City Park, i-City

40000 Shah Alam

Selangor Darul Ehsan

Dear Sirs
I-BERHAD (“THE COMPANY”) AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (“THE GROUP™)

Report on the Compilation of Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of Financial Position in relation
to:

(a) Renouncabie rights issue of up to 286,215,890 rights shares {“Rights Shares”) together with
up to 57,243,178 warrants on the basis of 5 rights shares for every 4 existing shares held
and 1 warrant for every 5 rights shares subscribed for by the rights entitled shareholders,
at an issue price of RMQ.69 per right share (“Rights Issue with Warrants”); and

(b} Renouncable restricted offer for sale of up to 289,132,870 five (5)-year 2% to 3%
Irredeemable Convertible Unsecured Loan Stocks (“ICULS”) by Sumurwang Sdn. Bhd. to the
entitled shareholders on the basis of 5 ICULS for every 1 existing shares held in i-Berhad, at
an offer price of RM0.50 each ICULS (“OFS”}.

We have completed our assurance engagement tc report on the compilation of the Pro Forma
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as at 31 December 2013 of the Group. The Pro Forma
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position which are set out in Appendix | (which we have
stamped for the purpose of identification), have been compiled by the Directors of the Company for
inclusion in the Prospectus to Shareholders to be dated 12 September 2014 {(“Prospectus”).

Since 31 December 2013, being the last date to which the Group’s financial statements are made up
to, up to the date of this letter, the Company had, amongst others:

(a) Effected a share split which was compieted on 12 August 2014, involving the subdivision of
every one (1) existing ordinary share of RM1.00 each in I-Berhad into two (2) ordinary shares of
RMQ.50 each in I-Berhad (“Share Split");

(b} Completed on 27 August 2014 the acquisition by I-Marcom Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, of a piece of freehold land held under Geran 26180, Lot 242, Seksyen 63,
Town and District of Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan Kuala Lumpur measuring
approximately 1.05 acres and located along Jatan Changkat Kia Peng from Sumuracres Sdn. Bhd.
for a consideration of RM132,000,000 to be settled by |-Berhad through the issuance of 5-year
3% to 5% Redeemable Convertible Unsecured Loan Stocks (“RCULS-A") issued by |-Berhad {“Kia
Peng Land Acquisition”);

BDO {AF 0206) Chartered Accountants, a Malaysian Partnership, is @ member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the
international BDO network of independent member firms.
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BDO

{c) Completed on 27 August 2014 the acquisition by |-City Properties Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, of a piece of freehold land held under Geran 311884, Lot No. 16964,
Seksyen 7, Bandar Shah Alam, District of Petaling, State of Selangor Darul Ehsan measuring
approximately 12.13 acres from The Peak @ KLCC Sdn. Bhd. for a consideration of
RM241,300,000 to be settled by a combination of RM196,300,000 ICULS issued by 1-Berhad and
RM45,000,000 5-year 3% to 5% Redeemable Convertible Unsecured Loan Stocks (“RCULS-B”)
issued by I-Berhad (“SOHO Land Acquisition™);

(d) Completed on 27 August 2014 the acquisition by City Centrepoint Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, of a piece of freehold land held under H.5.(D) 298169, PT 23957,
Seksyen 7, Bandar Shah Alam, District of Petaling, State of Selangor Darul Ehsan , measuring
approximately 7.45 acres (formerly forming part of the {and held under Geran 311886, Lot No.
16966, Seksyen 7, Bandar Shah Alam, District of Petaling, State of Selangor Darul Ehsan) from
The Peak @ KLCC Sdn. Bhd. for a consideration of RM129,000,000 to be settled by a
combination of RM105,000,000 ICULS issued by I-Berhad and RM24,000,000 RCULS-B issued by I-
Berhad (“Tower Land Acquisition”);

H

(e) Obtained shareholders’ approval on 22 July 2014 for the Rights Issue with Warrants;

(fy  Obtained shareholders’ approval on 22 July 2014 for the bonus issue of new ordinary shares to
be credited as fully paid-up on the basis of one (1) new ordinary share in the Company for every
five (5) existing ordinary shares held on an entitlement date to be determined and announced
at a later date (“Bonus Issue™);

(g} Effected the increase in authorised share capital of I-Berhad from RM200,000,000 comprising
200,000,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each to RM1,000,000,000 comprising 2,000,000,000
ordinary shares of RM0.50 each and the amendment to the Company’s Memorandum of
Association on 22 July 2014 to accommodate the Share Split, the Rights Issue with Warrants,
the new ordinary shares to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the Warrants and conversion of
the ICULS, RCULS-A and RCULS-B; and

(h)  Obtained shareholders’ approval on 22 July 2014 for the establishment of a Long Term Incentive
Plan of up to 10% of the Company’s issued and paid-up share capital for eligible employees and
eligible directors of I-Berhad and its subsidiaries (“LTIP”} which is pending implementation as at
the date of this {etter.

{collectively referred to as the “Corporate Scheme”).

The applicable criteria on the basis of which the Directors have compiled the Pre Forma Consolidated
Statements of Financial Position are described in Notes 3 and 4 of Appendix [.

The Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of Financial Position have been compiled by the Directors, for
illustrative purposes onty, to show the effects of the Corporate Scheme and OFS on the Audited
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position of the Group as at 31 December 2013 had the Corporate
Scheme and OFS been effected at that date. As part of this process, information about the Group’s
consolidated financial position has been extracted by the Directors from the Group’s Audited
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2013,

The Director’s Responsibility for the Pro Forma Consclidated Statements of Financial Position

It is the sole responsibility of the Directors of the Company to prepare the Pro Forma Censolidated
Statements of Financial Position on the basis set out in Notes 3 and 4 of Appendix i.
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BDO

Our Responsibilities

Our responsibility is to express an opinion about whether the Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of
Financial Position have been properly compiled by the Directors on the basis set out in Notes 3 and 4
of Appendix I.

We conducted our engagement in accordance with International Standard on Assurance Engagements
(“ISAE™) 3420 “Assurance Engagements to Report on the Compilation of Pro Forma Financial
Information Included in a Prospectus”, issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants. This standard
requires that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform procedures to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the Directors have compiled, in all material respects, the Pro
Forma Consolidated Statements of Financial Position on the basis set out in Notes 3 and 4 of Appendix
I

For the purposes of this engagement, we are not responsible for updating or reissuing any report or
opinion on any financial information used in compiling the Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of
Financial Position, nor have we, in the course of this engagement, performed an audit or review of
the financial information used in compiling the Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of Financial
Position. In providing this opinion, we do not accept any responsibility for such reports or opinions
beyond that owed to those to whom those report or opinion were addressed by us at the dates of
their issue.

The purpose of Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of Financial Position included in the Prospectus to
Shareholders of the Company is solely to illustrate the impact of a significant event or transaction on
unadjusted financial information of the entity as if the event had occurred or the transaction had
been undertaken at an earlier date selected for purposes of the illustration. Accordingly, we do not
provide any assurance that the actual outcome of the event or transaction would have been as
presented.

A reasonable assurance engagement to report on whether the Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of
Financial Position have been compiled, in all material respects, on the basis of the applicable criteria
involves performing procedures to assess whether the applicable criteria used by the Directors in the
compilation of Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of Financial Position provide a reasonable basis for
presenting the significant effects directly attributable to the events or transactions, and to obtain
sufficient appropriate evidence about whether:

. The related pro forma adjustments give appropriate effect to those criteria; and

) The Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of Financial Position reflect the proper application of
those adjustments to the unadjusted financial information.

The procedures selected depend on our judgement, having regard to our understanding of the nature
of the Group, the event or transaction in respect of which the Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of
Financial Position have been compiled, and other relevant engagement circumstances. The
engagement also involved evaluating the overall presentation of the Pro Forma Consolidated
Statements of Financial Position.

We believe that the evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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iBDO

Opinion
In our opinion:

(i) the Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of Financial Position have been properly compiled on
the basis set out in Notes 3 and 4 of Appendix |, using the audited financial statements of the
Group as at 31 December 2013 which are prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standards, and in a manner consistent with both the format of the financial statements and
accounting policies adopted by the Group except for the adoption of the new accounting policy
as set out in Note 3 of Appendix |; and

(ii) the adjustments made to the information used in the preparation of the Pro Forma
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position are appropriate for the purposes of preparing the
Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

Other Matter

This letter is issued for the sole purpose of inclusion in the Prospectus to Shareholders to be dated 12
September 2014 in connection with the Rights Issue with Warrants and the OFS and should not be
reproduced, or used or relied upon or circulated, quoted or otherwise referred to for any other
purposes, nor is it to be filed with or referred to in whole or in part in the Prospectus to Shareholders
or any other document without our written prior consent. We accept no duty or responsibility to and
deny any liability to any party in respect of any use of, or reliance upon this letter, other than the
Rights Issue with Warrants and the QFS described above.

Yours faithfully,

Boo \¢

BDO Ng Soe Kei
AF : 0206 2982/08/15 (J)
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Kuala Lumpur
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I-Berhad

{Company No. 7029-H)

Appendix i

Pro Ferma Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF I-BERHAD AS AT 31
DECEMBER 2013 AND THE NOTES THEREON

1.

iNTRODUCTION

The Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of Financial Position of the Group, for which the
Directors of the Company are solely responsible, have been prepared for illustrative purposes
only, in connection with the following transactions:

(a)

(b}

Since

Renouncable rights issue of up to 286,215,890 rights shares (“Rights Shares”) together
with up to 57,243,178 warrants on the basis of 5 rights shares for every 4 existing shares
held and 1 warrant for every 5 rights shares subscribed for by the rights entitled
shareholders, at an issue price of RM0.69 per right share (“Rights Issue with Warrants”);
and

Renouncable restricted offer for sale of up to 289,132,870 five (5)-year 2% to 3%
iIrredeemable Convertible Unsecured Loan Stocks (“ICULS”) by Sumurwang Sdn. Bhd. to
the entitled shareholders on the basis of 5 ICULS for every 1 existing shares held in I-
Berhad, at an offer price of RMQ.50 each ICULS (“OFS™).

31 December 2013, being the last date to which the Group’s financial statements are

made up to, up to the date of this letter, the Company had, amongst others:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Effected a share split which was completed on 12 August 2014, invelving the subdivision
of every one (1) existing ordinary share of RM1.00 each in |-Berhad into two (2) ordinary
shares of RM0.50 each in I-Berhad {*Share Split”);

Completed on 27 August 2014 the acquisition by |-Marcom Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, of a piece of freehold land held under Geran 26180, Lot 242,
Seksyen 63, Town and District of Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan Kuata Lumpur
measuring approximately 1.05 acres and located along Jalan Changkat Kia Peng from
Sumuracres Sdn. Bhd. for a consideration of RM132,000,000 to be settled by I-Berhad
through the issuance of 5-year 3% to 5% Redeemable Convertible Unsecured Loan Stocks
(“RCULS-A”) issued by {-Berhad (“Kia Peng Land Acquisition"});

Completed on 27 August 2014 the acquisition by I-City Properties Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, of a piece of freehold land held under Geran 311884,
Lot No. 16964, Seksyen 7, Bandar Shah Alam, District of Petaling, State of Selangor Darul
Ehsan measuring approximately 12.13 acres from The Peak @ KLCC Sdn. Bhd., for a
consideration of RM241,300,000 to be settled by a combination of RM196,300,000 ICULS
issued by I-Berhad and RM45,000,000 5-year 3% to 5% Redeemable Convertible Unsecured
Loan Stocks (“RCULS-B”) issued by |-Berhad {*SOHO Land Acquisition”);

Completed on 27 August 2014 the acquisition by City Centrepoint Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, of a piece of freehold land held under H.5.(D) 298169,
PT 23957, Seksyen 7, Bandar Shah Alam, District of Petaling, State of Selangor Darul
Ehsan , measuring approximately 7.45 acres (formerly forming part of the land held
under Geran 311886, Lot No. 16966, Seksyen 7, Bandar Shah Alam Dlstnct of- Petaling,
State of Selangor Darul Ehsan) from The Peak @ KLCC Sdn. Bhd. for.a conmderatlon of
RM129,000,000 to be settled by a combination of RM105,000 000 ICULS issued by |- ‘Serhad
and RM24,000,000 RCULS-B issued by I-Berhad (“Tower Land, Acquibitign/fy ;i
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Company No, 7029-H

APPENDIX IV — PROFORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
OUR GROUP AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 TOGETHER WITH THE REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS'
LETTER (Cont'd)

i-Berhad

(Company No. 7029-H)

Appendix |

Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF I-BERHAD AS AT 31
DECEMBER 2013 AND THE NOTES THEREON {(CONTINUED)

1.

INTRODUCTION (CONTINUED)

Since 31 December 2013, being the last date to which the Group’s financial statements are
made up to, up to the date of this letter, the Company had, amongst others {continued):

()
(f)

(8)

(h)

Obtained shareholders’ approval on 22 July 2014 for the Rights Issue with Warrants;

Obtained shareholders’ approval on 22 July 2014 for the bonus issue of new ordinary
shares to be credited as fully paid-up on the basis of one {1) new ordinary share in the
Company for every five (5} existing ordinary shares held on an entitlement date to be
determined and announced at a later date (“Bonus Issue™);

Effected the increase in authorised share capital of |-Berhad from RM200,000,000
comprising 200,000,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each to RM1,000,000,000 comprising
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each and the amendment to the Company’s
Memorandum of Association on 22 July 2014 to accommodate the Share Split, the Rights
Issue with Warrants, the new ordinary shares to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the
Warrants and conversion of the ICULS, RCULS-A and RCULS-B; and

Obtained shareholders’ approval on 22 July 2014 for the establishment of a Long Term
Incentive Plan of up to 10% of the Company’s issued and paid-up share capital for etigible
employees and eligible directors of I-Berhad and its subsidiaries (“LTIP”) which is pending
implementation as at the date of this letter;

(collectively referred to as the “Corporate Scheme”),

- The Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of Financial Position together with the notes thereon
have been prepared for illustrative purposes only, to show the effects of the Corporate Scheme
and the OFS on the Audited Consolidated Statements of Financial Position of the Group as at 31
December 2013, had these transactions been effected on that date. Further, such information
does not purport to predict the Group’s future financial position.
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| Company No. 7029-H |

APPENDIX IV — PROFORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
OUR GROUP AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 TOGETHER WITH THE REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS’
LETTER (Cont'd)

I-Berhad

{(Company No. 7029-H)

Appendix |

Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF |I-BERHAD AS AT 31 DECEMBER
2013 AND THE NOTES THEREON (CONTINUED)

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

2,

Note:

1

2
3

{4)

)

(6}

The following events were occurred after the end of the reporting period:

On 12 August 2014, the share split was completed following the tisting end quotation far 228,972,712 ordinary shares of RM0.50
each on the Main Market of Bursa Securities with effect from 9.00 a.m..

On 27 August 2014, the Company announced that the Company has completed the Kia Peng Land Acquisition, the SOHO Land
Acquisition and the Tower Land Acquisition resuiting in the issuance of the RCULS-A and the RCULS-B ond the provisional allotment
of the ICULS.

Toking Into account the effects due to the Implementation of the Rights Issue with Warrants and the OFS.

in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standards Implementation Committee ("FRSIC"} Consensus 13 Expenses Permitted to be
Written Off Against the Share Premium Account under Section 60 of the Companies Act, 1965 ("Act’}, costs ottributable to the
issue of shares shall be written off against the share premium account in accordance with Section 60 sub-section (3) of the Act and
Financial Reporting Standard (‘FRS"} 132 Financial instruments: Disclosure and Presentation if, and only If, it can be demonstrated
that such costs are incremental casts that are directly attributable to the issue of shares that otherwise could be avoided. All
other expenses which do not satisfy the criteria of transaction costs of an equity transaction shail be expensed off in the period
they are Incurred.

in such circumstances, the estimated expenses of RM4.0 million in relation to the Corporate Scheme were deducted from retained
eornings by RM2.9 miition and share premium account by RM1.1 million. Estimated expenses related to the OFS of approximately
RMO.6 mitlion shail be fully borne by Sumurwang Sdn. Bhd., the offeror of the OF3.

In the event that the ICULS are only converted at the end of the 5-year tenure, a total notional interest of RM5.6 million will be
recognised aver the ICULS' 5-year tentre, the annuol notional interest af which is as set out below:

Notional interest * (RM’000)

Year SOHO Land Acquisition Tower Land Acquisition Total
1 933 499 1,432
2 984 527 1,511
3 823 440 1,263
4 598 320 918
5 307 164 471

* In accordance with the FRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, after initlal recognition, financial
tiabilities shall be measured at emortised cost using the effective interest methad. The notional interest is catcutated using the
average cost of debts of the Group of 5.5% per annum over the tenure of 5 years.

{n occordonce with the FRS 123 Borrowing Costs, the annual notional interest shall be capitalised as property development costs.
Subsequently, the annual notional interest shall be expensed off by reference to the stage of completion of development activity
when the property develapment units are sold in accardance with FRS 201 Praperty Develapment Activities.

In the event that the RCULS (including the RCULS issued pursuant to the Kia Peng Land Acquisition) are only converted/redeemed
at the end aof the 5-year tenure, a total notionaf interest of RM53.3 milllon will be recognised aver the RCULS' 5-year tenure, the
annual notional interest of which is as set out below:

Notional interest * (RM’000}

Year Kia Peng Laond Acquisition SOHO Land Acquisition Tower Land Acquisition Total
1 6,569 2,239 1,194 10,002
2 6,930 2,362 1,260 10,552
3 7,093 2,418 1,2%0 10,801
4 7,193 2,452 1,308 10,953
5 7,226 2,463 1,314 11,003

* In accordance with the FRS 139 Financiol Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, after Initial recognition, financial
tiabilities shall be measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The national interest is colcutated using the
average cost of debts of the Group af 5.5% per annum over the tenure of 5 years.

In accordance with the FR5 123 Borrowing Casts, the annual notional interest shall be capitalised-o8 property-development costs.
Supsequently, the annual national interest shall be expensed off by reference to the stage ofa‘compfétwh of dévefopment activity
when the property development units are sold in accordonce with FRS 201 Properly Devempment Activftfes
: IRV I
Referring to note 5 above, in the event that the RCULS are redeemed at the end af the 5-year tenure, the notronal m{erest shall
be capitalised as property development costs. Subsequently, the annual notionat fnteresrfs hall be expensed o f by referdnce to the
stage of completion of development activity when the property development units areisold in a”ccgp cfah’ée r:ti FRS 204 Property
Development Activities. Ew fé
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APPENDIX IV — PROFORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
OUR GROUP AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 TOGETHER WITH THE REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS'
LETTER (Cont'd)

I-Berhad

{Company No. 7029-H)

Appendix |

Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

3.1

3.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of Financial Position have been prepared based on the
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group as at 31 December 2013 in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standards and in a manner consistent with both the format of the
financial statements and accounting potlicies adopted by the Group except for the adoption of
the following new accounting policy:

Warrants Reserve

Proceeds from the issuance of warrants, net of issuance costs, are credited to warrants reserve
which is non-distributable. Warrants reserve is transferred to the share premium account upon
the exercise of the warrants. Warrants reserve in relation to unexercised warrants at the expiry
of the warrants period is transferred to retained earnings.

Fair Yalue of Warrants

The fair value assigned to the Warrants of RM0.684 each is determined using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model based on the following input computed as at 26 August 2014;

(a) Theoretical ex-rights price : RM1.300

{b) Warrants exercise price : RM1.690
(¢) Tenure of Warrants : 5 years from the date of issuance of Warrants
(d) Volatility : Historically volatility extracted from Bloomberg of 68.542%
{e) Risk free interest rate : 4.094% per annum
Free
detachable
warrants

No. of Warrants (*000 units) 57,243
Warrants reserve (RM’000) 39,126

Valuation of RCULS-A and RCULS-B (collectively referred to as the “RCULS”)

RCULS is segregated into equity and liability components. The following fair value of the liability
components of the RCULS is arrived at by discounting the coupon payments over the tenure of 5
years and capital amount at the end of 5 years at a discount rate of 5.50%, the average cost of
debts of the Group.

RM’000
Liability component of the RCULS;
Kia Peng Land Acquisition 119,430
SOHO Land Acquisition 40,715
Tower Land Acquisition 21,714
‘ 181,859

The fair value of the equity component of RCULS is determined basgd:“gﬁ the pfoceegé‘*agrom the
issuance of RCULS, net of RCULS liability component and the deferréd tax tiabitity éi"i’sing\on the
equity component. ; 70 it T ]
H [EE LR A ] i

§ H
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APPENDIX IV — PROFORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
OUR GROUP AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 TOGETHER WITH THE REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS’
LETTER (Cont'd)

{-Berhad

(Company No. 7029-H)

Appendix |

Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
3.2 Valuation of RCULS-A and RCULS-B (collectively referred to as the “RCULS™) {(continued)

Kia Peng Land Acquisition

RM’'000
Proceeds from RCULS 132,000
Less: RCULS - liability portion (119,430)
RCULS - equity portion 12,570
Less: Deferred tax liability arising on the equity component # (3,017)
RCULS - equity portion (net of deferred tax liability) 9,553
SOHO Land Acquisition

RM’000
Proceeds from RCULS 45,000
Less: RCULS - liability portion {40,715)
RCULS - equity portion 4,285
Less: Deferred tax liability arising on the equity component # (1,028)
RCULS - equity portion (net of deferred tax liability) 3,257
Tower Land Acquisition

RM’000
Proceeds from RCULS . 24,000
Less: RCULS - fiability portion (21,714)
RCULS - equity portion 2,286
Less: Deferred tax liability arising on the equity component # (549)
RCULS - equity portion (net of deferred tax liability) 1,737

# The deferred tax liability is computed based on the statutory tax rate of 24% on the eguity
portion.

3.3 Valuation of ICULS

ICULS is segregated into equity and liability components. The following fair value of the liability
components of the ICULS is arrived at by discounting the coupon payments over the tenure of 5
years at a discount rate of 5.50%, the average cost of debts of the Group.

RM’000
Liabitity component of the ICULS: Jp—
SOHO Land Acquisition ST 16,966
Tower Land Acquisition ST 9,075

KN

Y
S —

H
I
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APPENDIX IV — PROFORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
OUR GROUP AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 TOGETHER WITH THE REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS’
LETTER (Cont'd)

I-Berhad

(Company No. 7029-H)

Appendix |

Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

3.3 Valuation of ICULS (continued)

The fair value of the equity component of ICULS is determined based on the proceeds from the
issuance of ICULS, net of ICULS liability component and plus the deferred tax asset arising on the

liability component.

SOHO Land Acquisition

RM’000
Proceeds from ICULS 196,300
Deferred tax asset arising on the liability component * 4,072
200,372
Less: ICULS - liability portion (16,966)
ICULS - equity portion 183,406
Tower Land Acquisition
RM’000
Proceeds from ICULS 105,000
Deferred tax asset arising on the liability component * 2,178
107,178
Less: ICULS - liability portion (9,075)
ICULS - equity portion 98,103

* The deferred tax asset is computed based on the statutory tax rate of 24% on the liability

portion.
EFFECTS OF THE PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

4.1 ProFormal

Pro Forma ! incorporates the effects of the events after the end of the reporting period as

follows:

4.1.1 Share Split

The Share Split entailed the subdivision of every one (1) shares held by shareholders of |-

Berhad into two (2) shares.

4.1.2 Kia Peng Land Acquisition

The purchase consideration of Kia Peng Land of RM1 32,009’;066 is to be settled by way of
issuance RCULS-A with nominal value of RM132,000,000. { 28 A6 0

)

.
R
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APPENDIX IV — PROFORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
OUR GROUP AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 TOGETHER WITH THE REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS’

LETTER (Cont’d)

I-Berhad

(Company No. 7029-H)

Appendix |

Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

4, EFFECTS OF THE PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(CONTINUED)

4,1 ProFormal (continued)

4.1.2 Kia Peng Land Acquisition (continued)

The Kia Peng Land Acquisition has the following impact on the Pro Forma Consolidated

Statements of Financial Position of the Group:

Property development costs
Reserves

RCULS - equity component
Borrowings

RCULS - liability component
Deferred tax liabilities

Increase/(Decrease)
Effects on
Effects on total equity
fotal assets and liabilities
RM'000 RM’000
132,000
9,553
119,430
3,017
132,000 132,000

4.1.3 S50HO Land Acquisition

The purchase consideration of SOHO Land of RM241,300,000 is to be settled by way of
issuance RCULS-B and ICULS with nominal value of RM45,000,000 and RM196,300,000

respectively.

The SOHO Land Acquisition has the following impact on the Pro Forma Consolidated

Statements of Financial Position of the Group:

Deferred tax assets
Property development costs
Reserves
RCULS - equity component
ICULS - equity component
Borrowings
- RCULS - liability component
ICULS - liability component
Deferred tax liabilities

Increase/(Decrease)
Effects on
Effects on total equity
total assets and liabilities
RM'000 RM'000
4,072 -
241,300 -
3,257
183,406
- 40,715

16,966
., 1,028

7 i,

T

T

245,372

£ Y
245,372

;
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APPENDIX IV -
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OUR GROUP AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 TOGETHER WITH THE REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS’
LETTER (Cont'd)

I-Berhad
(Company No. 7029-H)
Appendix |

Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

4.1

4.2

EFFECTS OF THE PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(CONTINUED)
ProForma i (continued)

4.1.4 Tower Land Acquisition

The purchase consideration of Tower Land of RM129,000,000 is to be settled by way of
issuance RCULS-B and ICULS with nominal value of RM24,000,000 and RM105,000,000

respectively.

The Tower Land Acquisition has the following impact on the Pro Forma Consolidated

Statements of Financial Position of the Group:

Deferred tax assets
Property development costs
Reserves
- RCULS - equity component
ICULS - equity component
Borrowings
RCULS - liability component
- ICULS - liability component
Deferred tax liabilities

Increase/(Decrease)
Effects on
Effects on total equity
total assets and liabilities
RM’000 RM’000
2,178 -
129,000 -
1,737
98,103
21,714
9,075
549
131,178 131,178

Pro Forma Il

Pro Forma Il incorporates the cumulative effects of the Pro Forma | and the effects of the Rights

Issue with Warrants.

The Rights Issue with Warrants will raise proceeds of up to RM197,488,964,

The estimated expenses of RM4,000,000 in relation to the Corporate Scheme were deducted
from retained earnings by RM2,925,000 and share premium account by RM1,075,000. Estimated
expenses related to the OFS of approximately RM600,000 shall be fully borne by Sumurwang Sdn.

Bhd., the offeror of the OFS,
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EFFECTS OF THE PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

4.2 ProFormall (continued)

The Rights Issue with Warrants has the following impact on the Pro Forma Consolidated
Statements of Financial Position of the Group:

increase/(Decrease)
Effects on total
Effects on equity and
total assets liabilities
RM'000 RM’000
Cash and cash equivalents 197,489 -
Share capital - 143,108
Reserves
- Warrants reserve - 39,126
Share premium - 15,255
197,489 197,489
The proceeds from the Rights Issue with Warrants are expected to be utilised in the following
manner:
RM’000
Property development expenditure and/or activities 160,000
Repayment of amount owing to Sumurwang Sdn. Bhd. 16,830
General working capital of the Group 16,659
Estimated expenses in relation to the Corporate Scheme 4,000
197,489

4.3  Pro Forma il
Pro Forma Il incorporates the cumulative effects of the Pro Forma Il and the effects of the OFS.

Renouncable restricted offer for sale of up to 289,132,870 ICULS by Sumurwang 5dn. Bhd. to the
entitled shareholders on the basis of five (3) ICULS for every one (1) existing shares held in I-
Berhad.

4.4 ProFormalV

Pro Forma IV incorporates the cumulative effects of the Pro Forma Il and the effects of the
Bonus Issue.

The Bonus Issue involves the issuance of the new ordinary shares of RM0.50 each on the basis of
one (1) new share for every five (5) ordinary shares held in I-Berhad after the Rights Issue with
Warrants.

The fair value assigned to the Warrants and number of Warrants will be’ ad]usted«m accordance
with the Warrants Deed Poll. The fair value assigned to the Warrarits’ and -number® of Warrants
will be adjusted from RMO0.684 to RMO.566 and 57,243,178 Warrants 10-68;691; 814, Warrants
respectively after the Bonus Issue, i

o,
s wamer T

T/ Page 13
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Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

4. EFFECTS OF THE PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(CONTINUED)

4.4 ProForma IV {continued)

The Bonus Issue has the following impact on the Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of Financial

Position of the Group:

4.5

increase/(Decrease)
Effects on
Effects on total equity
total assets and liabilities
RM’000 RM’000
Share capital - 51,519
Reserves
- Warrants reserve {260)
- Share premium - (51,259)

Pro Forma Vv

Pro Forma V incorporates the cumulative effects of the Pro Forma IV and assumes full exercise of
Warrants. The exercise price of Warrants will be adjusted in accordance with the Warrants Deed
Poll. The exercise price of Warrants will be adjusted from RM1.69 to RM1.41 after the Bonus
Issue.

The exercise of 68,691,814 Warrants has the following impact on the Pro Forma Consolidated
Statements of Financial Position of the Group:

Increase/(Decrease)
Effects on
Effects on total equity
total assets and liabilities
RM’000 RM’000
Cash and cash equivalents 96,738 -
Share capital - 34,346
Reserves:
Share premium - 101,258
- Warrants reserve (38,866)
96,738 96,738

4.6 ProFormaVl

Pro Forma VI incorporates the cumulative effects of the Pro Forma V and the effects of the full
conversion of 602,600,000 ICULS on the 5% year at the conversion price of RMO.BV

Pursuant to the conversion of 602,600,000 ICULS, 443,088,235 new ordlnary shares in I-Berhad
will be issued based on the ICULS’ nominal value of RM301,300, OOD y

% 28 AG 70

i

£
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4, EFFECTS OF THE PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

4.6 Pro Forma Vi (continued)

The full conversion of ICULS has the following impact on the Pro Forma Consolidated Statements
of Financial Position of the Group:

Increase/(Decrease)
Effects on
Effects on total equity
total assets and liabilities
RM'000 RM’000
Deferred tax assets {6,250)
Cash and cash equivalents (26,041) -
Share capital - 221,544
Reserves
- Share premium - 59,965
- ICULS - equity component - {(281,509)
- Retained earnings (6,250)
Borrowings
ICULS - tiability component - {26,041)
(32,291) (32,291)

4.7 Pro Forma VIl

Pro Forma VIl incorporates the cumulative effects of the Pro Forma Vi and the effects of the full
conversion of RCULS on the 5" year, as follows:

Nominal Conversion
Value No. of RCULS Price
RM Units RM
Kia Peng Land Acquisition 132,000,000 264,000,000 0.84
SOHO Land Acquisition 45,000,000 90,000,000 0.71
Tower Land Acquisition 24,000,000 48,000,000 0.71

201,000,000 402,000,000

Pursuant to the conversion of 402,000,000 RCULS, 254,325,956 new ordinary shares in {-Berhad
will be issued.
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4. EFFECTS OF THE PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS CF FINANCIAL POSITION

(CONTINUED)

4.7 Pro Forma Vil (continued)

The full conversion of RCULS has the following impact on the Pro Forma Consclidated Statements

of Financial Position of the Group:

Increase/(Decrease)

Effects on
Effects on total equity
total assets and liabilities
RM’000 RM’000
Cash and cash eqguivalents (28,066) -
Share capital - 127,162
Reserves
- Share premium - 41,178
= RCULS - equity component (14,547)
- Retained earnings 4,594
Borrowings
RCULS - liability component - (181,859)
Deferred tax liabilities (4,594)
(28,066) (28,066)

4.8 Pro Forma Vi

Pro Forma VIl incorporates the cumulative effects of the Pro Forma Vi and the effects of the full

redemption of 402,000,000 RCULS on the 5th year.

The full redemption of RCULS has the following impact on the Pro Forma Consolidated

Statements of Financial Position of the Group:

106

Increase/(Decrease)
Effects on
Effects on total equity
total assets and liabilities
RM’000 RM’000
Cash and cash equivalents (181,859)
Reserves
- RCULS - equity component (14,547)
Retained earnings 19,141
Borrowings
RCULS - liability component —— (181,859)
Deferred tax liabilities L {4,594)
7 (181,859) ) +14(181,859)
i i
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INCREASE IN AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL AND AMENDMENT

Effected the increase in authorised share capital of I-Berhad from RM200,000,000 comprising
200,000,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each to RMm1,000,000,000 comprising 2,000,000,000
ordinary shares of RM0.50 each and the amendment to the Company’s Memorandum of
Association on 22 July 2014 to accommodate the Share Split, the Rights Issue with Warrants, the
new ordinary shares to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the Warrants and conversion of the
ICULS, RCULS-A and RCULS-B.

LTIP

I-Berhad proposes to establish a group-wide talent retention and performance-based LTIP of up
to 10% of the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company, excluding Treasury Shares. The
LTIP is not expected to have any immediate effect on the Pro forma Consolidated Statements of
Financial Position of the Group. FRS 2 Share Based Payment issued by Malaysian Accounting
Standards Board requires the recognition of an expense arising pursuant to the LTIP which would
have an effect on the future earnings of |-Berhad Group. However, the potential effect of the
LTIP on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position cannot be determined at this juncture
as it would depend on various factors that affect the fair value of the I-Berhad shares awarded at
the date of grant. As at the date of this pro forma, no grants have been awarded.
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8. UTILISATION OF PROCEEDS

The gross proceeds from the Rights Issue of RM197,488,964 are expected to be utilised in the
following manner:

Amount
RM’000
Property development expenditure and/or activities 160,000
Repayment of amount owing to Sumurwang Sdn. Bhd. 16,830
Generat working capital of the Group 16,659
Estimated expenses in relation to the Corporate Scheme 4,000
Total 197,489
ﬁ . 3\.3‘
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}-Berhad
(Company No. 7029-H)

Appendix |
Pro Forma Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

APPROVAL BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

We, on behalf of the Board of Directors hereby approve and adopt the Pro Forma Consolidated
Statements of Financial Position of |-Berhad and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 in connection
with the Corporate Scheme and the OFS.

e

Dato’ Eu Hong Chew Puan 5ri Tey Siew Thuan
Director Director
I-Berhad I-Berhad
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CERTIFIED TRUE'COPY

4 AUG 20%

I-BERHAD (7029 - H)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS® REPORT AND AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2013
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LBERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited financial statements of the
Group and of the Company for'the financial year ended 31 December 2013,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is principally engaged in investment holding. The principal activities of the

subsidiaries are set out in Note 9 to the financial statements. There have been no significant changes
in the nature of these activities during the financial year,

RESULTS
Group Company
RM RM

Profit for the financial ycar 43,969,023 8,437,483
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company 43,968,494 8,437,483
Non-controlling interests 528 -

43,969,023 8,437,483

DIVIDENDS

Dividend paid since the end of the previous finaucial year was as follows:

RM
1n respect of the fizancial year ended 31 December 2012:
Interim single tier dividend of 4 sen per ordinary share,
paid on 25 April 2013 4,560,016

In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2013, a final single tier dividend of € sen per
ordinary share, amounting to RM6,840,025 has been proposed by the Directors for sharcholders’
approval at the forthcarning Annual General Meeting. The payment and entitlement dates will be
announced at a Jater date.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year.
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ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The Company did not issue any new shares or debentures during the financial year.

OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES

No options were granted to any person to take up unissved shares of the Company.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who have held office since the date of the last report ave:

Y. Bhg. Tan Sri Lim Kim Hong

Y. Bhg. Puan Sri Tey Siew Thuan

Y. Bhg. Dato’ Eu Hong Chew

Liang Yew Ming

Ong Poh Ling

Goh Yeang Kheng {Appointed on 1 July 20£3)

DIRECTORS® INTERESTS

The Directors holding office at the end of the financial year and their beneficial interests in the
ordinary shares of the Company and of its rclated corporations during the financial year ended 31
December 2013 as recorded in the Register of Directors” Shareholdings kept by the Company under
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia were as follows:

[---Nuwnber of ordinary shares of
RM1.00 each -]

Balance Batance
as at as at
1.1.2013 Bought Sold 31.12.2013
Shares in the Company
Direct interests:
Y. Bhg. Tan Sri Lim Kim Hong 457,500 - - 457,500
Y. Bhg. Puan Sri Tey Siew Thuan 332,142 - - 332,142
Omng Poh Ling 15,356 - - 15,356
Indirect interests:
Y. Bhg. Tan Sri Lim Kim Hong 85,283,307 - - 85,283,307*

* By virtue of his interest in Sumur Ventures Sdn. Bhd., a company incorporated in Malaysia, Y.
Bhg. Tan Sri Lim Kim Fong is deemed to have interests in the Company to the extent of Sumur
Ventures Sdn. Bhd.’s interest therein, in accordance with Section 6A of the Companies Act,
19635.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (continued)

By virtue of his interests in the ordinary shares of the Corapany, Y. Bhg. Tan Sri Lim Kim Hong is
also deemed to be interested in the ordinary shares of all the subsidiaries to the extent that the
Company has an interest.

Y. Bhg. Tan Sri Lim Kim Hong is the spouse of Y. Bhg. Puan Sti Tey Siew Thuan. By virtue of
their relationship, they are also deemed to have interests in shares held by each other, both direct
and indirect.

Other than disclosed above, none of the other Directors holding office at the end of the financial
year held any iaterest in the ordinary shares of the Company and of its velated corporations during
the financial year.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS

Since the end of the previous financial year, none of the Directors have received or become entitled
to receive any benefit (other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments
recetved or due and receivable by the Directors as shown in the financial statemenis) by reason of a
contract made by the Company or a related corporation with a Director or with a firm of which the
Director is a member, or with a company in which the Director has a substantial financial interest,
except for any benefit which may be deemed to have arisen by virtue of the remuneration received
and receivable by the Directors from certain velated corporations in their capacity as Directors or
fulf time employees of those corporations and by virtue of those transactions as disclosed in Note
32 to the financial statements.

Except as disclosed above, there were no arrangements during and at the end of the financial year,
to which the Company is a party, which had the object of enabling the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debenturcs of the Company or any other body corporate.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION REGARDING THE GROUP AND THE
COMPANY

I AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

(a) Before the statements of comprchensive income and statements of financial position
of the Group and of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable
steps:

()  to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of
bad debts and the making of provision for doubtful debts and have satisfied
themselves that there are no known bad debts to be wiitten off and that
adequate provision had been made for doubtfui debts; and

(i) to ensure that any current assets other than debts, which werc unlikely to

realise their book values in the ordinary course of business had been wriiten
down to thetr estimated realisable values.
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4

OTHER STATUTORY INIFORMATION REGARDING THE GROUP AND THE
COMPANY (continued)

0 AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR (continued)

(b) In the opinion of the Directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the
Company during the financial year have not been substantially affected by any item,
transaction or event of a material and unusval nature.

an FROM THE END OF TIIE FINANCIAL YEAR TO THE DATE OF THIS REPORT
(¢) The Directors are not aware of any circumstances:

(i) which would necessitate the writing off of bad debts or render the amount of
the provision for doubtful debts in the financial statements of the Group and of
the Company inadequate to any material extent; and

(iiy  which would render the values attributed to current assets in the [inancial
staterments of the Group and of the Company misteading; and

(iiiy which have arisen which would render adherence to the existing method of
valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading
or inappropriate.,

(d) Inthe opinion of the Directors:

()  there has not arisen any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual
nature fikely to affect substantially the results of the operations of the Group
and of the Company for the financial year in which this report is made; and

(i)  no contingent or other liability has become enforceable, or is likely to become
enforceable, within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial
year which would or may affect the ability of the Group or of the Company to
meet their obligations as and when they fall due.

I  AS AT THE DATE OF THIS REPORT

(e) There are no charges on the assets of the Group and of the Company which have
arisen since the end of the financial year to secure the liabilities of any other person.

(f) There are no countingent liabilities of the Group and of the Company which have
ariscn since the end of the financial year.

{g) The Directors are not aware of ary circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this

report ot the financial statements which would render any amount stated in the
financizi staterments of the Group and of the Company misleading.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

(a) On 19 July 2013, the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary, I-City Properties Sdn. Bhd.
(‘ICP?) had executed the Joint Venture and Shareholders' Agreement ('(JVSA’) with CPN Real
Estate Sdn. Bhd. (‘CPN Real Estate’), CPN Malls Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. (‘“CPN Malls’), Central
Plaza 1-City Malls Malaysia Sdn. Bhd., Central Plaza 1-City Sdn. Bhd. and Central Plaza I-City
Real Estate Sdn. Bhd. (‘Central Plaza I-City Reat Estate’) for the development and
management of a regional Retail Mall to be known as CentralPlaza at i-City, Section 7, Shah
Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan.

The corporate structure of the joint venture with Central Pattana Public Company Limited of
Thailand ('CPN") is as follows:

(i) The Company through ICP holds a 40% stake in a newly incorporated joint venture
company, Central Plaza 1-City Malls Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. (‘{JVCq¢’) thereby making it an
associated company of the Group, CPN through its subsidiaries, CPN Real Estate and
CPN Malls holds 60% stake in the JVCo.

(i) A newly incorporated Central Plaza I-City Sdn. Bhd., a wholly owned subsidiary of
Central Plaza 1-City Malls Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. would be the Mall Manager.

(i) A newly incorporated Central Plaza I-City Real Estate, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Central Piaza [-City Sdn. Bhd., would develop and own the Mall.

In accordance with the terms of the JVSA, Central Plaza 1-City Real Estate and the Company
had also executed a Land Salc and Purchase Agreement with Sumur Heights Sdn. Bhd.,
Sumurwang Industries Sdn. Bhd., Top Capital Sdn. Bhd., Sumur Marketing Sdn. Bhd. and
Sumuwrwang Development Sdn. Bhd, and The Peak @ KLCC Sdn. Bhd., the vendor and
beneficial owner for a piece of freehold land which forms part of the land held under Geran
No. 311885, Lot No, 16965 and part of Geran No. 311886, Lot No. 16966 of Seksyen 7,
Bandar Shah Alam, District of Petaling, State of Selangor Darul Ehsan (‘Mall Land)
measuring approximately {1.12 acres (484,376 sq ft) for a purchase consideration of RM72.66
million for the development of the Retail Mall {‘Proposed Mall Land Acquisition’).

(t) On 24 October 2013, the Company has announced the proposed acquisition by I-Marcom Sdn.
Bhd. (*I-Marcom’), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, of a piece of freehoid land
held under Geran No. 26180, Lot No. 242, Seksyen 63, Town and District of Kuala Lumpur,
Wilayah Persekutuan Kuala Lumpur measuring approximately 1.05 acres (45,764 sq ft) located
along Jalan Changkat Kia Peng from Sumuracres Sdn. Bhd. (‘the Vendor’) for a purchase
consideration of RM132.00 miilion to be settled by way of allotment and issuance of the
Redecemable Convertible Unsecured Loan Stock {(*RCULS’) to the Vendor (‘Proposed Kia
Peng Land Acquisition’).

On cven date, I-Marcom had entered into a conditional sale and purchase apreement with the
Vendor in relation to the Proposed Kia Peng Land Acquisition.

The Proposal has been approved by shareholder of I-Marcom, and is now pending approvals
from the shateholders of the Company, Sccurities Commission Malaysia, Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad (‘Bursa Securities’) and other relevant authorities.

(¢) On 18 November 2013, the Company has incorporated two new wholly-owned subsidiaries
namely City Centrepoint Sdn. Bhd. and World Citypoint Sdn. Bhd. with each baving an
authorised capital of RM400,000 divided into 400,000 ordinary shares of RMI each and a
paid-up capital of RM2 divided into 2 ordinary sharcs of RM1 each. Both of the subsidiaries
have not commenced business. The intended principal activities of the new subsidiaries are to
act as deveiopers, land and property owners.
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6
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR (continued)

{d) On 20 December 2013, the Company has announced the following proposals to Bursa
Sccuritics:

(i) proposed share split involving the subdivision of every one (1) existing ordinary share
of RM1.00 each in T-Berhad into two (2) ordinary shaves of RM0.50 each in I-Berhad
(‘Proposed Share Split’);

(ib) proposed renounceable rights issue of new ordinary shares in I-Berhad together with
free detachable warrants to raise gross proceeds of up to RM200.00 milkion (‘Proposed
Rights Issue with Warrants');

(itiy  proposed bonus issue of new ordinary shares in I-Berhad (‘Bonus Share(s)’) on the
basis of one {1} Bonus Share for every five (5) ordinary shares held (‘Proposed Bonus
Issue™);

(iv)  proposed acquisition by I-City Propertics Sdn. Bhd. (‘I-City Properties’), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, of a piece of frechold land held under Geran No.
311884, Lot No. 16964, Seksyen 7, Bandar Shah Afam, District of Petaling, State of
Selangor Darul Ehsan measuring approximately 12.13 acres from The Peak @ KLCC
Sdn. Bhd. (*The Peak @ KLCC’} for a purchase consideration of RM241.30 million to
be settled by a combination of irredeemable convertible unsecured loan stocks
(‘ICULS") and RCULS issued by I-Bethad {‘Proposed SOHQ Land Acquisition®);

{v) proposed acquisition by City Centrepoint Sdn. Bhd. (*City Centrepoint'}, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, of a piece of frechold land which currently forms
part of the land held under Geran No. 311886, Lot No. 16966, Seksyen 7, Bandar Shah
Alam, District of Petaling, State of Selangor Darul Ehsan measuring approximately
7.45 acres from The Peak @ KLCC for a purchase consideration of RM129.00 million
to be settled by a combination of TCULS and RCULS issued by I-Berhad (*Proposed
Tower Land Acquisition’);

{vi}  proposed renounceable. restricted offer for sale of up to 50% of up to RM301.30
million five (5)-year 2% stepping up to 3% ICULS at 100% of its nominal value of
RMO.50 each to be issued pursuant to the Proposed SOHO Land Acquisition and/or
the Proposed Tower land Acquisition to the minority sharcholders of I-Berhad
(‘Proposed OFS");

(vil}) proposed increase in authorised share capital of I-Berhad from RMZ200,000,000
comprising 200,000,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each to RMI,000,000,000
(‘Proposed Inercase in Authorised Share Capital’);

(viii) proposed amendment to the memorandum of association of I-Berhad (‘Proposed
Amendment’); and

(ix)  proposed establishment of a long term incentive plan of up to 10% of the issued and

paid-up share capital of the Company for eligible employees and eligible Dircctors of
I-Berhad and its subsidiaries (‘Proposed LTIP").
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR (continued)

(d) On 20 December 2013, the Company has announced the following proposals to Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad (‘Bursa Securities’) (continued):

On even date, I-City Properties had entered into a conditional sale and purchase agreement
with The Peak @ KLCC in refation to the Proposed SCHO Land Acquisition.

In addition, City Centrepoint had entered into a condjtional sate and purchase agreement with
The Peak @ KLCC in relation to the Proposed Tower Land Acquisition,

The Proposed SOHO Land Acquisition and Proposed Tower Land Acquisition have been
approved by sharcholder of I-City Properties and City Centrepoint, and are now pending
approvals from the sharecholders of the Company, Sccuritics Commission Malaysia, Bursa
Malaysia Securitics Berhad {*Bursa Securities™) and other refevant authorities.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS TO THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

(2) Cn 29 January 2014, the Red Carpet in I-City was partially destroyed by fire. There is no
significant financial implication to the Group as a result of the incident.

(b) On 6 February 2014, the Company has announced the proposed ratification of the Joint
Venture Agreement dated 10 Febroary 2609 entered into between the Company and The Peak
@ KLCC Sdn. Bhd. in place of the Joint Venture Agreement dated 28 February 2006 entered
into between the Company and Sumurwang Sdn. Bhd. for the development of a piece of
freehold tand held under Geran No. 27449, Lot No. 4598, Mukim of Bukit Raja, District of
Petaling, Selangor Darul Ehsan measuring approximately 72 acres, designated as the “1-City
Project” (*Proposed Ratification').

(¢} On 1 Aptil 2014, the Company has announced the proposed amangement between the
Company and The Peak @ KLCC in relation to the treatment of the purchase consideration
from the Proposed Mali Land Acquisition (‘Proposed Arrangement’).

On even date, the Company and The Peak @ KLCC had entered into a termination and
payment agreement to formalize the Proposed Asrangement.

In addition, the Company has announced the full details of the Proposed Ratification resulting
from the finalisation of the various appointments of advisers and the conclusions of the
independent valeations on the affected properties.

The Proposed Arrangement and Proposed Ratification are now pending approvals from the
sharcholders of the Company, Securities Commission Malaysia, Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad (‘Bursa Securitics’) and other relevant authorities,

{d) Cn 1 April 2014, its wholly-owned subsidiary, I-R&D Sdn. Bhd, has incorporated a new
wholly-owned subsidiary namely I-City Travel Sdn. Bhd. with an authorised capital of
RM400,000 divided into 400,000 ordinary shares of RM1 each and a paid-up capital of RM2
divided into 2 ordinary shares of RM1 each. The intended principal activity of the new
subsidiary is to provide transportation services.
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HOLDING COMPANIES

The Directors regard Sumur Venturus Sdn, Bhd, and Sumurwang Sdn. Bhd., as the ultimate and
iminediate holding companies respectively. Both companies are incorporated in Malaysia.
AUDITORS

The auditors, BDO, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

Puan Sri Tey Siew Thuan Dato’ Eu Moeng Chew
Director Director

Kuala Lunpuor
7 April 2014
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L-BERHAD

{(Tacorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS

In the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements sct out on pages [2 to 91 have been diawn
up in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act,
1965 in Malaysia 50 as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the
Company as at 31 December 2013 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the
financial year then ended.

In the opinion of the Directors, the information set out in Note 38 on page 92 to the Tinancial
statements has becen compiled in accordance with the Guidance on Special Matter No.l,
Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosures Pursuant
to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Reguirements, issued by the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants, and presented based on the format preseribed by Bursa Mataysia Securities Berhad.

On behaif of the Board,

Puan 5ri Tey Siew Thuan Daio’ Bu Houg Chew

Director Director

Kuala Lumpur
7 April 2014

STATUTORY DECLARATION

I, William Ong Eng San, being the Officer primarily responsible for the financial management of
I-Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declate that the financial statements set ont on pages 12 to 92
are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, correct and I miake this solemn declaration
conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virue of the provisions of the Statutory
Declarations Act, 1960,

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovenamed at Kuala Lumpur in the Federal Tenritory on
7 April 2014,

Before'ime:

SAMSIAT BINTLALE (No. W 549)
PERURUHJAYA SUMPAL
NO. 1428, TRT BAWAH,
BUN. UMNO SELANGOR
JALAN IPOH. 51208
KUALA LUMPUR WP,
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10
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF |-BERHAD

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of I-Berhad, which comprise statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2013 of the Group and of the Company, and
statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements
of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the financial year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, as set out
on pages 12 to 91,

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements so as to give a true and fair view in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. The Directors
are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit., We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in
Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our
judgement, including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we
consider internal controf relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are apprepriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Directors, as well as evaluating the averall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion,

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2013 and of their financial
performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in
Malaysia,
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IBDO

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 1-BERHAD {(continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiraments

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also
report the following:

{a} In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the
Act to be kept by the Company and its subsidiaries of which we have acted as
auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

{b) We have considered the financial statements and the auditors’ report of a
subsidiary of which we have not acted as auditors, which is indicated in Note 2 to

the financial statements.

(c) We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been
consolidated with the financial statements of the Company are in form and content
appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the financiat
statements of the Group and we have received satisfactory information and
explanations reguired by us for those purposes.

{d) The audit reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries did not contain
any qualification or any adverse comment made under Section 174(3) of the Act.

Other Reporting Responsibilities

The supplementary information set out in Note 38 to the financial statements is
disclosed to meet the requirement of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and is not part of
the financial statements. The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
supplementary information in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1,
Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure
Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Reguirements, as issued by the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants (‘MIA Guidance’} and the directive of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad. In our opinion, the supplementary information is prepared, in all
material respects, in accordance with the MIA Guidance and the directive of Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Other Matters

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance
with Section 174 of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

e s

BDO Ng Soe Kei
AF 1 0206 2982/08/15 {))
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Kuala Lumpur
7 April 2014
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I-BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

ASSETS
Non-carrent assetls

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Investments in sabsidiares
Associates

Other investments

Goodwill

Current assets

Property development costs
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Other investments

Current tax assets

Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity attributabie to owners
of the parent

Share capital

Share premium

Revaluation reserve
Exchange translation reserve
Retained earniugs

Treasury shares

Non-controlling interests

TOTALEQUITY

Note

o oW

13
14
15
11

16

17

18

12
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RM RM RM RM
65,020,039 52,234,333 {616 2,192
73,373,008 65,460,000 7,400,000 6,910,000
- - 168,560,223 || 168,560,219
3,479,733 673,304 - -
1 | - -
141,872,781 118,369,838 175,961,839 175,472,411
61,672,594 56,628,158 - -
54,471,527 54,648,290 - -
58,988,501 15,388,537 14,711,746 5,825,281
38,556 38,556 38,556 38,556
834,227 1,133,962 726,309 557,798
7,106,744 16,111,620 2,103,602 2,139,930
183,112,149 143,949,123 17,580,213 8,561,565
324,984,930 262,318,961 193,542,052 184,033,976
114,486,356 || 114,486,356 || 114,486,356 || 114,486,356
60,167,141 60,167,141 60,167,141 60,167,141
1,331,019 1,331,019 1,359,395 1,359,395
138,452 17,234 - -
41,147,429 1,738,951 10,946,503 7,069,036
(509,121) (509,121) {(509,121) (509,121)
216,761,276 177,231,580 186,450,274 182,572,807
119,494 118,965 - -
216,880,770 177,350,545 186,450,274 182,572,807

127




Company No. 7029-H

APPENDIX V — AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF OUR GROUP FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2013 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT (Cont’d)

I-BERHAD

(Tncorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 (continued}

Note
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Peferred tax liabilities 20
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 21
Current tax liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY AND
LIABILITIES

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements,

13
Group Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

RM RM RM RM
2,868,990 2,155,247 790,076 749,159
104,544,181 82,495,961 6,301,702 712,010

690,989 317,208 - -

105,235,170 82,813,169 6,301,702 712,010
108,104,160 84,968,416 7,001,778 1,461,169
324,984,930 262,318,961 193,542,052 184,033,976
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[-BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Fair value gain on investment
propetties

Other income

Other expenses

Share of profit of associates
Profit before tax

Tax expense

Profit for the financial year

Other comprehensive income,
net of tax:

Foreign currency translations
Total comprehensive income

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Noen-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:

Owners of the parent

Non-controlling interests

Basic and diluted earnings per
ordinary share attributable to
equity holders of the parent
{sen)

The accompanying notes form an integral pavt of the financial statements.

Note

22
23

24

26

30

4
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RM RM RM RM
152,147,839 66,656,181 9,000,000 11,373,127
(86,644,417  (35,853,151) - -
65,503.422 30,803,030 9,000,000 11,373,127
12,995,635 - 490,000 -
1,042,769 2,844,939 338,253 2,750,390
{26,617,240)  (15,445,750) {1,261,560) {683,030)
58,169 35,304 - -
52,982,755 18,237,523 8,566,693 13,440,493
(9,013,732  {1,578,106) (129,210) {536,462)
43,969,023 16,659,417 8,437,483 12,904,031
121,218 (45,704) - _
44,090,241 16,613,713 8,437 483 12,904,031
43,968,494 16,818,019 8,437,483 12,904,031
529 {158,602) - -
43,960,023 16,659,417 8,437,483 12,904,031
44,089,712 16,772,315 8,437,483 12,904,031
529 (158,602) ; :
44,090,241 16,613,713 8,437,483 12,904,031
38.57 14,75
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Company No. 7029-H

APPENDIX V — AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF OUR GROUP FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2013 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT (Cont'd)

LBERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

MNote

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax
Adjustmerts for:

Depreciation of property, plant

and equipment 7
Wrile-off of property, plant

and equipment 7
Dividend income
Fair value adjustiments on

investment properties 8
Gain on disposal of property,

plant and cquipment
{(Gain on disposal of trademarks
Impairment logses on:
- other investments
- trade and other reccivables
Interest income
Reversal ol impairment losses on

trade receivables 15(e)
Share of profit of an associate

Operating profit/(ioss) before
changes in working capital

Changes in working capital:
Inventories
Property development costs
Trade and other receivabics
Trade and other payables

Cash generated [rom/(used in)
operations

Tax refunded
Tax paid

Net cash [rom/{used in) operating
activities

19
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RM RM RM RM
52,982,755 18,237,523 8,566,693 13,440,493
12,977,017 7,492,229 376 576
1,929,839 - - -
- - (9,000,000) (11,373,127)
(£2,995,633) - {490,000) -
(48,940) (6,500) . -
- { 1,800,000} - (1,800,000)
- 8,262 - &.202
7,053 38,201 3,000 -
(296,855) {337,660} (72,146) (59,146)
- (3,317 - -
{58,169) (35,304) - -
54,497,065 23,093,524 (991,877) 217,058
176,763 (191.136) - -
(5,044,430) {31,252,256) - -
(43,662,648) {11,259,961) {(8,693) 10,346
20,458,285 31,079,589 180,471 8,508
26,425,029 11,465,760 {820,099) 235912
641,381 7,398 - .
(8,207,854) (986,411) {256,804) (307,086)
18,798,556 10,490,747 (1,076,503) {71,174)
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APPENDIX V — AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF OUR GROUP FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2013 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT (Cont’d)

I-BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 {continued)

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisilion of associates 10
Advances to associates
Advances o a related company
Advances to subsidiavies
Dividend received
Interest received
Proceeds from disposal of
trademarks
Proceeds from disposal of
properly, plant and equipment
Development of investment
properties 8
Purchase of propetty, plant and

eguipment 7(c)

Net cash used in investing
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVIFIES

Advances from immediate holding
company
Advanges from subsidiarics
Dividend paid 31
Net refeased/(pledged) of fixed deposits

Net cash (used in)/from lnancing
activitics

Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents

Bffect of exchange rate changes
on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of financial ycar

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of financial yeav 16

Group

2013
RM

&)
(2,746,256)

352,486

122,590
(2,298,008)

(18,795,427)

2012
RM

(40,000)
{600,000)

520,345
1,800,000

97,359

(19,585.013)

20

Company

2013
RM

(4)

(30,000)
(9,750,772)
0,400,000

72,146

2012
RM

(6,625,308)
1,479,845
59,146

1,800,000

{23,364,619)

(17,807,300)

(308,630

(3,286,317)

{4,560,018)
£4,000

(1,064,014)
{123,000)

5,000,000
909,221

(4,560,016)
(39,000)

(1,064,014)

(4,476,0§6)

(1,187,014)

1,310,205

{1,064,014)

(9,042,079)

121,203

15,988,620

(8,503,576)

(45,685)

24,537,881

(75,328)

2,139,930

(4,421,505)

6,561,435

7,007,744

(5,988,620

2,064,602

2,139,930

The accampanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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I-BERHAD
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2013

L. CORPORATE INFORMATION

I-Berhad {the “Company’) is a public limited liability compary, incorporated aand domiciled
in Malaysia, and is listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

The registered office and principal place of business of the Company is located at D-1-4,
Jalan Muitimedia 7/AJ, CityPark, i-City, 40000 Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan.

The Directors regard Sumur Ventures Sdn. Bhd. and Sumurwang Sdn. Bhd,, as the ultimate
and immediate holding companies respectively. Both companies are incorporated in
Malaysia.

The consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 Deceraber 2013
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries and the interests of the Group ia associates.
These finaacial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (‘RM"), which is also the
functional curtency of the Company,

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resofution by the
Board of Divectors on 1 April 2014.

2. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries are set out in Note 9 to the financial statements. There have been no significant
changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of the Group and of the Company set out on pages 12 to 91 have
been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards (‘FRSs') and the
requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.

However, Note 38 to the financial statements set out on page 92 has been prepared in
accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and
Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia

Securities Berhad Listing Reguirements, as issucd by the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants (*MIA Guidance’) and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Basis of acconnting

The financial statements of the Gronp and of the Company have been prepared under the
historical cost convention except as otherwise stated in the financial staterments.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
4.1 Basis of accounting (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRSs requires the Directors to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenscs and disclosuse of contingent assets and contingent liabilities. In
addition, the Directors are also required to exercise their judgement in the process of
applying the accounting policies. The areas involving such judgements, estimates and
assumptions are disclosed in Note 6 to the financial statements. Although these estirnates
and assumptions arc based on the Directors’ best knowledge of events and actions, actual
results could differ from those estimates.

4.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial stateinents incorporate the financial statements of the Company
and all its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee, Specifically, the Group controls an investee if
and only if the Group has:

(a) Power over the investee;
(b) Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
(c) The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

If the Group has less than a majority of the voting or simifar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including;

{a) The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investea;
{b) Rights arising from other contractual agreements; and
{c) The voting rights of the Group and potential voting rights.

Intragroup balances, transactions, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.
Unrealised gains arising from transactions with associates are eliminated against the
investment to the extent of the interest of the Group in the investee. Unrealised losses arc
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no
impairment.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as
that of the Company, using consistent accounting policies. Where necessary, accounting
policies of subsidiaties are changed to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
other entities in the Group.

Nou-controlling intercsts represent the equity in subsidiaries that are not attributabie,
directly or indirectly, to owners of the parent, and is presented separately in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated
statements of financial position, separately from cquity attributable to owners of the
Company, Statements of comprehensive income and cach component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprechensive income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controfling interests having a deficit balance.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)
4.2 Basis of consolidation (continucd)

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controis an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes o one or more of the thres elements of control. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group up to the
effective date on which contral ceases, as appropriate. Assets, [iabilities, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the financial year are included in
the statements of comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until the
date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary,

Changes in the Company owner’s ownership intetest in a subsidiary that do not result in a
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. In such circamstances, the catrying
amounts of the controtling and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Ary difference between the amount by which the
nor-controiling interest is adjusted and the fair valne of consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and atteibated ta owners of the patent.

If the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposat is calculated as the
difference between:

{a) The ageregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest; and

(b} The previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for (i.c. reclassified to statements of comprehensive income or transferred
directly to retained earnings) in the same manner as would be required if the relevant assets
or liabilities were disposed of. The fair value of any investments vetained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under FRS 139 Financiol Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement or, where applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
associate or jointly controlled entity.

4.3 Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when the cost is incuried and it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the subsequent costs would flow to the Group and the
cost of the asset could be measured reliably. The carrying amount of parts that are replaced
is derccognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and cquipraent are
recognised in statements of comprehensive income as incurred. Cost also compriscs the
initial estimate of dismantling and removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is
focated fer which the Group is obligated to incur when the asset is acquired, if applicable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
43 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significaut in
relation to the total cost of the asset and which has a different uscful life, is depreciated
separately.

After initial recognition, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of the assets to their residual
values on a straight line basis over their estimated usetul lives. The assets’ residual values
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropiiate, annually. The principal
depreciation pericds and rates are as follows:

Sales gallery 20%
Office equipment, furniture, fittings and fixtures and renovation 10% to 33%
Motor vehicles ) 20%
Plant and equipment [0% to 50%

Freehold fand is not depreciated as it has indefinite life.

Construction-in-progress represents buildings under construction and is stated at cost.
Construction-in-progress is not depreciated until such time when the asset is available for
Hse.

At the end of each reporting period, the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and
equipment is assessed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that its carrying amount may not be recoverable, A write down is made if the carying
amount exceeds the recoverable amount (see Note 4.10 to the financial statements on
impairment of non-financial assets).

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to ense that the amount, method and pericd of depreciation are
consistent with previous estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future
economic benefits embodied in the items of property, plant and equipment, If expectations
differ from previous estimates, the changes are accounted for as a change in an accounting
estimate.

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and cquipment is derecognised on
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal, The
difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount is included in
staterments of comprehensive income and the revaluation surplus refated to those assets, if
any, is transferred directly to retained earnings.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.4 Leases

A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee in return for a payment, or
series of payments, the right asset for an agreed period of time.

(a) Operating leases

Accounting ay lessee

Leases of asscts where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor arc classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases are charged to statements of comprehensive income over the lease
petiod.

Accounting as lessor

Assets loased out under operating leases are included in property, plant and
equipment or investment properties, where applicable, in the statements of financial
position. They are depreciated over their useful lives on bases consistent with similar
owned property, plant and equipment or investment properties, where applicable.
Rental income (net of any incentives given to lessees) is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

4.5 Property development activities
{a) Land held for property development

Land held for property development is stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.
Such land 15 classified as non-current asset when no significant development work
has been carried ont or where development activities are not expected to be
completed within the normal operating cycle.

Cost associated with the acquisition of laud includes the purchase price of the land,
professional fees, stamp duties, commissions, conversion fees and other relevant
levies.

Land held for propeity development is reclassified as property development costs at
the point when development activities have commenced and where it can be
demonstrated that the development activities can be corapleted within the normal
operating cycle,

(b) Property development costs

Property development costs comprise all costs that are directly attributable to the
development activities or that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to such
activities. They comprise the cost of land under development, construction costs and
other related development costs common to the whole project including professional
fees, stamp duties, commissions, conversion Fees and other relevant levies as well ag
borrowing costs.

140



{ Company No. 7029-H

APPENDIX V -~ AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF OUR GROUP FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2013 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT (Cont'd)

26

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
4.5 Property development activities (continued)
(b)  Property development costs (continned}

When revenue recognised in statements of comprehensive income exceeds progress
billings to purchasers, the balance is classified as accrued billings under current
assets. When progress billings exceed revenue recognised in statements of
comprchensive income, the balance is classified as progress billings under current
liabilities.

4.6 Investinent propertics

Investment properties are properties which are held to earn rental yields or for capital
appreciation or for both and are not occupied by the Group. Investment properties also
include properties that are being constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties. Investment properties are initially measured at cost, which includes transaction
costs. After initial recognition, investiment properties are stated at fair value.

I the Group determines that the fair value of an investment property under construction is
not reliably determinable but expects the fair value of the property to be reliably
determinable when construction is complete, the Group shall measure that investment
property under constraction at cost until either its fair value becomes reliably determinable
or construction is completed (whichever is earlier). Once the Group is able to measure
reliably the fair value of an investment property under construction that has previously
been measured at cost, the Group shall measure that property at its fair value.

The fair valoe of investment properties reflect among other things, rental income from
curtent feases and other assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
investrnent properties under corrent market conditions.,

Fair values of investment properties are determined based on investment and comparison
methods. 1t is performed by registered independent valuers with appropriate recognised
professional qualification and has recent experience in the location and category of the
investment properties being valued.

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of investment properties is recognised
in statements of comprehensive income for the period in which it arises.

Investraent properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when
they arc permanently withdeawn from use and no future economic benefit is cxpected from
their disposal. The gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of investment
property is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in statements of comprehensive income in
the period of the retirement or disposal.

4.7 Borrowings and borrowing costs
(a) Classification

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred,
Borrowings are subsequentty carried at amortised cost; any difference between initial
recognised amount and the redemption value is recognised in the statements af
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using the cffective yield
method.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
4.7 Borrowings and borrowing costs (contintted)
(a)  Classification (continied)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are regarded as transaction costs of
the loan to the extent that it is possible some or all of the facility will be drawdown.
In this case, the fec is deferred until the drawdown occurs to the exteat there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all the facility will be drawdown. The fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for a Hquidity services and amortised over the period of
the facility of which is relates.

Borrowings ate classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the lability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

() Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until suck time as
the asscts are substantially ready for their intended use or sale, Borrowing costs
incurred to finance property development activities and constrizction contracts are
accounted for in a similar manner. All other borrowing costs are expensed to the
statements of comprehensive income in the period in which they are incurred.

4.8 Investments
(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Group and the Company ate exposed, or have
rights, to variable returns from its involvemcnt with the subsidiary and have the
ability to affect those retumns through its power over the subsidiary.

An investment in subsidiary, which is eliminated on consolidation, is stated in the
scparate financial statements of the Company at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Put options writtcn over non-controlling interests on the acquisition of
subsidiary shall be included as part of the cost of investment in the separate financial
statements of the Commpany. Subsequent changes in the fair value of the written put
options over non-controlling inferests shall be recognised in statements of
comprehensive income. Investments accounted for at cost shall be accounted for in
accordance with FRS 5 Non-current Assets Meld for Sale and Discontinued
Operations when they are classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that s classified as held for sale) in accordance with FRS 3.

When control of a subsidiary is lost as a result of a transaction, event or other
circumnstance, the Group would derecogaise all assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests at their carrying amount and recoganise the fair value of the consideration
received. Any retained interest in the former subsidiary i1s recognised at ity fair value
at the date control is lost. The resulting difference is recognised as a gain or loss in
statements of comprehensive iucome,
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
4.8 Investments (continued)

(b) Associate

An associate s an entity over which the Group and the Company have significant
infiuence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint arrangement.
Significant inflaence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is neither control nor joint contrel over those policies.

In the separate financial statements of the Company, an investment in associate is
stated at cost less impairment losses.

An investment in associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial staternents
using the equity method of accounting. The investment in associate in the
consolidated statements of financial position is initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the share of net assets of the
investments of the Group.

The interest in an associate is the carrying amount of the investment in the associate
under the equity method together with any long term interest that, ie substance, form
part of the net investment in the associate of the Group.

The share of the profit or loss of the associate by the Group during the financial year
is included in the consolidated financial statements, after adjustments to align the
accounting policies with those of the Group, from the date that significant influence
commences until the date that significant influence ceases. Distributions received
from the associate reduce the carrying amount of the investment. Adjustments to the
carrying amount could also be necessary for changes in the proportionate intcrest of
the Group in the associate arising from changes in the associate’s equity that have not
been recogniscd in the associate’s statement of comprehensive income. Such changes
include those arising from the revaluation of property, plant and equiprnent and from
foreign exchange translation differences. The share of those changes by the Group is
recognised directly in equity of the Group.

When the share of losses of the Group in the associate eguals to or exceeds its
interest in the associate, the carrying amount of that interest i reduced to nil and the
Group does not recognise further losses unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on its behalf.

The most regent available financial statements of the associate are used by the Group
in applying the equity method. When the end of the reporting periods of the finaneial
statements are not coterminous, the share of results is arrived at using the latest
audited financial statements for which the difference in end of the reporting periods is
no mote than three months. Adjustments are made for the effects of any significant
transactions or events that occur between the intervening periods.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate, any retained
interest in the former associatc at the date when significant influence is lost is
measured at fair valoe and this amount is regarded as the initial canying amount of a
financial asset. The difference between the fair value of any retained interest plus
proceeds from the interest disposed of and the carrying amount of the investment at
the date when equity method is discontinued is recognised in the statements of
comprehensive income.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continned)
4.8 Investments (continuwed)
(b}  Associate {continued)

When the interest of the Group in an associate decreases but does not result in a logs
of significant influence, any retained interest is not re-measured, Any gain or loss
arising from the decrease in interest is recognised in statements of comprehensive
income. Any gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are also reclassificd proportionately to the statements of comprehensive income if
that gain or loss wonld be required to be reclassified to statements of comprehensive
income on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

4.9 Goodwill

Goodwill recognised in a business combination is an asset at the acquisition date and is
initially measured at cost being the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the Fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest (if any) in the entity over net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and the Jiabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the
interest of the Group in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any}, the excess is recognised immediately in statements of comprehensive income as a
bargain purchase gain.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost fess accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Goodwill is not amortised but instead tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circurnstances indicate that the cartying amount could be
impaired. Objective events that would trigger a more frequent impairment review include
adverse industry or economic trends, significant restructuring actions, significantly lowered
projections of profitability or a sustaincd decline in the acquires’s market capitalisation.
Gains and losses on the disposal of au entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill arising on acquisition of an associate is the excess of cost of investment over the
share of the net fair value of net assets of the associates’ identifiable agsets and Habilities by
the Group at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill relating to the associate is included in the carrying amouat of the investment and
is not amortised. The excess of the share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable
assets and fiabilities by the Group over the cost of investment is included as income in the
determination of the share of the associatc’s statement of comprehensive income by the
Group in the period in which the investment is acquired.

4,16  Impainnent of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of assets, except for financial assets (excluding investments in
subsidiaries and associates), inventorics, deferred tax assets and investment properties
measured at fair value, are revicwed at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(continued)
4,10  Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

Goodwill that has an indefinite usefu] life are tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the goodwill might be
impaired.

The recoverable amount of an asset is estimated for an individual asset. Where it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the impairment test is
carried out on the cash gencrating wait (*CGU") to which the asset belongs. Goodwill
acquired in a business combination is from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
CGU or groups of CGU of the Group that are expected to benefit from the synergics of the
combination giving rise to the goodwili irrespective of whether ather assets or liabilities of
the acquiree are assigned to those units or groups of units,

Goodwill acquired in a business combination shall be tested for impairment as part of the
impairment testing of CGY to which it relates. The CGU to which goodwill is allocated
shall represent the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitorcd for
internal munagement purposes and not larger than an operating segment determined in
accordance with FRS 8 Operating Segments.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell
art its value in use.

In estimating the value in use, the sstimated future cash inflows and outflows to be derived
from continuing use of the asset and from its nltimate disposal are discounted to their
present valiue using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the future cash flow
estimates have not been adjusted. An impairment loss is recognised in statements of
comprehensive incomg when the carrying amount of the asset or the CGU, including the
goodwill, exceeds the recoverable amount of the asset or the CGU. The total impairment
loss is allocated, first, to reduce the camying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU
and then to the other assets of the CGL} on a pro-rata basis of the carrying amount of each
asset in the CGLJ.

The impairment foss is recognised i statersents of comprehensive income immediately
except for the impairment on a revalued asset where the impairment loss is recognised
directly against the revaluation reserve to the extent of the surplus credited from the
previous revaluation for the same asset with the excess of the impairment loss charged to
statements of comprehensive income,

An impairment oss on goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods, An impairment loss
for other assets is reversed if, and only if, there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the assets’ recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised,

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exeeed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Such reversals ave recognised as income immediately in statements of compeehensive
income ¢xcept for the reversal of an impairment loss on 2 revalued asset where the reversal
of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase and credited to the revaluation
reserve account of the same asset. However, to the extent that an impairment loss on the
same revalued asset was previously recognised in statements of comprehensive income, a
reversal of that iropairment loss is also recognised in statements of comprehensive income.

145



LCompany Na. 7029-H

APPENDIX V — AUDITED CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF OUR GROUP FOR
THE FYE 31 DECEMBER 2013 TOGETHER WITH THE AUDITORS’ REPORT (Cont’d)

31
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
4.11  Inventories
(a) Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost consists of cost associated with the acquisition of land, divect costs and
appropriate proportions of common costs atiributable to developing the properties to
completion.

(b} Consumables
Consumables are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined using the first in, first out formula. The cost comprises all costs of
purchase, cost of conversion plus other costs incurred in bringing the inventorics to
their present focation and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less the estimated costs of completion and the cstimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

4.12  Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one enterprise
and a financial Iiability or equity instrument of another enterprise.

A financial asset is any agsct that is cash, an cquity instrament of another enterprise, a
contractual right to receive cash or another finaucial asset from another enterprise, or a
contractual right to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another enterprise
under conditions that are potentially favourable to the Group.

A Ffinancial liability is any Lability that is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another
financial asset to another enterprise, or a contractual obligation to exchange financial assets
or financial liabilities with another enterprise under conditions that are potentially
unfavoneable to the Group.

Financial instruments are recogniscd on the statements of financial position when the
Group has become a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. At initial
recognition, a financial instriment is recognised at fair vatue plus, in the case of a financial
instrument not at fair value through profil or loss, transaction costs that ave directly
attributable to the acquisition or issuance of the financial instrument,

An embedded derivative is separated from the host contract and accounted for as a
derivative if, and only if the cconomic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative
is not closcly retated to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract, a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative meets the definition of
a derivative, and the hybrid instrument is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
412 Tinancial instruments (continued)
(a) Financial assets

A financial asset is classified into the following four categories after initial
recognition for the purpose of subsequent measurement:

(3}  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or foss comprise financial assets
that are held for trading (i.e. financial assets acquired principally for the
purposc of resale in the near term), derivatives (both, freestanding and
embedded} and Financial assets that were specifically designated into this
classification upon initial recognition.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets classified as at fair value
through profit or loss ate measured at fair value. Any gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of financial assets classified as at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in staterpents of comprehensive income.
Net gains or losses on financial assets classified as at fair value through profit
or loss exclude foreign exchange gains and losses, interest and dividend
income. Such income is recognised separately in statements of comprechensive
income as components of other income or other operating losses.

However, derivatives that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of
unquoted equity instruraents that do not have a quoted market price in an active
markel are recognised at cost.

(i) Held-to-maturity investments

Financial assets clagsified as heid-to-maturity comprise non-derivative
financial asscts with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the
Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets classified as held-to-maturity
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains or
losses on financial assets classified as held-to-maturity are recognised in
statements of comprehensive income when the financial assets are
derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.

(iif) Loans and receivables

Financial assets classified as {oans and receivables comprise non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market,

Subsequent to initial rccognition, financial assets classified as loans and
receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Gains ov fosses on financial asscts classified as loans and receivables are
recognised in statements of comprehensive income when the financial assets
are derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Financial instruments (continued)
{a) Financial assets {continued)
{iv) Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial assets classified as available-for-sale comprise non-derivative
financial assets that are designated as available for sale or are not classified as
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial asscts at fair
value throngh profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets classified as available-for-
sale ure measured at fair value. Any gains or Josses arising from changes in the
fair value of financial assets classified as available-for-sale are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income, except for impairment losses and
foreign exchange gains and losses, until the financial asset is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprebensive income are recognised in statements of comprehensive income,
However, intercst calculated using the effective interest method is recognised
in statements of comprehensive income whilst dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised in statements of comprehensive income
when the right of the Group to receive payment is established.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank balances, bank overdrafts, fixed
deposits pledged to financial institutions, deposits and other short term, highly liquid
investrnents with original maturities of three months or less, which are readily
convertible to cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractuat right to receive cash flows
from the financial asset has expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in its
entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and any
cumtlative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in other comprehensive
income shall be recognised in statements of comprehensive income.

A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset under a
contract whose terins require delivery of the asset within the time frame established
generally by regulation or marketplace convention. A regular way purchase or sale of
financial assets shall be recognised and derecognised, as applicable, using trade date
accounting.

{b) Financial liabilitics

Financial instruments are classified as liabilitics or equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangement. A financial liability is classified into the
following two categories after initial recognition for the purpose of subsequent
measurement:

(i)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss comprise financial
Habilities that are held for trading, derivatives (both, freestanding and
embedded) and financial liabilities that were specifically designated into this
classification upon tnitial recognition.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
4.12  Tinancial instruments (continued)
(b) Financial habilities (continued)
(i)  Financial fiabilities at fair value through profit or ioss (continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities classified as at fair value
through profit ot loss are mcasured at fair value., Any gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of financial liabilities classified as at fair value
through profit ov Joss are recognised in statements of comprehensive income.
Net gains or losses on financial liabilitics classified as at fair value through
profit or loss exclude foreign exchange gains and losses, intercst and dividend
income. Such income is recognised separately in statements of comprehensive
income as components of other income or other operating losses,

{ii) Other financial Habilitics

Financial liabilities classified as other financial labilities comprise non-
derivative financial habilities that are neither held for trading nor initially
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, other financial liabilities are measured at
amortised cost using the cffective interest method. Gains or losses on other
financial liabilitics are recognised in staternents of comprehensive income
when the financial liabilities are derecognised and through the amortisation
Process,

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, it is extinguished, i.c.
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expites. An
exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with
substautially different terms are accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similaily, a
substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability is accounted for
as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of & new
financial lability.

Any difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised ta statements of comprehensive
incorme.

A financial guarantec contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument.

{c) Equity
An equity instrurnent is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of

the Group and the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are
classified as equity instruments.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.12  Financial instrmments (continued)
(c) Equity (coatinued)

Ordinary shares are recorded at the nominal value and proceeds in excess of the
nominal value of shares issued, if any, are accounted for as share premium. Both
ordinary shares and share premiom are classificd as equity. Transaction costs of an
equity transaction ate accounted for as a deduction from equity, net of any related
income tax benefit. Otherwise, they are charged to statements of comprehensive
income.

Interim dividends to shareholders are recognised in equity in the period in which they
are declared. Final dividends are recognised upon the approval of sharcholders in a
general meeting,

The Group measures a liability to distribute non-cash assets as a dividend to the
owners of the Company at the fair value of the assets to be distributed. The carrying
amount of the dividend is remeasured at each reporting date and at the settlement date,
with any changes recogniscd directly in equity as adjustments to the amount of the
distribution. On settlement of the transaction, the Group recognises the difference, if
any, between the cartying amount of the assets distributed and the careying amount of
the {iability in staterments of comprehensive income.

When the Group repurchases its own shares, the shares repurchased would be
accounted for using the treasury stock method.

Where the treasury stock method is applied, the shares repurchased and held as
treasury shares shall be measured and carried at the cost of repurchase on initial
recognition and subscquently. it shall not be revalued for subsequent changes in the
fair value or market price of the shares,

The carrying amount of the treasury shares shall be offsct against equity in the
statements of financial position. To the exteat that the carrying amount of the
treasury shares exceeds the share premium account, it shall be considered as a
reduction of any other reserves as may be permitted by the Main Market Listing
Requirements.

No gain or loss is recognised in statements of cowprehensive income on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the own cquity instruments of the Cormpany. If
such shares are issued by resale, any difference between the sales consideration and
the carrying amount is shown as a movement in equity.

4.13  Impairment of financial asseis

The Group assesses whether there is any objective c¢vidence that a financial asset is
impaired at the end of each reporting period.

(a) Loans and receivables

The Group collectively considers factors such as the probability of bankruptcy or
significant financial difficulties of the receivable, and default or significant delay in
payments by the receivabie, to determine whether there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on loans and rcceivables has cceurred. Other objective evidence of
tmpairment include historical collection rates determined on an jndividual basis and
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that are directly
correlated with the historical default rates of receivables.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4,13  Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(2} Loans and receivables (continued)

If any such objective evidence exists, the amount of impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated foture cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original cffective
interest rate, The imopairment loss 1s recognised in statements of comprehensive
income.,

The carrying amount of loans and receivables is reduced through the use of an
allowance account.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and it
objectively relates to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impaitment loss is reversed to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. The
amount of impaitment teversed is recognised in statements of comprehensive
income.

(b}  Available-for-sale financial assets

The Group collectively counsiders factors such as significant or protonged decline in
fair value below cost, significant financial difficulties of the issuer or obligor, and the
disappearance of am active trading market as objective evidence that available-for-
sale financial assets are impaired,

If any such objective evidence exists, an amount comprising the difference between
the financial assel’s cost (net of any principal payment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in statements of
comprehensive income, is transferred from equity to statements of comprchensive
income,

Impairment losses in respect of unquoted equity instrument that is carried at cost is
recognised in statements of comprehensive income and is measured as the difference
between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return fou a similar financial
asset,

Impairment Josses on available-for-sale equity investments are not reversed in
statements of comprehensive income in subsequent periods. Instead, any increase in
the fair value subsequent to the tmpairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale debt investments arc subscquently reversed
in staternents of comprehensive income if the increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of
the impairment loss in statements of comprehensive income.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4,14  Income taxes

Income taxes inciude all domestic and foreign taxes on taxable profit. Income taxes also
include other taxes, such as withholding taxes and rcal property gains taxes payable on
disposal of properties, if any.

Taxes in the statements of comprehensive income comprise current tax and deferred tax.

{a) Current tax

Current tax expenses are determined according to the tax laws of each jurisdiction in
which the Group operates and include all taxes based upeon the taxable profits
(including withholding taxes) and real property gains taxes payable on disposal of
properties, if any,

(b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in full using the liability method on temporary differences
arising between the carrying amount of an asset or lability in the statements of
financial position and its tax base.

Deferred tax is recognised for all temporary differences, unless the deferred tax arises
from goodwill or the initial recognition of au asset or liability in a transaction which
is not a business combination and at the time of transaction, affects ncither
accounting profit nor taxable profit.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits would be avatlable against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised. The carrying
amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period. If it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits would be available to allow the
benefit of part or all of that deferred tax asset to be utiliscd, the carrying amount of
the deferred tax asset would be reduced accordingly, When it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits would be available, such reductions would be reversed to
the extent of the taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes relate to the same taxation authority on either:

(i}  the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entitics which intend cither to settle current tax liabilities and
assets onm a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets arc expected to be settled or recovered.

Deferred tax would be recognised as income or expense and included in statements of
comprehensive income for the period unless the tax relates to items that are credited
or charged, in the same or a different period, directly to equity, in which case the
deferred tax would be charged or credited directly to equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arc measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the
announcement of tax rates and tax laws by the Government in the annual budgets
which have the substantive effect of actual enactment by the end of the reporting
period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICILS (continued)

4,15  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation, legal or counstructive, as a
result of a past event, and when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits would be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obiigation.

If the effect of the time value of money is matertal, the amount of a provision would be
discounted to its present value at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability,

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to eflect the
current best estimate. If it is no Jonger probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits would be required to settle the obligation, the provision would be
reversed.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses, If the Group has a contract that is
onerous, the present obligation under the contract shall be recognised and measured as a
provision.

416  Contingent linbilities and contingent assets

A contingent fiability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence
would be confirmed by the occuirence or non-occuirence of one ot more oncertain future
cvents beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognised
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there s a
liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does
not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements,

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events whose existence would be
confirmed by the oceurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Group., The Group does not recognise a contingent asset but
discloses its cxistence where the inflows of economic benefits are probable, but not
virtually certain.

In the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group under business combinations, contigent
liabilities assumed are measured initially at their fair value at the acquisition date.

4.17 Employee benefits
(a)  Short term employee benefits

Wages, salaries, social security contributions, paid annual leave, paid sick leave,
bonuses and non-monetary benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed when employees rendered their services te the Group,

Short term accumulating compensated absences such as paid annual leave are
recognised as an expense when employees render services that increase their
entitlerment  to  future compensated absences. Short term  non-accumulating
compensated absences such as sick leave are recognised when the absences occur and
they lapse if the current period’s entitlement is not used in full and do not entitle
employees to a cash payment for unused entitlement on leaving the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

417  Employee benefits (continued)
{a}  Short term employce benefits (continued}

Bonuses are recognised as an expense when there is a present, legal or constructive
obligation to make such payments, as a result of past events and when a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

(b} Defined contribution plaus

The Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in Malaysia make contributions to a
statutory provident fund. The contributions are recognised as a liability after
deducting any contribution already paid and as an expense in the period in which the
employees render their services.

4,18  Foreign currencies
{a)  Functional and presenlation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the entitics of the Group are
measured vsing the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Ringgit Malaysia (‘RM’), which is the functional and presentation
currency of the Company.

(b) Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into the fonctional currency at rates
of exchange ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies at the end of the reporting period are translated into the functional
currency at rates of exchange roling at that date. All exchange differences arising
from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from the translation of
foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are included in statements of
comprchensive income in the period in which they arise. Non-monctary items
initially denominated in foreign currencies, which are carried at historical cost are
translated using the historical rate as of the date of acquisition, and non-monetary
items, which are carried at fair value are translated using the exchange rate that
existed when the values were determined for presentation currency purposes.

(¢) Foreign operations

Financial statements of foreign operations are transiated at end of the reporting period
exchange rates with respect to their assets and hLabilities, and at exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions with respect to the statements of comprehensive income. All
resulting translation differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the net
investment of the Company in a foreign operation shall be recognised in statements
of comprehensive income 1n the separate financial statements of the Company or the
foreign operation, as appropriate. In the consolidated financial statements, soch
exchange differences shall be recognised inittally as a separate component of equity
and recognised in statements of comprehensive income upon disposal of the net
investment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continned)
4.18  Foreign currencies (continued)
(c)  Poreign operations (continucd)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to the assets and liabilities arising [rom the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the acquired
entity and transfated at the exchange rate ruling at the end of each reporting period.

4.19  Revenne recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivables, net of
discounts and rebates,

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction would flow to the Group, and the amount of revenue and the cost
incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be reliably measured and specific
recognition criteria have been met, as follows:

() Property development

Property development revenue is recognised in respect of all development units that
have becn sold. Revenue recognition commences when the sale of the development
unit is effected, upon the commencement of development and construction activities
and when the financial outcome can be reliably estimated. The attributable portion of
property development cost is recognised as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount of such revenue and expenses recognised
is determined by reference to the stage of completion of development activity at the
endt of the reporting period. The stage of completion is measured by reference to the
proportion that property development costs incurred for work performed to date bear
to the estimated totat property development cost.

When the financial outcome of a development activity cannot be reliably estimated,
the property development revenue s recognised only to the extent of property
development costs incurred that is probable to be recoverable and the property
development costs on the development units sold are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

Any cxpected loss on a development project is recognised as am expense
immediately, including costs to be incurred over the defects fiability period.

(b} Rental income

Rental income is accounted for on a steaight line basis over the lease term of an
ongoing lease. The aggregate cost of incentives provided to the lessee is recognised
as reduction of rental imcome over the lease term on a straight line basis.

{¢) Maintenance fee

Maintenance [ee is accounted for on an accrual basis.
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4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
419 Revenue recognition {continued)
(Y  Income from leisure activities

Revenve from promotion, marketing and management of events, leisure and other
tourism related activities is recognised when services are rendered.

(e) Sales of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have been transferred to the customer and where the Group

does not have continuing managerial involvement over the goods, which coincides
with the delivery of goods and acceptance by customers.

{f} Services
Revenue from the provision of services in relation to management of network and
telephony as well as development of MSC Cybercentre and Technopreneur Campus
is recognised when services are rendered.

(&) Completed properties held for sale
Revenue from the sales of completed properties held for sale is recognised as and
when the transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer uspon
signing of sale and purchase agreement has been completed.

(hy Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

(iy Intercst income
Interest income 1s recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest method.

4,20  Earnings per share

(a) Basic
Basic earnings per ordinary share for the financial year is caleulated by dividing the
profit for the financial year atiributable to equity holders of the parent by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial yeas.

(b) Diluted
Diluted earnings per ordinary share for the financial year is calculated by dividing the
profit for the financial ycar attributable 1o equity holders of the parent by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year
adjusted for the effects of dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
4.21  Operating segments
Operating segments are defined 4s components of the Group that:

(a) engages in business activities from which it could earn revenues and incur expenses
(including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with other components of
the Group);

(b} whose operating results are vegularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
makers of the Group (i.e. the Directors) in making decisions about resources to be
allocated ta the scgment and assessing its performance; and

{¢) for which discrete financjal information is available.

An operating segment may cngage in business activities for which it has yet to earn
revenies.

The Group roports separately information about cach operating segment that meets any of
the following quantitative thresholds:

(a) Its reported revenue, including both sules to external customers and intersegrent
sales or transfers, is 10 per cent or more of the combined revenue, interpal and
external, of all operating segments.

(b} The absolute amount of its reported profit or loss is 1O per cent or more of the
greater, in absolute amount of:

(i) the combined reported profit of all operating segments that did not report a
loss; and

(ii)  the combined reported toss of all operating segments that reported a loss.
{c} Tts assets are 10 per cent or more of the combined assets of all operating segments,
Operating segments that do not meet any of the quantitative thresholds may be considered
reportable, and separately disclosed, if the management believes that information about the
segment would be useful to users of the financial statements.
Total external revenue reported by operating segments shall constitute at least 75 percent of
the revenuc of the Group. Operating segments identified as reportable segments in the

current financial year in accordance with the quantitative thresholds would result in a
restatement of prior period segment data for comparative purposes.
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5. ADOPTION OF NEW FRSs AND AMENDMENT TO FRSs
5.1 New FRSs adopted during the financial year

The Group and the Company adopted the following accounting standards, amendments and
interpretations of the FRS Framework that were issued by the Malaysian Accounting
Standards Board (‘MASB’) during the financial vear.

Title Effective Date
Amendments to FRS  Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive 1 July 2012
101 Income
ERS 16 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2013
FRS 11 Joint Arrangements 1 Janunary 2013
FRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities | January 2013
EFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013
FRS 119 Employee Benefits (2011) 1 January 2013
FRS 127 Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2013
FRS 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2013

Amendments to FRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and 1 January 2013
Financial Liabilities

Amendments to FRSs  Annual Improvements 2009 — 2011 Cycle 1 January 2013
Amendments to FRS  Convsolidated  Firancial Statements, Joint 1 January 2013
10, FRS 11 and FRS  Arrangemenis and Disclosure of Interests in
12 Other Entities: Transition Guldance

The adeption of the above accounting standards, amendments and interpretations of the
FRS Framework had no material impact on the financial statements of the Group and the
Company.

52 New FRSs that have been issued, but only effective for annnal periods beginning on or
after 1 Yannary 2014

The following are accounting standards, amendments and interpretations of the FRS
Framework that have been issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standacds Board (‘MASB’)
but have not been early adopted by the Group and the Company.

Title Effective Date

Amendments to FRS  Consolidated Financial Statements: Investment | January 2014
10 Entities

Amendments to FRS  Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities: 1 January 2014
12 Investment Entities

Amendments to FRS  Separate  Financial  Statements  (2011): | January 2014
127 Investment Entities

Awmendments to FRS  Offsetting  Financial Assets and  Finagncial | January 2014
132 Liabilities

Amendments to FRS ~ Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-  1Janvary 2014
136 Sinancial Assets

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (Amendments to FRS 1 July 2014
119)

Amendments to FRSs  Annual Improvements 20£0 ~ 2012 Cycle 1 July 2014

Amendments to FR3s  Annual Improvements 2011 - 2013 Cycle t July 2014

Mandatory Effective Date of FRS 9 and Transition Disclosures Deferred

FRS 9 Financial Instriments (2009) Deferred

FRS 9 Financial Instruments (2010) Deferred

FRS 9 Financial Instruments (Hedge Accounting and Deferred

Amendments to FRS 9, FRS 7 and FRS 139)
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5. ADOPTION OF NEW FRSs AND AMENDMENT TO FRSs (continued)

5.2 New I'RSs that have been issued, but only effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 Jancary 2014 (continued)

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of implementing these accounting
standards, amendments and interpretations, since the effect would only be observabie for
the futare financial years.

6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
6.1 Changes in estimates

Estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances,

The Directors are of the opinion that there are no significant changes in estimates during the
reporting period and at the end of the reporting period.

6.2 Critical judgements made in applying aecounting policies

The following are judgements made by management in the process of applying the
accounting policies of the Group that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements.

(a) Classification between investment properties and property and plant and equipment

The Group has developed certain criteria based on FRS 140 in making judgement
whether a property qualifies as an investment property. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease}, the Group would account
for the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administeative purposes. Judgement
is made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary sevvices are 80
significant that a property does not qualify as investment property.

(b} Operating lease commitments - the Group as lessor
The Group has entered into commercial propetty icases on its investment property

portfolio. The Group has determined that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are Icased out as operating jeases.
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6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)
6.3 Key sonrces of estimation uncertainty

The following are key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting peried that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financiaf year.

(2} Property development

The Group recognises revenue from property development and the related expenses
in statements of comprehensive income by using the stage of completion method.
The percentage of completion is determined by the proportion that property
development costs incurred for work performed to date compares to the estimated
total property development costs.

Significant judgement is requited in determining the stage of completion, the extent
of the property development costs incurred, the estimated total property development
revenue and costs, as well as the recoverability of the development projects. The
property development also includes an estimation of variation works that are
recoverable from cuostomers. In making the judgement, the Group evaluates by
relying on past experience and the work of specialists.

(b}  Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group estimates the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the time the
assets are acquired based on historical experience, the expected usage, wear and tear
of the assets, and technical obsolescence arising from changes in the market demands
or service output of the assets. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ from
previous estimates due to changes in factors mentioned above. Changes in these
factors could impact the useful lives and the residual values of the assets, therefore
future depreciation charges could be revised.

(c} Impairment of assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for its assets at
the end of each reporting period. Assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Such assessment
requires management to make an estimate of the recoverable amounts and where
expectations differ from the original estimates, the differences will impact the
carrying amounts of assets, In assessing such impairment, the recoverable amount of
the assets is estimated using the latest available fair value after taking into account
the costs to sell or expected value in use of the relcvant assets.
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6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)
6.3 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continoed)
{d) Fair value of investment properties

Fair valves of investment properties are determined based on investment and
comparison methods. It is performed by registered independent valuers with
appropriate recognised professional qualification and has recent experience in the
location and category of the investment properties being valued.

(e) Impairment of recetvables

The Group makes impairment of rececivables based on an assessment of the
recoverability of rcceivables. Impairment is applied to receivables where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
The management specilically analyses Iistorical bad debt, receivable
creditworthiness, current economic trends and changes in receivable payment terms
when making a judgement to cvaluate the adequacy of impairment of receivables.
Where expectations differ from the original estimates, the differences would impact
the carrying value of receivables.

() Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and associates and amounts owing by
subsidiaries and associates

The Company reviews the investments in subsidiaries and associates for impairment
when there 15 an indication of impairment and assess the impairment of receivables
on the amounts owing by subsidiaries and assoctates when the receivables are Tong
outstanding.

The recoverable amounts of the investments in subsidiaries and associates and
amounts owing by subsidiaries and associates are assessed by reference to the value
in use of the respective subsidiaries and associates.

The value in use is the net present value of the projected future cash flows derived
from the business operations of the respective subsidiaries and associates discounted
at an appropriate discount rate. For such discounted cash flow method, it involves the
use of estimated future results and a set of assumptions to reflect their income and
cash flows. Judgement had also been used to determine the discount rate for the cash
flows and the future growth of the businesses of the subsidiaries and associates.
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7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Company Balance Depreciation Balance
as at charge for the as at
2013 1.1.2013 Additions  financial year  31.12,2013
RM RM RM RM
Carrying amount
Office equipment 2,192 - (576) 1,616
e AL 31.12.2013 ~cnemmmamnummmuns
Accumulated Carrying
Cost depreciation amount
RM RM RM
Office equipment 3,200 (1,584) 1,616
Balance Depreciation Balance
as at charge for the as at
2012 1.1.2612 Additions  financial year 31,12.2012
RM RM RM RM
Office equipiment 2,768 - (576) 2,192
[-=remmmmm st At 31.12.2012 «rrrrrenmmsmnnan ]
Accumulated Carrying
Cost depreciation amount
RM RM M
Office equipment 3,200 (1,008} 2,192

(a) In the current financial year, hotel properties under construction of the Group
transferred from investment properties is in respect of land cost of the hotel.

In the previous financial year, building, plant and equipment, hotel propetties under
construction and construction-in-progress of the Group transferred from property
development costs were mainly in respect of sales gallery (‘i-Gallery’), event centre
(‘+-Walk’), hotel and shopping mall.

(b) Included in hotel properties under construction of the Group is freehold land provided

by a company pursuant to the Joint Venture atrangernent as disclosed in Note 13 to the
financial statements.
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7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(¢) During the financial year, the Group made the following cash payments to purchase
propetty, plant and equipment:

Group

2613 2012

RM M
Purchase of propeity, plant and equipment 20,385,362 20,966,866
Reversal of/{ Accrued) purchase consideration of freehold

land 1,381,853 (1,381,853

Accrued development cost of property, plant and equipment (2,271,005 -
Unsettled and remained as other payables (700,783) -

Cash payments on purchase of property, plant and equipment 8,795,427 19,585,013

8. INVESTMENT PROPERTILS

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Note RM RM RM RM
At fair vajue
At 1 January 65,460,000 65,460,000 6,910,000 6,910,000
Transfer to property, plant
and equipment 7 (7,380,635) - - -
Net fair value gain recognised
in statements of
comprehensive income 12,995,635 - 490,000 -
At 31 December 71,075,000 05,460,000 7,400,000 6,910,000
At cost
At 1 January - - - -
Investment properties under
construction 2,298,008 - - -
At 31 December 2,298,008 - - -
Total investment properties 73,373,008 65,400,000 7,400,000 6,910,000
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8. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Direct operating expenses avising from investment properties generating rental income
during the financial year are as follows:

Group Company
2013 2012 2613 2012
RM RM RM RM
Repair and maintenance 451,160 587,837 49.858 49,858
Quit rent and assessment 108,697 94,283 54,697 55,660
559,857 682,120 104,555 105,518

Title deeds

Titte deeds pertaining to certain investment properties are in the process of being
transferred to a subsidiary’s name.

Freehold lard

Freehold land in respect of the investment properties is provided by a company pursuant to
the Joint Venture arrangement as disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group accrued an amount of RM2,460,793 (2012:
RM?2,460,793) for the purchase consideration of the freehold land.

Investment properties under construction

Investment properties under construction represent cax park [ots under construction,

The fuir value of investment propertics under construction amounting to RM2,208,008
(2012: Nil) cannot be reliably and separately determined until the construction is completed
or the fair value becomes reliably determinable, whichever is earlier.

Fair value

The fair value of investment properties of the Group and the Company are categorised as

follows:

Group Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
M RM RM RM

2013

Investment propertics - 43,875,000 27,200,000 71,075,000

2012

Investment properties - 65,460,000 - 65,460,000

Company

2013

Investment properties - 7,400,000 - 7,400,000
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8. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value {(continued)

The fair value of ihvestment properties of the Group and the Company are categorised as
follows {continued):

Compuany Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
RM RM RM RM

2012

Investment propetties - 6,810,000 - 6,910,000

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on valuations performed by independent
professional valuer, who holds a recognised relevant professional qualification and has
recent experience in the locations and categories of investrment propetties valued, Based on
the valuation reports dated 31 December 2013, the fair value of the investment propertics as
at 31 December 2013 was RM71,075,000.

Fair value is determined based on both investment and comparison methods of valuations
using significant unobservable inputs {Level 3 inputs) and observable inputs (Level 2
inputs) respectively. Changes in fair value are recognised in the statements of
comprehensive income during the period in which they are reviewed.

The unobservable inputs include:
Term rental - the expected rental that the investment properties are expected
t0 achieve and is derived from curtent rental, including

revision upon renewal of tenancies during the year;

Qutgoings - including quit rent and assessment, service charges, utilities
costs, and repair and maintenance;

the expected rental that the investment properties are expected
to achieve upon expiring of term rentat;

Reversionary rental

Yield - based on actual location, size and condition of the investment
properties and taking into account market data at the valuation
date;

Allowance for void - allowance provided for vacancy period

Tnformation about fair value mcasurements using significant unobservable inputs (Levet 3)
as at 31 December 2013 is as follows:

Parameters
Rever-
Valuation Term Ont- sionary Allowance
technique Fair valve rental  going rental  Yield  for void
RM RM psf RMpsf RMpsf % %

Block M,
Data Investment 3.26 -
Centre method  27200,000 3.60 0.74 3.90 6.00 5.00
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8. INYESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fuair vaiue (continued)

The following table shows a reconciliation of balances of investment properties whose fair
values have been classified in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

Group

2013 2012

Note RM RM
At 1 January - -
Transfer into Level 3 a 26,000,000 -

Fair value gain recognised in statements of

comprehensive income 1,200,000 -
At 31 December 27,200,000 -

(a) During the previous financial year, the external valuation for the investment property of
the Group was performed using a comparison method, which resulted in a Level 2 fair
value. However, during the financial year, there has been a chanpe in independent
professional valuer and the valuation was performed using significant unobservable
inputs. The external valuer, in discussion with the internal valuation tcam of the Group,
has determined these input based on the term, rental, outgeings, reversionary rental,
yield and allowance for void. Therefore, the fair value was reclassified to Level 3.

9. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company
2013 2012
RM RM
Unguoted equity shares, at cost 7,850,662 7,850,638
Less: Impairment loss (3,454,278) (3,454,278)
4,396,384 4,396,380
Quasi-equity loan to subsidiaries 164,163,839 164,163,830

168,560,223 168,560,219

Quasi-equity loan to subsidiaries is respect of advances and payments rmade on behalf,
which are not expected to be settled in the foresecable future. These amounts are, in
substance, patt of the Company’s investments in the subsidiaries.

The detatls of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Equity interest
Name of company Country of 2013 2012
incorporation % %  Principal activities

I-City Marketing Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Property developer, contractor
for construction work, land
and property ownet, property
and complex manager
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9. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The details of the subsidiaries are as follows {continued):
Equity interest
Name of company Country of 2613 2012
incorporation % % Principal activities
I-City Properties Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 100 100 Property developer, contractor

for construction work, land
and property owner, property
and complex manager

I-City (Selangor) Sdn. Bhd.  Malaysia 100 100 Management and developraent
of i-City, Shak Alam as a
MSC Malaysia Cybercentre
and Technopreneur Campus

City Centrepoint Sdu. Bhd*  Malaysia 100 - Property developers and
contractors for construction
work, land and property
OWNers

World Citypeint Sdn. Bhd.*  Malaysia 100 - Property developers and
contractors for constiuction
work, land and property
OWNETS

[-Marcom Sdn. Bhd. and its ~ Malaysia 10¢ 100 Investment holding and

subsidiary: property development
activities
I-Think Sdn. Bhd. . Makaysia 100 100  Advertising agent, advertiser
and advertising contractor
[-R&D Sdn. Bhd, and its Malaysia i00 100  Investment and property
subsidiary: holdings
I-Office? Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 80 80 Management of network and

telephony services

I-Silicon Sdn. Bhd. and its Malaysia 100 100 Tnvestment holding, property
subsidiaries: management and property
investment

I-City Resorts Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia t00 100 Promotion, marketing and
{formerly known as management of cvents,
I'Home Sdn. Bhd.) leisure and other tourism
related activities

I-Digitat (Shanghai) People’s 100 100 Dormant
Trading Co. Ltd. #* Republic of
China
* Nat required to be audited and was consoliduted using management financiol
statements.

% Not audited by BDO or BDO member firins.
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9, INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

On 18 November 2013, the Company has incorporated two new wholly-owned subsidiaries
namely City Centrepoint Sdn. Bhd. and World Citypoint Sdn. Bhd. with each having an
authorised capital of RM400,000 divided into 400,000 ordinary shares of RM1 each and a
paid-up capital of RM2 divided into 2 ordinary shates of RMI1 each. Both of the
subsidiaries have not commenced business. The intended principal activitics of the new
subsidiaties are to act as developers, land and property owners.

10. ASSOCIATES

Group
2013 2012
RM RM
At cost:
- Unquoted equity shares 40,004 40,000
- Share of post acquisition reserves, net of dividends
received 93,473 35,304
133,477 75,304
Amounts owing by associates 3,346,256 600,000
3,479,733 675,304
Represented by:
The Group’s share of net assets 133,477 75,304
The Group's share of assets and liabilities of the associates are as follows:
Group
2013 2012
RM RM
Assets and liabilities
Non-current asscts 490,583 588,914
Current assets 211,854 183,612
Non-current liabilities (17.800) (13,9200
Cuarrent liabilities (551,160 {(683,302)
Net assets 133,477 75,304
Group
2013 2012
RM RM
Revenue 528,101 199,079
Expenses including taxation {469,932) (163,775)
Net profit for the financial year 58,169 35,304

Amounts owing by associates represent advances for the associates’ working capital
requiremments which are interest free, unsecured and not expected to be settled in the
foreseeable future.
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10. ASSOCIATES (continued)

On 19 July 2013, the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary, I-City Properties Sdn.
Bhd. had executed the Joint Venture and Sharehclders' Agreement (‘TVSA’) with CPN
Real Estate Sdn. Bhd. and CPN Malls Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. to incorporate a private limited
company known as Central Plaza I-City Malls Malaysia Sdn. Bhd., in Malaysia which is
cngaged in the development and management of a regional Retail Mall to be known as
CentralPlaza at i-City, Section 7, Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan. The Group has
subscribed for 40% of the issued and paid up ordinary share capital of Central Plaza 1-City
Malls Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. for a cash consideration of RM 4.

In accordance with the terms of the JVSA, Central Plaza I-City Real Estate Sdn. Bhd. and
the Cormpany had also executed a Land Sale and Purchase Agreement with Sumur Heights
Sdn, Bhd., Sutmurwang Industries Sdn. Bhd., Top Capital Sda. Bhd., Sumur Marketing Sdn.
Bhd. and Sumurwang Development Sdn, Bhd. and The Peak @ KLCC Sdn. Bhd., the
vendor and beneficial owner for 11.12 acres (484,376 sq ft) of the 72 acres i-City site for
the development of the Retail Mall.

The details of the associates are as follows:
Equity interest
Nane of company Country of 2013 2012
incorporation % % Principal activity

Held by [-R&D Sdn. Bhd.;

I-City Hotel Sdn. Bhd. * Malaysia 40 40 Hotel operator
Held by 1-City Properties

Sdn. Bhd.:

Central Plaza I-City Malls Malaysia 40 - Investment holding

Malaysia Sdn, Bhd, and its
subsidiary: *

Central Plaza I-City Sdn. Malaysia 40 - Property
Bhd. and its subsidiary: * management
Central Plaza 1-City Real Malaysia 40 - Property developers
Estate Sdn. Bhd. * and property
oWwners

*  Not audited by BDQO or BDO member firms.

11. OTHER INVESTMENTS

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RM RM RM RM
Non-current
Available-for-sale financial
assets
- Unquoted shares in
Malaysia 191,000 191,000 - -
Less: Impairment [oss (190,999 {190,99%) - -
Total non-current other
investments 1 [ - -
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57
OTHER INVESTMENTS (continued)
Group Cempany
2013 2012 2013 2012
RM RM RM RM
Current
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
- Quoted shaves in
Malaysia 38,556 38,556 38,556 38,556
Total other investments 38,557 38,557 38,556 38,556

Information on the fair value hierarchy is disclosed in Note 34(c) to the financial

statements.

GOODWILL

Cost
Less: Accumulated impairment loss

Balance as at 31 December

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Freehold land, at cost

Opening balance
Additions during the financial year

Closing balance

Developrnent costs
Opening balance
Additions during the financial year
Transfer to property, plant and equipment

Closing balance

Total land and development costs

172

Group
2013 2012
RM RM
4,333,279 4,333,279
(4,333,279) (4,333,279)
Group
2013 2012
Note RM RM
38,387,522 18,366,222
2,650,273 20,021,300
41,037,795 38,387,522
119,683,596 108,717,031
63,068,560 27,167,692
7 - {16,801,127)
184,752,156 119,683,596
225789951 158,071,118
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13. PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT COSTS (continued)
Group
2013 2012
RM RM
Less: Accumulated costs recognised as an
expense in statements of
comprehensive income
Opening balance {101,442,960) (84,906,224)
Additions during the financial year (62,674,397) (16,336,736)
Closing balance (164,117,357) (101,442,960
61,672,594 56,628,158
Property development costs are analysed as follows:
Group
2013 2012
RM RM
Freehold land, at cost 41,037,795 38,387,522
Development costs 184,752,156 119,683,596
Accomulated costs recognised as an
expense to statements of comprehensive
income (164,117,357) (101,442,960)
61,672,594 56,628,158

Included in the property development costs of the Group are Directors’ remuneration
capitalised during the financial year of RM269,179 (2012: RM538,358).

Included in property development costs incurred during the financial year of the Group is
interest expense of RM9,73 1,643 (2012: RM8,106,906).

Freehold Innd

The freehold land under development is provided by Sumurwang Sdn. Bhd.
(‘Sumunrwang’), the immediate holding company, pursuant to the Joint Ventwe (*JV?)
agreerment dated 28 February 2006 to develop Phase 1 of i-City project.

As a Director of the Company has substantial interests in Sumurwang, the transaction
arising from the ¥V agrecment is considered as a related party transaction. Hence, the
transaction was approved by the sharcholders of the Company at an Extraordinary General
Meeting held on 24 May 2006 as well as by the relevant avthorities.

On 4 June 2007, as part of a restructuring scheme, Sumurwang had disposed off the
frechold tand to The Peak @ KL.CC Sdn. Bhd. (“The Peak @ KLCC’), which is a related

patty.

Pursuant to the above, on 10 February 2009, the Company entered into a new JV agrecment
with The Peak @ KLCC, whereby the terms and conditions are similar to the original JV
agreement entered into with Sumurwang on 28 Febroary 2006 except for cestain
amendiments made to the termination clauses.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had accrued an amount of RM35,564,791
(2012: RM32,914,518) for the purchase consideration of the freehold land.
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14. INVENTORIES
Group
2013 2012
RM RM
At cost

Completed properties held for sale 54,457,154 54,457,154
Consumables 14,373 191,136
54,471,527 54,648,290

15,

When the completed properties are sold, title deeds will be transferred directly from
Sumurwang to the end purchasers.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Note

Trade recetvables a
less: Iipatrment
losses

Amounts owing by:

Subsidiaries
Related companies

o o

Other receivables
Less: Impairment
losses

Deposits

Loans and
receivables

Prepayments C
Accrued billings in
respect of property
development

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RM RM RM RM
15,675,308 8,053,872 - -
{599,841} {595,788) - -
15,075,467 7,458,084 - -

- - 14,670,146 5,819,374
425,057 399,057 30,000 -
429,057 399,057 14,760,146 5,819,374
107,103 411,951 14,600 5,907

(3,000) ; (3,000) -
104,103 415,951 11,600 5,907
1,761,089 2,688,008 - -
17,369,716 10,957,100 14,711,746 5,825,281
5,799,386 773,204 - -
35,819,399 3,658,233 - -
41,618,785 4,431,437 - -
58,988,501 15,388,537 14,711,746 5,825,281
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15, TRADE AND OTHER RECEYVABLLS (continued}

(a) Trade receivables are non-interest beating and the normal trade credit terms granted by
the Group range from 1 to 60 days (2012: 7 to 60 days). They are recognised at their
original invoice amounts which represent their fair values on initial recognition.

(b) Non-trade amounts owing by subsidiaries and related companies represent advances
and payments made on behalf, which are unsecured, interest-free and payable upon
demand in cash and cash equivalents.

{c} Included in prepayments of the Group is advanced payments (or property developments
cduring the financial year of RM3,072,323 (2012: Nib).

(&) The currency exposure profile of receivables are as follows:

Group
2013 2012
RM RM
Chinesc Renminbt 5,809 8,162
(e} The ageing analysis of trade receivables of the Group is as follows:
Group
2013 2012
RM RM
Neither past due nor impaired 14,185,993 7,358,823
Past due, not impaired
| to 30 days 192,066 28,590
31 to G0 days 140,090 5,925
61 to 90 days 72,042 12
More than 91 days 485,276 64,734
. 889,474 99,261
Past due and impatred 599,841 595,788

15,675,308 8,053,872

Receivables that ave neither past due nor impaired

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are substantially property
purchasers,

The Group does not have any significant credit risk from its property development
activities as its services and products are predominantly rendered and sold to large
number of property purchasers with financing facilities from reputable financiers,

Trade receivables are monitored on an on-going basis via Group management reporting
procedures. Credit risks with respect to trade receivables are limited as the ownership
and rights to the properties revert to the Group in the event of default.

None of the trade receivables of the Group that are neither past due nor impaired have
been renegotiated during the financial year.

Receivables that are past due but not impaired

At the end of the reporting period, trade receivables of the Gronp that are past doe but
not impaired are unsecured in nature. They are creditworthy receivables with no recent
history of default.
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15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(&) The ageing analysis of trade receivables of the Group is as follows (continued):

Receivables that are past due and impaired

Trade recetvables of the Group that are past due and impaired at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

Individually impaired

2013 2012
Group RM RM
Trade receivables, gross 599,841 595,788
Less:  Impairment losses {599,841) (595,788)

Movements on the Group's impairment losses of trade receivables are as follows:

Group
2013 2012
RM RM
At 1 Janvary 505,788 560,814
Charge for the financial year 4,053 38,291
Reversal due to recovery - 3,3l7
At 31 December 599,841 595,788

Trade receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the end of each
reporting period relate {o those receivables that exhibit significant financial difficulties
and have defanlied on payments. These receivables are not securcd by any collateral or
credit enhancements.

16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Note RM RM RM RM
Cash and bank
balances 2,233,802 1,386,742 54,813 37,534
Cash at bank held
under Housing
Development
Accounts a 1,340,441 2,164 947 - -
Deposits with licensed
banks b 3,055,376 12,004,073 2,048,789 2,002,871
Deposits with licensed
financial institutions b 477,125 555,858 - 9,525
As reported in
statements of
financial position 7,106,744 16,111,620 2,103,602 2,139,930
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16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RM RM RM RM
Less:
Fixed deposit pledged
with a licensed bank (39,000 (123,000) (39,000) -
As reported in
statements of cash
flows 7,067,744 15,988,620 2,064,602 2,139,930

{a) Bank balances held under the Housing Development Accounts represents receipts from
purchasers of residential properties less payments as withdrawals provided under
Section 7A of the Housing Development (Control and Licensing) Amendment Act
2002 and Housing Development (Housing Developrment Account) Regulation 1991 in
connection to the Group’s property development projects.

(b) Tncluded in deposits with licensed banks and licensed financial institution of the
Group, there is an amount of RM39,000 (2012: RM123,000) pledged to a licenscd
bank as security bank guarantee.

(f) Tn the previous financial year, there was an amount of RM 1,354,500 being unutilised
rights issue proceeds, which were restricted for certain usage as preseribed by the
relevant authorities. The unutilised rights issue proceeds were fully utilised during the
{inancial year.

{g) The effective interest rates per annum as at the end of the financial year for the Group
and the Company arc as follows:

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
% % % Yo

Cash at bank held

vnder Housing

Development Accounts 1.75% LT75% - -
Deposits with licensed

banks 2.33% 3.00% 2.80% 3.00%
Deposits with financial

institutions 2.79% 2.78% 2.79% 2.82%

(h) The cash and bank balances are deposits held at cali with banks and earn no interest.

(1) Deposits with licensed banks and financial institutions have maturity periods range
from | to 30 days (2012: 1 to 30 days),
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16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

() The curtency exposure profile of cash and cash equivalents of the Group is as follows:

Group

2613 2012

RM RM
Chinese Renminbi ((RMB') 1,017,418 882,115
United States Dollar ("USD) 109 107
Stexling Pound (‘GBP") 283 272
Hong Xong Dollar (‘HKD?) 03 o]
Brunei Dollar (‘BND") 1,479 1,499
Taiwan Deliar (‘'TWD") 253 254
Korean Won (‘KRW?) 429 420
(,020,064 884,767

17. SHARE CAPITAL

Group and Company

2013 2012
Number Number
of shares RM of shares RM
Ordinary shares of
RM1.00 each:
Auathorised:
At 1 Janvacy/
31 December 200,000,000 200,000,600 200,000,000 200,000,000
Issued and fully patid:
At 1 January/
21 December 114,486,356 114,486,356 114,486,356 114,486,356

The owners of the parent are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the
Company and arc entitled to one vote per ordinary share at meetings of the Company, All
ordinary shares rank pari passu with regard to the Company's residual assets.

18. EXCHANGE TRANSLATION RESERVE

The exchange translation reserve is used to record foreign currency exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations whose
functional currencics are different from that of the Group’s presentation currency. It is also
used to record the exchange differences arising from monetary items which form patt of the
Group’s pet investment in foreign operations, where the monetary item is denominated in
either the functional currency of the reporting entity or the foreign operation,
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18. EXCHANGE TRANSLATION RESERVE (continued)
Group
2013 2012
RM RM
At 1 January 17,234 62,938
Currency translation differences 121,218 (45,704)
At 31 December 138,452 17,234

19, TREASURY SHARES

Pursuant to an ordinary resclution passed at the Annual General Meeting held on 24 May
2006, the sharcholders of the Company rcnewed the authority given to the Directors to
repurchase the Company’s own shares based on the following terms:

(1) The number of shares to be purchased and/or held shall not exceed 10% of its
existing issued and paid up share capital of the Company;

(i) The amount to be utilised for the repurchase of shares by the Company shall not
exceed the total retained earnings and share premiom of the Company; and

(iif) The Directors may retain the shares so purchased as treasury shares and may resell
such treasury shares in a manner they deem fit in accordance with the Companies
Act, 1965 and the applicable guidelines of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

On 28 December 2012, a total of 7,599,055 treasury shares amounting to RM7,961,474
were distributed as share dividend to the sharcholders of the Cornpany on the basis of one
treasury share for every fourteen existing ordinary shares held. Details of repurchase of
shares in the previous financial years and balance as at the financial year end were as

follows:
Average Number of
purchase shares Total
price purchased consideration
RM RM
Balance as at 1 January 2006 5,997,500 5,717,918
January 2007 0.95 73,100 69,340
February 2007 [.04 43,200 435,020
March 2007 1.07 324,700 346,927
April 2007 1.39 1,646,100 2,291,390
Balance as at 3] December 2007 8,085,000 8,470,595
Less: Share dividend 1.05 (7,599,055) (7,.901,474)
485,945 509,121

As at 31 December 2013, the nuomber of outstanding ordinary shares in issue after
deducting the treasury shares is 114,000,411 (2012: 114,000,411).
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20. DEFERRED TAX
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to

the same taxation authority.

(a) The following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the
statements of financial position:

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RM RM RM RM
Deferred tax liabilities 2,868,990  2,155247 790076 749,159
At 1 January 2,155,247 1,485,615 749,159 732,742
Charged/(Credited) to
statements of comprehensive
income (Note 26)
- property, plant and
equipment (231,215 806,359 (6d) 16,417
- investment properties 809,611 - 40,981
- unused tax losses 135,347 (136,727) - -
713,743 669,632 40,917 16,417
At 31 December 2,868,990 2,155,247 790,076 749,159
Subject to income tax
Deferred tax assets (before
offsetting)
- unused tax losses - 135,347 - -
- property, plant and
equiprment 630,352 703,575 - -
630,352 238,922 - -
Offsetting {630,352) {838,922) - -
Deferced tax assets (after
offselting) - - - -
Deferred tax liabilities
(before offsetting)
- investment properties 2,513,709 1,704,098 790,073 740,092
- property, plant and
equipment 085,633 1,290,07¢ 3 &7
Offsctting (630,352) (838,922) - .

Deferred tax liabilities
(after offsetting) 2,808,990 2,155,247 790,076 749,159
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24. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

{b)} The amounts of temporary differences for which no deferred tax assets have been
recognised in the statements of financial posijtion are as foliows:

Group
2013 2012
RM RM
Unused tax iosses 7,127,808 8,261,302
Unabsorbed capital allowances 7,094,617 6,802,934
14,222 425 15,064,236

Deferred tax assets of certain subsidiaries have not been recognised in respect of these
items as it is not probable that taxable profits of the subsidiaries would be available
against which the deductibie temporary differences could be utilised,

The deductible temporary differences do not expire under the current tax legislation.

21. TRADIL AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company
2013 2012 2613 2012
RM RM RM RM
Trade payables
Third parties 12,276,569 9,189,938 - -
Retention sum 6,344,373 2,116,473 - -
18,620,942 11,306,411 - -
Other payables
Other payables 5,715,952 5,649,186 26,324 -
Deposits 5,360,543 4,624,458 92,743 89,357
Accruals 69,260,952 60,915,906 434,912 284,151
Amount owing to
refated party 585,792 - - -
Amount owing to
immediate holding
company 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 -
Amounts owing to
subsidiaries - - 747,723 338,502
85,023,239 71,189,550 6,301,702 712,010
104,544,181 82,495,961 6,301,702 712,010
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2L TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

(a) Tracde payables are non-interest bearing and the normal trade credit terms granted to the
Group range from 1 to 90 days (2012: 7 to 90 days) from date of invoice.

(b) Included in accruals of the Group are accruals for the purchase consideration of the
freehold land and devetopment costs in respect of the i-City project, as follows:

Group
2013 2012
RM RML
Purchase consideration of freehold land 34,652,375 34,296,371
Development costs 31,584,063 24,903,561
66,236,438 59,199,932

Incieded in purchase consideration of freehold land is compensation for deferced
payment of the land in the form of interest based on the Base Lending Rate of Malayan
Banking Berhad.

(c) Amounts owing to related party, immediate holding company and subsidiaries
represent advances and payments made on behalf, which are unsecured, interest-free
and payable vpon demand in cash and cash equivalents.

(d) The currency exposure profile of payables of the Group are as follows:

Group
2013 2012
RM RM
Chinese Renminbi 11,832 9,342
22, REVENUE
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RM RM RM RM
Property development
revenue 94,924.240 24,567,217 - -
Rental income 7,995214 7,846,504 - -
Maintenance fee 1,059,698 1,165,994 - -
Income from leisure
activitics 46,889,995 31,340,921 - -
Services rendered 992,321 1,153,725 - -
Others 286,371 81,760 - -
Dividend income from
subsidiaries - - 9,000,000 11,373,127
152,147,839 66,656,181 9,000,060 11,373,127
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23, COST OF SALES
Group
2013 2012
RM M
Property development costs 55,270,775 15,625,525
I.zase rental 8,331,151 8,034,895
Maintenance costs 2,960,604 2,577,623
Leisure activities costs 19,658,580 9,008,005
Services rendered 423,307 607,013
§6,644,417 35,853,151
24, PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
Note M RM RM RM
Profit before tax is arrived
at after charging:
Auditors’ remuneration:
- statutory
- currert year 112,004 108,000 35,000 30,000
- under provision in prior
year i.000 - - -
- non-statutory
- currefit year 203,000 3,000 208,000 3,000
- under provision in prior
yoars 13,000 2,500 13,000 2,500
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 7 12977017 7,192,229 576 576
Employee benefit costs 25(a) 9,452,621 4,149,488 - -
Directors’ fees 662,500 612,000 175,000 210,000
Directors’ remuneration
other than fees 25(h) 358,727 107,818 24,000 48,000
Impairment losses on:
- other investments - 8,262 - 8,262
- trade and other receivables 7,053 38,291 3,000 -
Write-off of property,
plant and equipment 7 1,929,839 - - -
Rental expense 201,198 182,678 60,000 60,000
And crediting:
Dividend income - - 5,000,600 11,373,127
Gain on disposal of
property, plant and
equipment 48,540 6,500 - -
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24. PROTFIT BEFORE FAX (continued)
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RM RM RM RM
And crediting (continued):
Gain on disposal of
trademarks - 1,800,000 - 1,800,000
Interest income 296,855 537,660 72,146 59,148
Realised gain on
foreign exchange - 5,959 - 5,959
Rental income 415,252 369,430 265,252 219,436
Reversal of impairment
losses on trade receivables - 3,317 - -
28, EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COSTS
{a) Bmployee benefit costs
Group
2013 2012
RM RrM
Wages, salaries and bonus 8,677,912 3,836,158
Other employee benefits 774,709 313,330
9,452,621 4,149,488

(b) The estitnated monetary value of bencfits-in-kind provided to the Directors of the
Group by the way of usage of the Group’s assets and the provision of other benefits
during the financial year amounted to RM358,727 (2012: RM107,818).

26, TAX EXPENSE

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RM RM RM RM
Income tax expense based
on taxable profit for the
financial year 8,090,401 928,809 - 538,537
Under/(Qver}-provision in
prior years 209,588 (20,393) 88,293 (18,492}
8,299,089 908,474 88,293 520,045
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70
TAX EXPENSE (comtinued)
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RM RM RM RM
Deferred tax (Note 20):
Relating to origination and
reversal of temporary
differences 818,616 627,842 40,917 16,417
(Over)/Under-provision in
priotr years (104,873) 41,790 - -
713,743 669,632 40,917 16,417
9,013,732 1,578,106 129,210 536,462

Malaysian income tax is calculated at the statutory tax rate of 25% (2012: 25%) of the

estimated taxable profits for the fiscal year.

Tax expense of other taxation authorities, if any, are calculated at the rates prevalling in

those respective jurisdictions.

The numerical reconciliation between the tax expensc and the product of accounting profit
multiplied by the applicable tax rates of the Group and of the Company are as follows:

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RM RM RM RM

Profit before tax 52,982,755 §8,237,523 8,566,693 13,440,493
Tax at Malaysian statutory

tax rate 13,245,689 4,559,381 2,141,673 3,360,123
Tax effects in respect of!
Non-allowable expenses 1,210,234 852,500 247,310 i4,135
Non-taxable income (2,494,127 (496,797)  (2,348,066) (2,819,304)
Tax exempt income under

pioneer status (2,841.726) - - -
Utilisation of previously

unrecognised capital

allowances (17,912) (771,369) - -
Unused tax losses not

recognised 85,952 243,736 - -
Unabsorbed capital allowances

not recognised 90,833 46,930 - -
Utilisation of previously

unused tax losses {369,326) (2,877,670 - -

8,909,017 1,556,711 40,917 554,954

Under/(Over)-provision in

prior years 104,715 21,395 88,293 (18.492)

9,013,732 1,578,106 129,210 536,462
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26. TAX EXPENSE (continued)
Tax savings of the Group are as follows:
Group
2013 2012
RM RM
Arising from utilisation of previously unrecognised tax
losses 369,326 2,877,679
Avising from utilisation of previously unrecognised capital
allowances 17,012 771,369

Subject to the agreement by the Inland Revenue Board, the Group and the Company had
unutilised reinvestment allowances amounting to approximately RWMS584,000 (2012:
RM584,000), which are available to set off against future taxable income.

27. COMMITMENTS - OPERATING LEASE
(a} The Group and the Company as lessee

The Group sold its developed propertics to third patties under sale and leaseback
arrangements in prior years. The developed properties were leased back by the Group
for a period of five years. The lease arrangement has expired on November 2013 and
was renewed (o coutinue with the arrangement at a re-negotiated rate. The future
minimum lease commitments as at the end of the reporting period ate as follows:

Group
2013 2012
RM RM
Less than one year 6,755,278 7,905,149
Between one and five years 6,335,278 3,510,557

13,000,556 11,415,706

The payment of certain lease commitment is guaranteed by the Company (Note 29),

The Group and the Company had cntered into uon-cancellable operating lease
arrangements for office lots under operating leases for a term of one to three years,
with an option to renew the leases. None of the leases include contingent rentals. The
future minimum lease comumitments as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:
Group and Comnpany
2013 2012
RM RM
Less than one year 18,000 52,000
Between one and five yewrs - 18,000
18,000 70,000
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27. COMMITMENTS - OPERATING LEASY (continued)
(b)Y The Group and the Company as lessor
The Group and the Company had eatered into non-cancellable Jease arrangements on

certain investiment propexties for a term of onc to two years. The future minimum lease
receivables as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RM RM RM RM
Less than one year 6,903,706 5,891,749 254,724 260,108
Between one and
five years 3,724,724 3,006,204 147,512 305,469
10,628,430 8,897,953 402,236 565,577

28. COMMITMENTS - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group
2013 2012
RM RM
Capital expenditure in respect of purchase
of property, plant and equipment:
- Contracted bat not provided for 36,417,406 1,896,772
29, CONTINGENT LIABILITYES
. Company
2013 2012
RM RM
Bauk guarantees given to third parties in respeet
of services rendered to a subsidiary 1,811,000 1,261,000
Guarantee given to a third party for the payment of
operating lease rental payable by a subsidiary
(Note 27(a)) - 6,400,625

1,811,000 7,661,625

The Directors are of the view that the chances to catl upen the corporale guarantees are not
probable. The fair value of such financial corporate guarantces is negligible as the
probability of the Group defaulting on the payment is remote.
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EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE
(a) Basic
Basic earnings per ordinary share for the financial year is calculated by dividing the
profit for the financial ycar attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted

average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year, after taking
into consideration of treasury shares held by the Company.

Group
2013 2012
RM RM
Profit attributable to cquity holders of the parent 43 968,494 16,818,019
Weighted average number of ordinaty shares in
issue, net of treasury shares 114,000,411 114,000,411
Basic earnings per ordinary sharc (sen) 38.57 14.75

(b) Diluted

The diluted earnings per ordinary share equals basic earnings per ordinary share as
there are no dilutive potential ordinary shares.

DIVIDEND
Group and Company
2013 2012
Single tier Amovntof  Single tier  Amount of
dividend single tier dividend single tier
per share dividend pex share dividend
sen RM sen RM
Interim dividend paid 4.00 4,560,016 - -
First and final dividend paid - - (.00 1,064,014
4.00 4,560,016 1.00 1,064,014

In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2012, an interisn dividend of 4 sen per
ordinary share, amounting to RM4,560.016 has been declared by the Directors during the
financial year and paid to entiticd sharchoiders on 25 April 2013,

In respect of the financiat year ended 31 December 2013, a final single tier dividend of 6
sen per ordinary share, amounting to RM6,840,025 has been approved by the Directors for
shareholders’ approvat at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The financial
statements for the current financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend. This
dividend, if approved by shareholders, would be accounted for as an appropriation of
retained earnings in the financial year ending 31 December 2014,
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32, RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURLES
(a) Identities of related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence over the party in making
financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group aud the party are
subject to common control or common significant infiuence. Related parties could be
individuals or other parties.

The Company has controlting rclated party relationship with its holdirg companies and
subsidiaries.

Related partics of the Group also include Sumurwang Sdn. Bhd. (the immediate
holding company} and its subsidiaries, key manageracnt personnel and companics in
which key management personnel or their close family members have control or
significant influence.

(by The Group and the Company had the following transactions with related parties during
the financial year:

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RM RM RM RM

Subsidiaries:
Ageacy comimission
paid - - 296 422
Dividend received - - (9,000,000y (11,373,125}
Management fee
receivable - - - (633,745)

Subsidiacies of the
immediate holding
company:
Rental expense paid 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000

Directors of the
Company:
Sale of development
properties 8,385,500 5,910,140 - -

Key management
personnel of a
subsidiary:
Saie of development
properties 1,591,600 667,200 - -

Related party:
Rental expense paid 1,849,197 1,089,276 - -
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32, RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

{b) The Group and the Company had the following transactions with related parties during
the financial year (continued):

The Group had also entered into a joint venture with the immediate holding company,
the details are as disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements,

Balances with related parties at the end of the reporting period are disclosed in Notes 15
and 21 to the financial statements,

These transactions have been entered into the normal course of business and have been
established under negotiated commercial terms.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

Key management personnel comprise the Executive Directors and key management
personnel of the Group, having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group entities directty or indircctly.

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RM RM RM RM

Shott term employee benefits 1,132,900 1,106,400 169,000 258,000
Contributions to defined
contribution plan 157,506 151,776 - -

1,290,406 1,258,176 199,000 258,000

33. OPERATING SEGMENTS

I-Berhtad and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in property development, propeity
investment, leisurc and Information and Communications Technology {“ICT") services,

I-Berhad has arrived at four reportable segments that are organised and managed separately

according to the nature of products and services, which requires different business and
marketing strategies. The reportable segments are sumnmarised as follows:

(1)  Property development

Developing property and contracting for construction work.
(i)  Property investment

Investment and property holdings,
(iil) Leisure

Promotion, marketing and management of events, leisure and other tourism related
activities.

{iv) ICT services

Provision of managed network and telephony services.
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33, OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

Other operating segments inclnde investment holding, advertising agent, advertiser and
advertising contractor.

The accounting policies of operating seginents are the same as those described in the
sumpary of significant accounting policics.

The Group evaluates performance on the basis of profit or loss from operations before tax
excluding share of profit of associates.

Inter-segment revenue is priced along the same lines as sales to external customers and is
eliminated in the consolidated financial statements. These policies have been applied
consistently throughout the current and previous financial years.

Segment assets cxclude tax assets and assets used primarily for corporate purposes.

Segment liabilities exclude tax liabilities. Details are provided in the reconciliations from
segment assets and liabilities to the position of the Group.
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33. OPERATING SEGMENTS {continued)

No segment information by geographical has been presented as the Group operates
predominantly in Malaysia.

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Financial instrurnents

Categories of financial instruments

[Pair value
Loans and through Available-
receivables  profit or loss for-sale Total
Group RM RM RM RM

31 December 2013

Financial assets
Other investments - 38,556 i 38,557
Trade and other

receivables excluding

prepayiments and

accrued billings in

respect of property

development 17,369,716 - - 17,369,716
Cash and cash

equivalents (excluding

cash in hand) 7,076,054 - - 1,076,054
24,445,770 38,5506 | 24,484,327
Other
fimancial
liabilities Total
RM RM

Financial itabilities
Trade and other payables excluding statutory
liabtlitics 104,544,181 104,544,18]
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) Financial instruments (continued)
Catepories of financial instruments (continued)
Fair value
Loans and through Available-
receivables profit or loss for-sale Total
Group RM RM RM RM
31 December 2012
Financial assets
Other investments - 38,556 i 38,557
Trade and other
receivables excluding
prepayments and
accrued billings in
respect of property
development 10,957,100 - - 10,957,100
Cash and cash
equivalents (excluding
cash in hand) 16,070,820 - - 16,070,820
27,027,920 38,556 ! 27,066,477
Other
financial
liabilities Total
RM RM
Financial liabihities
Trade and other payables excluding statutory
liabilitics 82,495,961 82,495,961
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{a) Financial instruments {continued)

Categories of financial instruments {continued

Company
31 December 2013

Financial assets

Orther investments

Trade and other receivables
excluding prepayments and
accrued billings in respect of
property development
(including intercompany balances}

Cash and cash equivalents
(excluding cash In hand)

Financial Babilities

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Trade and other payables excluding statutory

liabilities (including intercompany balances)

31 December 2012

I'inancial assets

Other investments

Trade and other receivables
excluding prepayments and
accrued billings in respect of
property development
(including intcrcompany balances)

Cash and cash equivalents
{excluding cash in hand)

22
Fair value
Loans and  through profit
receivables or loss Total
RM RM RM
- 38,556 38,556
14,711,746 - 14,711,746
2,103,102 - 2,103,102
16,814,848 38,556 16,853,404
Other
financial
liabilitics Total
RM RM
6,301,702 6,301,702
Tair valire
Loans and  through profit
receivables or loss Total
RM RM RM
- 38,556 38,556
5,825,281 - 5825281
2,139,430 - 2,139,430
7,964,711 ag,556 8,003,267
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34, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) Financial instruments (continued)
Categories of financial instruments (continued
Other

financial

Liabilitics Total
Company RM RM
31 December 2012
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables excluding statutoty

liabilities (including intercompany balances) 712,010 712,010

{b} Determination of fair value

Methods and assumptions used to estimate fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial labilities are determined as Folows;

(1} Financial instruments that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts
are a reasonable approximation of fair value

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities, which are classified as
current assets and current labilities at the end of the reporting period, are
reasonable approximation of fair value due to their short term nature.

{ii} Quoted sharves
The fair value of gquoted investments in Malaysia 1s determined by reference to the
exchange quoted market bid prices at the close of the business on the end of the
rcporting period.
{c} Fair value hierarchy
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the

degree to which the fair value is observable.

Level 1 fair value measurerments are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or hability, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indivectly (i.e. derived from prices),

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs for the asset or Lability
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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4, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

As at 31 December 2013, the following financial assets carried at fair value on the
staterments of financial position are as follows:

Group Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RM RM RM RM

Financial assets

Financial assets at {air value
through profit or loss

-~ Quoted shares 38,556 38,556 - -
Awvailable-Tor-sale financial

assets

- Unquoted shares i - 1 -
Company

Financial asscts at fair value
through profit or loss
- Quoted shares 38,556 38,556 - -

As at 31 December 2012, the following financial assets carried at fair value on the
statemerts of financial position are as follows:

Group Total Level 1 Level 2 Yevel 3
RM RM RM RM

Financial assets

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

- Quoted shares 38,556 38,556 i -
Available-for-sale financial

assets

- Ungnoted shares l - 1 -
Company

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
- Quoted shares 38,356 38,556 - -

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements during
the financlal year ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012.
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35, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The financial risk management objective of the Group is to optimise value creation for
shareholders whilst minimising the potential adverse impact arising from fluctuations in
foreign currency exchange and interest rates and the unpredictability of the financial
markets.

The Group operates within an established risk management framework and clearly defined
guidelines that are regularly reviewed by the Board of Directors and does not trade in
derivative financial instruments. Financial risk management is catried out through risk
review programmes, internal control systems, insurance programmes and adherence to the
Group financial risk management policies. The Group is exposed mainly to interest rate
risk, forcign currency risk, liquidity and cash flow risk, credit risk and market risk.
Information on the management of the related exposures is detailed below.

() Intercst rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financiat
instrument. of the Group and the Company would fluctuate becausc of changes in
market interest rates,

The Group’s interest bearing assets are primarily short-term bank deposits with
financial institutions. The interest rates on these deposits are monitored closely to

ensure that they are maintained at favourable rates. The Group considers the risk of
significant changes to interest rates on deposits to be unlikely.

(i) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument would fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk in respect of its overseas investments,
The Group also hold cash and cash equivalents denominated in foreign currcncies for
working capital purposes. At the end of the reporting period, such foreign currency

balances amounted to RM 1,020,064 (2012: RME84,767).

Foreign exchange exposures in transactional currencies other than functional
currencies of the operating entities are not significant.

Seasitivity analysis for foreign currengy risk

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group's profit after tax to a
reasonably possible change in the RMB exchange rates against the respective
functional currencies of the Group entities, with all other variables held constant, The
sensitivity analysis includes only significant outstanding balances denominated in
foreign currencies, of which the fluctuations in foreign exchange rates would have an
lmpact on statements of comprehensive incomne,

Group
2013 2012
RM RM
Profit after tax
RMB/RM - strengthen by (2% (2012: 3%) 91,026 19,848
- weaken by 2% (2012: 3%) (91,0026) {19,848)
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 'OLICIES (continued)

(iii) Liguidily and cash flow risk

Liquidity risk arises from the Group’s and the Company’s management of working
capital. It is the risk that the Group and the Company will encounter difficulty in
meeting its financial obligations when due.

The Group actively manages its debt maturity profile, operating cash flows and the
availability of funding so as to ensure that all operating, investing and financing
needs are met. [In liquidity risk management strategy, the Group measures and
forecasts its cash commitments and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate to finance the Group’s activities.

The table below summarises the maturity profilc of the liabilities of the Group and the
Company at the end of the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted
repayment obligations,

On demand
or within Onetofive Over five
one year years years Total
RM RM RM RM
As at 31 December 2013

Group

Financial liabilitics
Trade and other payables 100,867,539 3,676,642 - 104,544,181

Company

Financial Habilities
Trade and other payables 6,301,702 - - 6,301,702

As at 31 December 2012
Group

Financial liabilitics
Trade and other payables 81,518,036 977,925 - 82,495,961

Company

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 712,010 - - 712,010

(iv) Credit risk

Credit risk, which is the risk of counter parties defaulting, is controlled by the
application of credit approvals, credit Jimits and monitoring procedures. Credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount and
strictly limiting the Group’s associations to parties with high credit worthiness. Trade
receivables are monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure that the Group is exposced to
mintmal credit risk.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(iv) Credit risk (continued)

The primary exposure of the Group and of the Company to credit risk arise through
trade and other receivables. The exposure to credit risk is monitored by management
on an ongoing basis and is minimised by strictly limiting the Group's and the
Company’s association to business partners with high creditworthiness.
Other financial assets of the Group and the Company with exposure to credit risk
include cash and fixed deposits, which ave placed with banks and f{inancial

institutions with good standing.

Exposure to credit risk

At the end of the repoiting period, the maximum exposure of the Group and of the
Company to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each class of
financial assets recognised on the statements of financial position.

Credit risk concentration profile

At the end of the reporting period, there were no significant concentrations of credit
risk for the Group and the Company other than amounts owing by associates to the
Group of RM3,346,256 (2012: RM600,000) and amounts owing by subsidiaries to
the Cormpany of RM 14,670,146 (2012: RM5,819,374).

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Information regarding trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired is disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements. Cash and bank baiances
and deposits with banks and other financial institations that are neither past due nor
impaired are placed with or entered into with reputable financial institutions.

Financial assets that are either past due o1 impaired

Information regarding financial assets that are either past due or impaired is disclosed
in Note 15 to the financial statements.

(v} Marketrisk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of fiure cash flows of the Group’s {inancial
instruments would fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than intcrest
or exchange rates).

The Group is not exposed to significant equity price risks arising from marketable
securities held by the Group. The Group does not actively trade these investments.
However, to manage its price risk arising from these investments, the Group closely
monitors the effects of fluctuation in equity prices and manages its portfolio within
the limit set by the Board of Directors.

There has been no change to the exposure of the Group to market risks or the manner
in which these risks are managed and measured.
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s, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT QBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(vi) Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that entitics of
the Group would be able to continue as going concerns while maximising the return
to sharcholders through the optimisation of the capital structure. The overall strategy
of the Group remains unchanged from that in the previous financial year.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in response to
changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes during the financial vears ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December
2012,

Pursuant to the requirements of Practice Note No. 17/2005 of the Bursa Malaysia
Securities, the Group is required to meintain a consolidated shareholders’ equity
equal to or not less than the twenty-five percent (25%) of the issued and patd-up
capital (excluding treasury shares) and such sharcholders’ equity is not less than
RM40.0 million. The Company has complied with this requirement for the financial
year ended 31 Deccember 2013,

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

36. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

(&) On 19 Yuly 2013, the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary, I-City Properties
Sdn. Bhd. (*ICP’) had cxecuted the Joint Venture and Sharcholders' Agreement
{(‘JVSA’™) with CPN Real Estate Sdn. Bhd. (*CPN Real Estate’}, CPN Malls Malaysia
Sdn. Bhd, (*CPN Malls"), Central Plaza {-City Mulls Malaysia Sdn, Bhd., Central
Plaza I-City Sdn. Bhd. and Central Plaza I-City Real Estate Sdn. Bhd. (*Central Plaza
I-City Real Estate’) for the development and management of 4 regional Retail Mall to
be known as CentralPlaza at i-City, Section 7, Shah Alam, Selangor [Yarul Ehsan.

The corporate structure of the joint venture with Central Pattana Public Company
Limited of Thailand ("CPN"} is as follows:

(i) The Company through ICP holds a 40% stake in a newly incorporated joint
venture company, Central Plaza [-City Malls Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. (‘JVCo?)
thereby making it an associated company of the Gronp, CPN through its
subsidiaries, CPN Rezal Estate and CPN Malls holds 60% stake in the JVCo,

(i) A newly incorporated Central Plaza I-City Sduw. Bhd., a wholly owned
subsidiary of Central Plaza I-City Malls Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. would be the Mall
Manager.

(3i) A newly incorporated Central Plaza I-City Real Estate, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Central Plaza I-City Sdn. Bhd., would develop and own the Mall.
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36. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR (continued)

{a) In accordance with the terms of the JVSA, Central Plaza I-City Real Estate and the
Company had also exccuted a Land Sule and Purchase Agreement with Sumur
Heights Sdn. Bhd., Sumurwang Industries Sdn. Bhd., Top Capital Sdn. Bhd., Sumur
Marketing Sdn. Bhd, and Sumurwang Development Sdn. Bhd. and The Peak @
KLCC Sdn. Bhd., the vendor and beneficial owner for a piece of frechold land which
forms part of the land held under Geran No, 311885, Lot No, 16965 and part of
Geran No. 311886, Lot No. 16966 of Seksyen 7, Bandar Shah Alam, District of
Petaling, State of Sefangor Darul Ehsan (‘Mall Land') measuring approximately
11,12 acres (484,376 sq f1) for a purchase consideration of RM72.66 million for the
development of the Retail Mall (‘Proposed Mall Land Acquisition’),

(b) On 24 October 2013, the Company has announced the proposed acquisition by I-
Marcam Sdn. Bhd. (‘FMarcom’), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, of a
piece of freehold land held under Geran No. 26180, Lot No. 242, Seksyen 63, Town
and District of Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan Kuala Lumpur measuring
approximately 1.05 acres (45,764 sq ft) located along Jalan Changkat Kia Peng from
Sumuracres Sdn. Bhd. (‘the Vendor') for a purchase consideration of RM132.00
million to be settled by way of ailotment and issuance of the Redeemable Convertible
Unsecured Loan Stock (‘RCULS’) to the Vendor {‘Proposed Kia Peng Land
Acquisition’).

On even date, I-Marcom had entered into a coaditional sale and purchase agreement
with the Vendor in relation to the Proposed Kia Peng Land Acquisition.

The Proposal has been approved by sharcholder of I-Marcom, and is now pending
approvals from the shareholders of the Company, Securities Commission Malaysia,
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berbad (*Bursa Securities’) and other relevant authorities.

{c) On 18 November 2013, the Company has incorporated two new wholly-owned
subsidiaries namely City Centrepoint Sdn. Bhd. and World Citypoint Sdn. Bhd. with
each having an authorised capital of RM400,000 divided into 400,000 ordinary
shares of RM1 each and a paid-up capitat of RM2 divided into 2 ordinary shares of
RM1 each. Both of the subsidiaries have not commenced business. The intended
principal activitics of the new subsidiaries ate to act as developers, land and property
owners.

(d) On 20 Dccember 2013, the Company has ammounced the following proposals to
Bursa Securitics:

(i) proposed share split involving the subdivision of every one (1) existing
otrdinary share of RM1.00 each in I-Berhad into two (2) ordinary shares of
RMO.50 each it {-Berhad (‘Proposed Share Split’);

(ii) proposed renounceable rights issue of new ovdinary shares in I-Berhad
together with free detachable warrants to raise pross proceeds of up to
RM200.00 million {*Proposed Rights {ssue with Warrants’);

(ii1)  proposed bonus issue of new ordinary shares in I-Berhad {*Bonus Share(s)’)

on the basis of one (1) Bonus Share for every five (5) ordinary shares held
(‘Proposed Bonus Issue’);
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3o. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR (continued)

(d) On 20 December 2013, the Company has announced the following proposals to
Bursa Securities (continued):

(iv)  proposed acqguisition by I-City Properties Sdn. Bhd. (‘'I-City Properties’), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, of a piece of freehold land held
under Geran No. 311884, Lot No. 16964, Scksyen 7, Bandar Shah Alam,
District of Petaling, State of Selangor Darul Ehsan measuring approximately
§2.13 acres from The Peak @ KLCC Sdn. Bhd. (‘*The Peak @ KLCC’) for a
purchase consideration of RM241.30 million to be settled by a combination
of irredeemable convertible unsecured loan stocks (‘ICULS’) and RCULS
issued by )-Berhad (*Proposed SOHO Land Acquisitton’);

(v} proposed acquisition by City Centrepoint Sdn. Bhd. (‘City Centrepoint’), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, of a piece of frechold land which
currently forms part of the land held vnder Geran No. 311886, Lot No. 16966,
Seksyen 7, Bandar Shah Alam, District of Petaling, State of Selangor Darul
Ehsan measuring approximately 7.45 acres from The Peak @ KLCC for a
purchase consideration of RM129.00 million to be settled by a corubination
of ICULS and RCULS issued by I-Berhad (*Proposed Tower Land
Acquisition’);

(vi)  proposed renounceable restricted offer for sale of up to 50% of up to
RM301.30 million five (5)-year 2% stepping up to 3% ICULS at 100% of its
nominal value of RMUO.50 each to be issued pursnant to the Proposed SOHO
Land Acquisition andfor the Proposed Tower Land Acquisition to the
minority shareholders of I-Berhad (‘Proposed OFS™);

(vil) proposed increase in authorised share capital of I-Berhad from
RM200,000,000 comprising 200,000,000 ordinary shares of RM 1,00 each to
RM1,000,600,000 (*Proposed Increase in Authorised Share Capital’);

(viiiy proposed amendment to the wemorandum of association of I-Berhad
(*Proposed Amendment’); and

(ix)  proposed establishment of a fong term incentive plan of up to 10% of the
issued and paid-up share capital of the Compauy for eligible employees and
eligible Directors of I-Berhad and its subsidiarics (*Proposed LTIP*),

On 20 December 2013, the Company has announced the following proposals to
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (‘Bursa Securities”) (continued):

On even date, I-City Properties had entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement with The Peak @ KLCC in relation to the Proposed SOHO Land
Acquisition,

In addition, Ciiy Centrepoint had entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agrcement with The Peak @ KLCC in relation to the Proposed Tower Land
Acquisition.

The Proposed SOHO Land Acquisition and Proposed Tower Land Acquisition have
been approved by sharcholder of I-City Properties and City Centrepoint, and are now
pending approvals from the shareholders of the Company, Securities Commission
Malaysig, Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (‘Bursa Securities’) and other relevant
authorities.
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37.  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS TO THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)  On 29 January 2014, the Red Carpet in I-City was partially destroyed by fire. There
is no significant financial implication to the Group as a result of the incident.

(b))  On 6 Febroary 2014, the Company has announced the proposed ratification of the
Joint Venture Agreement dated 10 February 2009 entered into between the Company
and The Peak @ KLCC Sdn. Bhd. in place of the Joint Venture Agreement dated 28
February 2006 entered into between the Company and Sumurwang Sdn, Bhd. for the
development of a picce of frechold fand held urder Geran No. 27449, Lot No. 4598,
Mukim of Bukit Raja, District of Petaling, Sclangor Darul Ehsan measuring
approximately 72 acres, designated as the “i-City Project’ (‘Proposed Ratification’).

(c)  On 1 April 2014, the Company has announced the proposed arrangemert between the
Company and The Peak @ KLCC in relation to the treatment of the purchase
consideration from the Proposed Mali Land Acquisition (*Proposed Arrangement”).

On even date, the Company and The Peak @ KLCC had entered into a termination
and payment agreement to formalize the Proposcd Arvangement.

In addition, the Company has announced the full details of the Proposed Ratification
resulting from the finalisation of the vacious appointments of advisers and the
conclusions of the independent valuations on the affected properties.

The Proposed Arrangement and Proposed Ratification are now pending approvals
from the shareholders of the Company, Securities Commission Malaysia, Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad (*Bursa Securities’} and other relevant authorities.

(d) On 1 Apiil 2014, its wholly-owned subsidiary, I-R&D Sdn. Bhd, has incorporated 2
new wholly-owned subsidiary namely I-City Travel Sdn. Bhd. with an authorised
capital of RM400,000 divided into 400,000 ordinary shares of RM1 each and a paid-
up capital of RM2 divided into 2 ordinary shares of RMI1 each. The intended
principal activity of the new subsidiary is to provide transportation services.
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INFORMATION ON REALISED AND UNREALISED

38.

SUPPLEMENTARY
LOSSES OR PROFITS

The retained earnings as at the end of the reporting period may be analysed as follows:

Total retained earnings/
(accumulated losses) of the
Company and its subsidiaries:

- Realised

- Unyealised

Total share of retained earnings
from associates:
- Realised

Less: Consolidation adjustments

Total group/company retained
earnings as per consolidated
accounts

Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2612
RrM RM RM RM
21,465,205  (6,504,403) 9,117,443 3,689,059
17,687,193 5,405,301 1,829,060 1,379,977
39,152,398 (1,099,102) 10,946,503 7,069,036
93,473 35,304 - -
39,245,871 (1,063,798 10,946,503 7,069,036
1,901,558 2,802,749 - -
41,147,429 1,738,951 10,946,503 7,069,036
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FPE 30 JUNE 2014
CERTIFIED TRUE COPY
..; ....... Vicrsanennnererirnsvnarevent 7
TGO
I-Berhad (7029-H) Saoig
MEICSA No. 0817932
WCONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 1 4 AUG ?;’]’3#
FOR THE QUARTER ENDED 306 JUNE 2014 e
{Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Unaudited)
Individual Quarter Cumulative Quarter
Current Preceding Year Current Year Preceding Year
Quarter Quarter To Date To Date
30 Jun 2014 30 Jun 2013 30 Jun 2014 30 Jun 2013
Note RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM000
Revenue 12 70,649 33,802 115,563 50,948
Cost of sales (38,589) {20,329) (64,899) (36,277)
Gross profit 34,060 13,473 50,664 24 671
Cther income 23 259 247 512 485
Other expanses (8,805) (5,726) (17,103} {12,087}
Share of profit/(loss) of an associale (303 21 (30) 28
Profit before taxation 23 25,684 8,015 34,043 13,097
Tax expense 17 (6,269) (1,238) (8,510) {1,394)
Profit for the financial pericd 19,415 5,779 . 25,533 11,703
Other comprahansive income:

Foreign currency franslations (25) 38 {20} 68
Total comprehensive income 19,390 8,817 25,513 11,771
Profit/{Loss) altribulable to:

Owners of the parent 19,408 8,788 25,509 11,743

Non-controlling mnterests 9 {9 24 (10

19,415 8,779 25,533 11,703
Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to:
Owners of the parent 19,381 6,828 25,489 11,781
Non-centrelling interests 9 {9) 24 {10}
19,380 6,817 25,513 11,771
Earnings per share attributable to owners of the parent sen sen sen S€en
Basic 22 17.02 5.95 22.38 10.27
Fully diluted 22 17.02 595 2238 1027

The condensed consclidated statements of comprehensive income should be read in conjunclion with the audited financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 December 2013 and the accompanying noles.
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APPENDIX VI — UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 6-MONTHS
FPE 30 JUNE 2014 (Cont’d)}

I-Berhad (7029-H)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2014

{(Unaudited) (Audited)
As at As at
Note 30.06.2014 31122013
RM000 RM'000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, piant and equipment 73,858 65,020
Investment properties 76,528 73,373
Investments in associates 3,450 3,480
Other investments 0 0
153,937 141,873
Current assets
Property development costs 82,985 61672
Inventories 54,457 54,472
Trade and other receivables 79,454 58,988
QOther investments 39 39
Current tax assets 718 834
Deposits, cash and bank balances 7,804 7.107
225,457 183,112
TOTAL ASSETS 12 379,394 324,985
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capitai 114,486 114,486
Reserves 128,273 102,784
Treasury shares (509) . {509)
242,250 216,761
Non-controlling interests 144 120
TOTAL EQUITY 242,394 216,881
Naon-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 2,869 2,869
2,869 2,869
Current liabilities
Borrowing 10,000 -
Trade and other payables 120,528 104,644
Current tax liabilities 3,603 601
134,131 105,235
TOTAL LIABILITIES 12 137,000 108,104
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 379,394 324,985
Net assets per share attribuitable to owners of the parent (RM) 2.12 1.890

The condensed consalidated statements of financial position should be read in conjunction with the audited financial
statemenis for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 and the accompanying notes.
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LCompany No. 7028-H ‘

APPENDIX VI — UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 6-MONTHS
FPE 30 JUNE 2014 (Cont'd)

I-Berhad (7029-H)

CORNDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE QUARTER ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

(Unaudited) {Unaudited)
Quarter ended Quarter ended
30.06.2014 30.06.2013
RM'000 RM'000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 34,043 13,097
Adjustments for:
Nen-cashfoperating items 6,145 5,160
Operating profit before working capital changes 40,188 18,257
Net changes in curreni assets (41,802) {5,702)
Net changes in current liabilities 15,585 42
Cash generated from operations 14,371 12,597
Tax paid {5,789) (754)
Tax refunded 306 7
Net cash generated from operating activities 8,888 11,850
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (15,131) (10,363)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment - 123
Development costs incurred for investment properties {3,154) -
Interest received 114 67
Net cash used in investing activities (18,171) {10,173)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid - (4,560}
Borrowing 10,000 -
Net cash from financing activilies 10,000 {4,560)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 717 (2,883)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes {20) 68
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial period 7,088 15,989
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial period 7,765 13,174
Cash and cash equivalents comprise :
Cash and bank balances 5,216 3,127
Deposits wilh licensed banks/financial institutions 2,588 10,170
Deposits pledged as bank guaraniee (39) (123)
Total 7,765 13,174

The condensed consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the audited financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 and the accompanying notes.
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Company No. 7028-H —{

APPENDIX VI — UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 6-MONTHS
FPE 30 JUNE 2014 (Cont'd)

[-Berhad (7029-H)

CONDENSED CONSOQLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR QUARTER ENDED
30 JUNE 2014 - UNAUDITED

Part A — Explanatory Notes Pursuant to FRS 134
Basis of preparation

The unaudited interim financial report has been prepared in accordance with FRS 134 Interim Financial
Reporting and Chapter 9, Appendix 9B of the Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
The significant accounting policies and method of computation adopted by the Group in this quarterly
report are consistent with those in the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
except as follows:

On 1 January 2014, the Group adopted the following new and amended FRS and IC Interpretations
mandatory for annual financial pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

Amendments to FRS 10, Investment Entities

FRS 12 and FRS 127
Amendments to FRS 132 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to FRS 136 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-financial Assets
Amendments to FRS 139 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting
1C Interpretations 21 Levies

Adoption of the above standards and interpretations did not have any significant effect on the financiat
performance or position of the Group.

The Group has not adopted the following standards and interpretations that have been issued and not yet
effective:

1 July 2014
Amendments to FRSs Annual improvements 2010-2012 Cycle
Amendments to FRSs Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (Amendments to FRS 119)

1 January 2015
FRS 9 Financial Instruments
Mandatory effective date of FRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

1 January 2016

Amendment to FRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

Amendment to FRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Amendment to FRS 118 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and FRS and 138
Amortisation

Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (MFRS Framework)
On 19 November 2011, the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (MASB) issued a new MASB
approved accounting framework, the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (MFRS Framework).

The MFRS Framework that is to be applied by all Entities Other Than Private Entities for annual pericds
beginning on or after 1 January 2012, with the exception of entities that are within the scope of MFRS
141 Agriculture (MFRS 141) and IC Interpretation 15 Agreements for Construction of Real Estate (IC
15), including its parent, significant investor and venturer (herein called ‘Transitioning Entities').

On 7 August 2013, the MASB issued anocther announcement that Transitioning Entities would only be
required to adopt the MFRS framework for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.

The Group falls within the scope definition of Transitioning Entities and has opted to defer adoption of
the new MRFS Framework. Accordingly, the Group will be required to prepare financial statements
using MFRS Framework in its first MFRS financial staterments for the yvear ending 31 December 2015,
In presenting its first MFRS financial statements, the Group will be required to restate the comparative
financial statements to amounts reflecting the application of MFRS Framework. The majority of the
adjustments required on transition will be made, retrospectively, against opening retained profits.

5
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Company No. 7029-H |

APPENDIX VI - UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 6-MONTHS
FPE 30 JUNE 2014 (Cont’d)

[-Berhad (7029-H)

CCNDENSED CONSCLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FCR QUARTER ENDED
30 JUNE 2014 - UNAUDITED

Seasonal or cyclical factors
The Group’'s results were not materially impacted by any seasonal or cyclical factors apart from the

Leisure segment as i-City’s attractions receive more visitors during weekends, school holidays and festive
seasons.

Unusual items due to their nature, size or incidence

There were no unusual items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income or cash flows during the
quarter ended 30 June 2014,

Material changes in estimates

There were no material changes in estimates that have material effect as at quarter ended 30 June 2014.

Debt and equity securities
There were no issues, cancellations, repurchases, resale and repayments of debt and equity securities.

None of the 485,945 treasury shares was sold or cancelled in the current quarter.

Dividends paid

There was no dividend payment in the current quarter.

Carrying amount of revalued assets

The carrying values of investment properties have been brought forward without significant changes from
the audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2013.

Material events subsequent to the end of interim period

Further to the Company's announcements dated 24 October 2013, 11 December 2013, 8 April 2014, 16
May 2014, 27 June 2014 and 22 July 2014 in relation to the acquisition by I-Marcom Sdn. Bhd., a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, of a piece of freehold land held under Geran 26180, Lot 242, Seksyen
63, Town and District of Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan Kuala Lumpur {"Kia Peng Land") measuring
approximately 1.05 acres and located along Jalan Changkat Kia Peng from Sumuracres Sdn. Bhd. for a
consideration of RM132.0 million to be settled by Redeemable Convertible Unsecured Loan Stocks
(*RCULS") issued by the Company, CIMB Investment Bank Berhad had on 23 July 2014 announced on
behalf of the Company that the Condition Precedents as set-out in the Kia Peng L.and Sale and Purchase
Agreement ("SPA”") dated 24 October 2013 have been met and as such, the Kia Peng Land SPA has now
become unconditicnal.

Changes in composition of the Group

On 1 April 2014, the Company's wholly-owned subsidiary, I-R&D Sdn. Bhd. has incorporated a new
wholly-owned subsidiary namely 1-City Travel Sdn. Bhd. with an authorised capital of RM400,000 divided
into 400,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each and a paid-up capital of RM2.00 divided into 2 ordinary
shares of RM1.00 each. The intended principal activity of the new subsidiary is to provide transportation
services.
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Company No. 7029-H |

APPENDIX VI - UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 6-MONTHS

FPE 30 JUNE 2014 (Cont'd)

1-Berhad (7029-H)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR QUARTER ENDED

30 JUNE 2014 - UNAUDITED

Changes in composition of the Group {cont’d)

On 30 June 2014, the Company has incorporated a wholly-owned subsidiary namely i-City (MM2H) Sdn.
Bhd. ("I-City (MM2H)") with an authorised capital of RM400,000.00 divided into 400,000 ordinary shares
of RM1.00 each and a paid-up capital of RM2.00 divided into 2 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each. The
eventual paid-up capital of I-City (MM2H) would be RMS50,000.00 divided into 50,000 ordinary shares of
RM1.00 each. The intended principal activity of I-City (MM2H) is to provide property management and
advisory services in relation to the Malaysia My Second Home programme.

Capital commitments

Approved and contracted for, analysed as follows:

New leisure attractions
Hotel development
Investment properties

Significant related party transactions

There was no significant related party transaction in current quarter.

Segmental information - By business segments

As at 30.06.2014

RM’000
3,876

7,180
25,932

36,988

Property Property ICT

Financial period ended Development  Investment Leisure Services Others Consolidated

30 June 2014 RN'000 RM'000 RM'C00 RM'O00  RM'000 RM'O00
Revenue

Total revenue 90,327 5,028 21,581 537 245 117,719

tnter-segment revenue {1,461) {406} - {71) (218} (2,156)
External revenue 88,866 4,623 21,581 466 27 115,563
Results

Segment results 32,165 202 3,188 32 (1,590) 33,997

interest income 11 6 - 6 53 76

Share of loss of an associate - - (30} - - (30}
Profit / (Loss) before taxation 32,176 208 3,158 38 (1,537} 34,043
Tax expense - - - - - (8,510)
Profit for the financial period 25,533
As at 30 June 2014
Assets

Segment assets 163,360 144 609 51,466 692 15,099 375,226

Tax recoverable - - - - - 718

Investment in associates - - - - - 3,450
Total assets 379,394
Liakilities

Segment liabilities 111,434 10,039 842 232 7,981 130,528

Current tax liabilities - - - - - 3,603

Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - 2,869
Total liabilities 137,000

7
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APPENDIX VI — UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 6-MONTHS

FPE 30 JUNE 2014 (Cont'd)

I-Berhad (7028-H)

CONDENSED CONSCLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR QUARTER ENDED

30 JUNE 2014 - UNAUDITED

12  Segmental information - By business segments (cont’d)

Property Property ICT
Financial period ended Development  Investment Leisure Services Others Consolidated
30 June 2013 RM'0CQ0 RM'C00 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'QC0

Revenue

Total revenue 36,472 4,663 20,088 584 208 62,015

Inter-segment revenue (580} (292) - {68} {127) (1,067)
External revenue 35,892 4,371 20,088 516 81 60,948
Results

Segment results 7777 (1,753) 7,359 {135) {257) 12,991

Interest income 18 - 6 7 47 78

Share of profit of an associate - - 28 - - 28
Profit /(Loss) before taxation 7,795 (1,753) 7,393 (128) (210) 13,097
Tax expense (1,394)
Profit for the financial period 11,703
As at 30 June 2013
Assets

Segment assets 140,791 65,533 50,804 878 10,977 268,983

Tax recoverable - - - - - 1,019

Investment in an associate - - - - - 103
Total assets 270,105
Liabilities

Segment liabilities 72,909 7.810 840 413 567 82,539

Current tax liabilities - - - - - 850

Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - 2,155

Total liabilities 85,544

8
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APPENDIX VI - UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 6-MONTHS
FPE 30 JUNE 2014 {(Cont’d)
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15

I-Berhad (7029-H)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR QUARTER ENDED
30 JUNE 2014 - UNAUDITED

Part B — Explanatory Notes Pursuant to Appendix 9B of the Listing Requirements of Bursa
Malaysia and other directives

Auditors’ Report on preceding Annual Financial Statements

The auditors’ report on the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 was not
qualified.

Review of performance — Current quarter and financial period ended 30 June 2014 by segment.

For the quarter ended 30 June 2014, the Group posted higher revenue and profit before tax of RM70.6
million and RM25.7 million respectively as compared to the revenue and profit before tax of RM33.8
million and RM8.0 million respectively for the quarter ended 30 June 2013. The increase in both the
revenue and profit before tax of 109% and 221% respectively was mainly contributed by the Property
Development segment.

For the financial period ended 30 June 2014, the Group posted higher revenue and profit before tax of
RM115.6 miliion and RM34.0 million respectively as compared to the revenue and profit before tax of
RME0.9 million and RM13.1 million for the financial period ended 30 June 2013. The increase in both
the revenue and profit before tax of 90% and 160% respectively was mainly due contributed by the
Property Development segment.

a) Property development
The significant increase in both revenue and profit before tax for the current quarter and
the financial period ended 30 June 2014 were driven by higher percentage of
recognition for both the project completion and sales for i-Residence, i-SOVO, i-SOHO
and i-Suites projects.

b) Property investment
The improvement in performance for both revenue and profit before tax for current
quarter and the financial period ended 30 June 2014 are due to higher occupancy rate
and a once off waiver of the service charge.

c} Leisure
The higher revenue with lower profit before tax for the current quarter and financial
period ended 30 June 2014 is due and pre-opening costs and additional operating
costs incurred for the new attractions.

d) ICT Services
The improvement in performance for this segment mainly due to a more effective cost
management.

Comment on material changes in profit before taxation of the current quarter compared with the
preceding quarter

The Group registered a significant growth in both the revenue and profit before taxation for the current
quarter at RM70.6 miliion and RM25.7 million respectively as compared t¢ RM44.9 million and RM8.4
million respectively for the preceding quarter. The improvement is contributed by all the operating
segments with the highest contribution from the Property Development segment. The Property
Development segment is growing rapidly in line with the promising sale performance as well as the
continuous construction programme. As compared to preceding quarter, the Leisure segment had
attained higher revenue and hence higher profit before tax due to the school holidays.
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APPENDIX VI - UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 6-MONTHS
FPE 30 JUNE 2014 (Cont'd)

16

17

18

-Berhad (7029-H)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR QUARTER ENDED
30 JUNE 2014 - UNAUDITED

Commentary on prospects — current financial year

The Board expects both the Property Development and Leisure segment to continue to contribute
positively to the Group's performance for the remaining guarters of current financial year.

For the Leisure division, the Group expects the new attractions that are coming on stream before the
final guarter of the financial year to boost the segment’s performance.

As for the Property division, the Group is looking into launching two new projects, namely Grand
i-Residence and the next phase of i-Suite, with a combined Gross Development Value of approximately
RM1.6 billion before the end of the financial year of 2014. Grand i-Residence which is the Group's
maiden property project in Kuala Lumpur is a 50 storey luxury condominium project located on 1.05
acres along Jalan Kia Peng in the vicinity of Kuala Lumpur City Centre (‘KLCC').

Barring any unforeseen circumstances and based on the aforementioned factors, the Board is confident
that the Group would achieve better operating resuilts for the financia! year ending 31 December 2014,

Tax Expense

Quarter ended/ Year to date/
Three months ended Six months ended
30.06.2014 30.06.2013 30.06.2014 30.06.2013
RN'000 RM'000 RM’000

Taxation
- Current tax 6,269 1,238 1,356 8,510
- Deferred tax - {2) (2} -
Total 5,269 1,236 1,394 8,510

Overall, the effective tax rate for the both quarter and financial pericd ended 30 June 2014 is slightly
lower than the statutory tax rate mainly due the tax incentive for the Leisure segment.

Corporate proposals

At the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 22 July 2014, the following resolutions
relating to the Company's Corpeorate Proposals as detailed in the Circular to shareholders dated 30
June 2014 were duly passed by shareholders of the Company:

() Proposed Share Split;

(i} Proposed Rights Issue with Warrants;

iii} Proposed Bonus Issue;

(iv) Proposed Increase in Authorised Share Capital,
(v) Proposed Long Term Incentive Plan;

{(vi) Proposed Kia Peng Land Acquisition;
{vii) Proposed SOHO Land Acquisition;
(viii) Proposed Tower Land Acquisition;

{ix} Proposed CPN Joint Venture and Proposed Mall Land Acquisition;

(x) Proposed Arrangement;
(xi) Proposed Ratification; and
{xii) Proposed Amendment

10
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APPENDIX VI — UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 6-MONTHS
FPE 30 JUNE 2014 (Cont'd)

18

19

20

21

22

I-Berhad (7020-H)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR QUARTER ENDED
30 JUNE 2014 - UNAUDITED

Corporate proposals (cont’d)

CIMB had on 24 July 2014 announced on behalf of the Company, the proposed Share Split involving
the subdivision of every one (1} existing ordinary share of RM1.00 each in the Company into two (2)
ordinary shares of RM0.50 each in the Company.

CIMB also announced that the date of the listing of and quotation for the Subdivided Shares will be on
12 August 2014, being the next market day following the entitlement date of 11 August 2014 for the
Share Split.

Group borrowings and debt securities

The Group has drawn down a total of RM10.0 million from its short term revolving credit facility as at 30
June 2014,

Material litigation

The Group is not engaged in any material litigation as at 1 August 2014 the latest practicable date
which is not earlier than 7 days from the date of issue of this quarterly report.

Dividend

In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2013, a final single tier dividend of 6 sen per
ordinary share declared by the Board of Directors was approved by shareholders of the Company at the
Annual General Meeting held on 30 June 2014. The entitlement and payment dates have been fixed on
5 September and 29 September 2014 respectively.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
parent by the weighted average number of shares in issue during the period less treasury shares held
by the Company.

Quarter ended/ Year to datef
Three months ended Six months ended

30.06.2014 30.06.2013 30.06.2014 30.06.2013
Profit attributable to

owners of the parent {(RM'000) 19,4086 6,788 25,509 11,713
Weighted average number of ordinary 114,000 114,000 114,000 114,000
shares in issue less treasury shares (‘000)
Basic earnings per share {sen) 17.02 5.85 22.38 10.27
Diluted earnings per share (sen) 17.02 5.95 22.38 10.27

11
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APPENDIX VI — UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 6-MONTHS
FPE 30 JUNE 2014 {Cont’d)
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25

I-Berhad (7028-H)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR QUARTER ENDED

30 JUNE 2014 - UNAUDITED

Note to consolidated statements of comprehensive income

Quarter ended!/
Three months ended

Year to date/
Six months ended

30.06.2014 30.06.2013

Profit before taxation for the
financial period is arrived at after crediting:
Interest income
Other income

Gain on disposal of property, plant
and eguipment

and charging;
Depreciation of property, plant
and eguipment
{Reversal)/Allowance of diminution in value
of quoted investment

Disclosure of realised and unrealised profits/losses

Total retained earnings of |-Berhad and its
subsidiaries:
- Realised
- Unrealised

Total share of retained earnings from an associate;

- Realised

Consolidation adjustments

Total retained earnings as per

consolidated accounts

Authorisation for issue

30.06.2014 30.06.2013

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
38 76 78
209 436 358
- - 49
2,754 6,227 5,340
(3) - 11
Quarter ended!/
Three months ended Financial year ended
30.06.2014 31.12.2013
RM’000 RM’000
25,941 21,465
17,687 17,687
43,628 39,152
- 93
43,628 39,245
3622 1,802
47,250 41,147

The interim financial report was authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a

resolution of the Directors on 8 August 2014,

12
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APPENDIX VIl - DIRECTORS’ REPORT

<

Registered Office:
D-1-4, Jalan Muitimedia 7/AJ

I - CityPark, i-City
I Berhﬁaozg) 40000 Shah Alam
Selangor Darut Ehsan

The Shareholders of I-Berhad
Dear Sir/Madam,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of I-Berhad (“Board”), | wish to report, after making due enquiries
in relation to the interval between 31 December 2013 (being the date to which the last audited
consolidated financial statements of |-Berhad and its subsidiaries {"l-Berhad Group") have been
made up) and to the date hereof (being a date not earlier than fourteen (14) days before the issuance
of this Prospectus):

(i the business of I-Berhad Group has, in the opinion of the Board, been satisfactorily
maintained;
(i) in the opinion of the Board, no circumstances have arisen since the last audited consolidated

financial statements of the 1-Berhad Group which have adversely affected the trading or the
value of the assets of |-Berhad Group;

iii) the current assets of the 1-Berhad Group appear in the books at values which are believed to
be realisable in the ordinary course of business;

(iv) save as disclosed in this Prospectus, there are no other contingent liabilities which have
arisen by reason of any guarantee or indemnity given by the I-Berhad Group;

(v} since the last audited consolidated financial statements of the |-Berhad Group, there have
been no default or any known event that could give rise to a default situation, on payments of
either interest and/or principal sums for any borrowings of I-Berhad Group, in which the Board
is aware of;

(vi) save as disclosed in this Prospectus, there have been no material change in the published
reserves or any unusual factor affecting the profits of the |-Berhad Group since the last
audited financial statements of 1-Berhad Group; and

{vii) as disclosed above and up to the date of this letter, no other reports are required in relation to
the items (i) to (vi) above.

Yours faithfully,
For and on behalf of the Board of
I-BERHAD

///—’__—j
T //;—?‘\ A"’ ]

—
/ T

PUAN SRITEY SIEW THUAN
Executive Director
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1. SHARE CAPITAL

(i) Save for the Rights Shares, the Shares {o be issued pursuant to the LTIP and the
Bonus Issue, the new Shares to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the Warrants
and the conversion of the ICULS, the RCULS-A and the RCULS-B, no other
securities will be allotted or issued on the basis of this Prospectus later than twelve
{12) months after the date of issue of this Prospectus.

(i) Save as disclosed below, no person has been, is or would be entitled to be granted
an option to subscribe for any securities in our Company as at the LPD:

(a) Pursuant to the Rights |ssue with Warrants, our Rights Entitled Shareholders
will be provisionally allotted with the Rights Shares and Warrants;

(b) Pursuant to the QFS, our OFS Entitled Shareholders will be provisionally
aliotted with the ICULS;

{c) Pursuant to the Acquisitions, our Company has provisionally allotted the
ICULS to Sumurwang on 27 August 2014, wherein Sumurwang has offered
approximately 48% of the total ICULS to be taken up under the OFS;

(d) Pursuant to the Kia Peng Land Acquisition, our Company has issued the
RCULS-A to Sumuracres on 27 August 2014. Further details of the RCULS-A
are set out in Section 3 of Appendix Ill of this Prospectus; and

(e) Pursuant to the Acquisitions, our Company has issued the RCULS-B to
Sumurwang on 27 August 2014, Further details of the RCULS-B are set out
in Section 3 of Appendix Ill of this Prospectus.

2. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The provisions in our Company’s Articles of Association in relation to the remuneration of our
Directors are as follows:

Article 95

The remuneration of the Directors shall be by fixed sum which shall from time to time be
determined by the Company in General Meeting and such remuneration shall be divided
amongst the Directors as they shall determine or failing agreement equally. The Directors shall
also be paid such travelling, hotel or other expenses as may reasonably be incurred by them in
the execution of their duties including such expenses incurred in connection with their
attendance at meetings of Directors. If by arrangement with the other Directors any Director
shall perform or render any duties or services outside his ordinary duties as a Director, the
Directors may pay him special remuneration in a lump sum in addition to his ordinary
remuneration. Fees payable to Directors shall not be increased except pursuant to a resolution
passed at a General Meeting, where notice of the proposed increase has been given in the
notice convening the meeting. The remuneration to executive Directors, may however include
such percentage of profits as the Directors may determine but shall in any circumstances
include the commission on or percentage of turnover. Non-executive Directors shall not in any
event be remunerated by a commission or percentage of profits or turnover.

Article 102
The remuneration of a Managing Director and the Deputy Managing Directors, if any, shall from
time to time be fixed by the Directors and may be by way of salary or commission or

participation in profits or otherwise or by or all of these modes, but shall not be by a commission
on or percentage of turnover,
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3. CONSENTS

The Principal Adviser, Lead Arranger, Underwriter, Facility Agent, Principal Bankers, Share
Registrar, Paying Agent, Solicitors, Trustee for the ICULS holders and Sumurwang have given
and have not subsequently withdrawn their written consents for the inclusion of their names
and all references thereto in the form and context in which they appear in this Prospectus
pertaining to the Rights Issue with Warrants and/or the OFS.

BDO, our Auditors and Reporting Accountants has given and has not subsegquently withdrawn
its written consent for the inclusion of its name, its letter relating to our proforma consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013 and report relating to our audited
consolidated financial statements for the FYE 31 December 2013 respectively, and all
references thereto in the form and context in which they appear in this Prospectus.

Pacific Trustees Berhad, as the custodian nominated by |-Berhad to hold the ICULS in a
securities account maintained by Pacific Trustees Berhad with a SSDS Participant in favour of
successful subscribers who are not SSDS Participants (in the event that the [CULS are not
listed), has given and has not subsequently withdrawn its written consent for the inclusion of its
name and all references thereto in the form and context in which they appear in this Prospectus
pertaining to the OFS.

Bloomberg Finance L.P. has given and has not subsequently withdrawn its written consents for
the inclusion of its name and/or citation of the market data compiled by them, in the form and
context in which they appear in this Prospectus.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed below, there are no other materiai contracts (not being contracts entered into
in the ordinary course of business) which have been entered into by our Group within two (2)
years immediately preceding the date of this Prospectus:

(i) the joint venture and shareholders' agreement dated 19 July 2013 entered into between
ICP (a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company), |-Berhad, CPN, Central Plaza |-City
Malls, Central Plaza 1-City Sdn Bhd and Central Plaza I-City Real Estate Sdn Bhd for the
development of the Mall Land and management of the “Central Plaza @ I-City” mall in
connection with the CPN Joint Venture;

(i)  the sale and purchase agreement dated 19 July 2013 entered intc between The Peak @
KLCC (as vendor), Central Plaza |-City Real Estate Sdn Bhd (as purchaser), Sumur
Heights Sdn Bhd, Sumurwang Industries Sdn Bhd, Top Capital Sdn Bhd, Sumur
Marketing Sdn Bhd and Sumurwang Development Sdn Bhd (collectively, the “Land
Proprietors™), being the registered proprietors of the Mall Land and I-Berhad in relation
to the Mall Land Acquisition;

(i) the Development Agreement dated 19 July 2013 entered into between Central Plaza
I-City Real Estate Sdn Bhd and Central Pattana, whereby Central Plaza I-City Real
Estate Sdn Bhd had appeinted Central Pattana as the service provider for the provision
of design and development, and construction management services for the “Central
Plaza @ 1-City” mall development project for a total consideration of RM340,000.00 on a
monthiy basis;

(iv) the Property Management Agreement dated 19 July 2013 entered into between Central
Plaza i-City Real Estate Sdn Bhd and Centrai Plaza |-City Sdn Bhd, whereby Central
Plaza |-City Real Estate Sdn Bhd had appointed Central Plaza I-City Sdn Bhd as the
property manager of the “Central Plaza @ |-City” mall for a consideration of a basic
service fee of an amount equivalent 3.25% of the net revenue and the incentive
management fee of an amount equivalent to 6.5% of the gross operating profit to be paid
on a monthly basis;

222



Company No. 7029-H

APPENDIX ViIl - FURTHER INFOCRMATION (Cont’d)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

{ix}

()

(xi)

{xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

the Trade Mark Licence Agreement dated 19 July 2013 entered into between Central
Pattana, as the licensor and Central Plaza 1-City Malls Malaysia Sdn Bhd, as the
licensee for the right to use the licensed trademarks belonging to that of CPN and/or any
of CPN's affiliates on a royalty-free basis subject to terms and conditions therein for a
total cash consideration of RM10.00;

the Stakeholder Agreement dated 31 July 2013 into between Central Pattana, ICP, I-
Berhad, Central Plaza I-City Real Estate Sdn Bhd, Central Plaza I-City Malls Malaysia
Sdn Bhd and CIMB Commerce Trustee Berhad ("CCTB™) to jointly appoint CCTB as
stakeholder for RM7,265,639.52;

the sale and purchase agreement dated 24 October 2013 entered into between 1-Berhad
(as the issuer), I-Marcom Sdn Bhd {as the purchaser) and Sumuracres (as the vendor) in
relation to the Kia Peng Land Acquisition;

the sale and purchase agreement dated 20 December 2013 entered into between
I-Berhad (as the issuer), ICP (as the purchaser) and The Peak @ KLCC (as the vendor
and beneficial owner of the SOHO Land) together with the Land Proprietors, being the
registered proprietors of the SOHO Land in relation to the SOHQO Land Acquisition
(“SOHO Land SPA™);

the sale and purchase agreement dated 20 December 2013 entered into between I-
Berhad (as the issuer), CCSB (as the purchaser) and The Peak @ KLCC (as the vendor
and beneficial owner of the Tower Land) together with the Land Proprietors, being the
registered proprietors of the Tower Land in relation to the Tower Land Acquisition
(“Tower Land SPA");

the termination and payment agreement dated 1 April 2014 entered into between The
Peak @ KLCC and I-Berhad in connection with the Arrangement;

the supplemental agreement dated 12 May 2014 entered into between The Peak @
KLCC, ICP, |-Berhad and the Land Proprietors whereby the parties agree to execute the
supplemental agreement in respect of the SOHO Land SPA, for the waiver and deletion
of the condition precedent requiring that the amount owing to the Land Proprietors by
The Peak @ KLCC to be settled in full prior to the SOHO Land Acquisition becoming
unconditional but to be delivered on completion instead;

the supplemental agreement dated 12 May 2014 entered into between The Peak @
KLCC, CCSB, I-Berhad and the Land Proprietors whereby the parties agree to execute
the supplemental agreement in respect of the Tower Land SPA, for the waiver and
deletion of the condition precedent requiring that the amount owing to the Land
Proprietors by The Peak @ KLCC be settled in full prior to the Tower Land Acquisition
becoming unconditional but to be delivered on completion instead;

the RCULS-A deed poll dated 18 August 2014 executed by |-Berhad to, amongst others,
create and issue the RCULS-A at the applicable coupon rate for the RCULS-A, to the
RCULS-A sole subscriber;

the RCULS-B deed poll dated 18 August 2014 executed by |-Berhad to, amongst others,
create and issue the RCULS-B at the applicable coupon rate for the RCULS-B, to the
RCULS-B sole subscriber;

the agency agreement dated 18 August 2014 entered into between |-Berhad as issuer,
CIMB as facility agent, Sumuracres Sdn Bhd as RCULS-A sole subscriber and
Sumurwang as RCULS-B sole subscriber, for [-Berhad to appoint and irrevocably
authorise CIMB to take such action on its behalf and to perform such duties and
ohligations and to exercise such powers, rights, discretions and authorities as are vested
in it as the facility agent by the agency agreement;
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{(xvi)

(xvii)

{xviii)

(xix)

{(xx)

{xxi)

the Letter of Appointment dated 26 August 2014 issued by Pacific Trustees Berhad and
accepted by I-Berhad for the appcintment of Pacific Trustees Berhad as the nominated
custodian to hold the ICULS on behalf of the non SSDS Participants in the event the
ICULS are not listed for a fee of RM18,000 per annum including other transaction and/or
processing fees which are chargeable on a per transaction basis;

the ICULS Trust Deed,

the ICULS agency agreement dated 27 August 2014 entered into between |-Berhad as
issuer, Tricor Investor Services Sdn Bhd as paying agent and the Trustee, for -Berhad to
appoint Tricor Investor Services Sdn Bhd as the paying agent in relation to the payment
of the ICULS Trust Deed;

the ICULS issuance agreement dated 27 August 2014 entered into between |-Berhad as
issuer, CIMB as lead arranger and facility agent, respectively whereby CIMB as lead
arranger agree to arrange for |-Berhad, the issuance of the ICULS subject to the terms
and conditions of the ICULS issuance agreement;

the Warrants deed poll dated 28 August 2014 by I-Berhad to, amongst others, create and
grant Warrants subject to the relevant conditions in the third schedule of the deed poll;
and

the Underwriting Agreement.

5. MATERIAL LITIGATION

As at the LPD, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries is involved in any material litigation,
claim or arbitration, either as plaintiff or defendant, and our Board confirms that there are no
legal proceedings, pending or threatened against the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or of
any fact likely to give rise to any proceedings which may materially or adversely affect the
business or financial position of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

6. GENERAL

(i)

(i)

There are no existing or proposed service contracts entered or to be entered into by I-
Berhad with any Director or propeosed Director, other than those which are expiring or
determinable by the employing company without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation)} within 1 year from the date of issuance of this Prospectus; and

Save as disclosed in this Prospectus, our Board confirms that the financial condition and
operations of our Group are not affected by any of the following:

(a) material information including special trade factors or risks which are unlikely to
be known or anticipated by the general public and which could materially affect
the profits of our Group;

{b) known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will result in
or are likely to materially increase or decrease our Group's liquidity;

(c) material commitments for capital expenditure;

(d)  unusual, infrequent events or transactions or significant economic changes that
materially affect the amount of reperted income from our operations; and
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(e}  known trends or uncertainties that have had, or that our Group reasonably
expects to have, a material favourable or unfavourable impact on our Group's
revenues or operating income.

7. DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION

Copies of the following documents are available for inspection at the Registered Office of our
Company located at D-1-4, Jalan Multimedia 7/AJ, CityPark, i-City, 40000 Shah Alam, Selangor
Darul Ehsan during normal business hours from Monday te Friday {(except public holidays) for a
period of twelve (12} months from the date of issuance of this Prospectus:

(i)

(i)
(iii)
(iv)
(v}

(vi)

(vii)

(viif)

(ix)

(x}

(i)

(xii)

our Memorandum and Arlicles of Association;
the ICULS Trust Deed;
the Warrants Deed Poll;

our audited consolidated financial statements for the past two (2} FYE 31 December
2012 and 31 December 2013;

our unaudited consolidated interim financial statements for the 6-month FPE 30 June
2014;

the proforma consolidated statement of financial position of our Group as at 31
December 2013 together with the Reporting Accountants’ letter as set out in Appendix 1V
of this Prospectus;

the Directors’ Report as set out in Appendix VIl of this Prospectus;

the material contracts referred to in Section 4 of this Appendix;

the consent letters referred to in Section 3 of this Appendix;

the undertaking letters dated 9 May 2014 in relation to the Undertakings from Tan Sri
Lim Kim Hong, Puan Sri Tey Siew Thuan, Sumurwang, Sumurwang Capital and Sumur

Ventures as referred to in Section 4.1 of this Prospectus;

the Nomination Letters and the Sumurwang Undertaking referred to in Section 1.4 of this
Prospectus; and

the Underwriting Agreement.

THE REST OF THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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8. RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

QOur Board and the Sumurwang Board have seen and approved all the Documents and they
collectively and individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information given
and confirm that, after having made all reasonable inquiries and to the best of their knowledge
and belief, there are no false or misleading statements or other facts which if omitted would
make the statements in the Documents false or misleading.

CIMB, being the Principal Adviser, acknowledges that, based on all available information, and
to the best of its knowledge and belief, this Prospectus constitutes a full and true disclosure of
all material facts concerning the Corporate Exercises.

THE REST OF THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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